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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 7558 2

Change
2021 2020 25
For the year ended 31 December BE12A3MALEE
(RMB'000) (AR%T )
Revenue WA 32,057,584 28,073,065 14.2%
Gross profit E7 8,447,693 8,383,979 0.8%
Finance costs BEKA 546,149 435,892 25.3%
EBITDA bR EBITE R 2 A 5,719,554 6,195,368 (7.7)%
Profit before tax BR A& A 3,807,282 4,753,560 (19.9%
Profit for the year F R Fl 3,018,589 3,757,389 (19.7)%
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AN &1#H A FE(5 G T 3,044,159 3,750,829 (18.8)%
At 31 December (RMB'000) M12A31B(AR%T )
Total assets BEMR 54,483,189 46,527,562 17.1%
Cash and bank deposits e RFITER 7,646,249 7,447,436 2.7%
Total debts® Lz 18,275,903 16,236,163 12.6%
Net debt® ERFE" 10,629,654 8,788,727 20.9%
Total equity b e 21,806,763 20,354,122 7.1%
Share information (RMB) ROBER(ARY)
Earnings per share® FREFN
- Basic o 7\ 0.99 122 (18.9)%
- Diluted —#58 0.99 122 (18.9)%
Dividend per share (HK cents) BRARE (B
— Interim dividend —FHHRE 12 12 -
— Proposed final dividend — R KRB E 26 38 (31.6)%
— Total dividend — 18RS 38 50 (24.0)%
Equity attributable to owners of the Company & A A EH AREEEZR
per share 6.70 6.40 4.7%
Financial ratios B =
Gearing Ratio (%) BEABEE (%) 45.6 44.4
Net debt to equity® (%) {ERSF UL R (%) 48.7 432
Interest cover® (times) FIEBBF R (£2) 10.47 14.21
Note: 5T -
(a) Represented borrowings, lease liabilities and debt component of convertible loans. (a) EBER HEEGENRABRRE RGN
(b) Represented total debts less cash and bank deposits. (b) EEBEERIES RRITER

(© Details of the calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share of the (@ AR GRERNRBERA 2T EFARGEVBRE
Company are set out in note 11 to consolidated financial statements. MiEETT ©

(d) Represented equity attributable to owners of the Company divided by the number  (d) EADNRMA AELRER AR RER RS BEITROE

of issued Shares at the end of the reporting period. g -
(e) Represented net debt divided by total equity. (e) FE1ETS FRERR ARE 2R 4278 -
) Represented EBITDA divided by finance costs. G} e BRI E AT A FIBR AR E AL AN ©

2 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI2EE@ZERER AT



FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HFMBHE

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A31MBLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
RESULTS ARBTRT ARBTRT ARBTT ARBTT ARETET
REVENUE LN 32,057,584 28,073,065 26,344,523 23,733,517 20,360,000
GROSS PROFIT EX 8,447,693 8,383,979 7,537,119 6,228,449 5,316,783
EXPENSES* B # (4,441,810) (3,851,675)  (3,459,637)  (3,033,265)  (2,700,377)
FINANCE COSTS E=d%:N (546,149) (435,892) (577,194) (415,403) (229,309)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE AT A 3,807,282 4,753,560 3,981,921 3,235,539 2,954,586
Income tax expense FiS B2 (788,693) (996,171) (953,586) (789,315) (688,779)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FREF 3,018,589 3,757,389 3,028,335 2,446,224 2,265,807
Profit attributable to: AT FEfR R
Owners of the Company KNAFHEAA 3,044,159 3,750,829 3,024,701 2,491,774 2,293,055
Non-controlling interests FEF I FE S (25,570) 6,560 3,634 (45,550) (27,248)
3,018,589 3,757,389 3,028,335 2,446,224 2,265,807

At 31 December

M®12H831H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
RMB’000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000
FINANCIAL POSITION B AR R AR TR ARETRT AR®TT ARETT ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEREEE 30,131,266 26,858,971 23,053,463 19,752,950 15,825,153
Current assets RENEE 24,351,923 19,668,591 17,731,334 14,883,327 12,148,472
Total assets BEBT 54,483,189 46,527,562 40,784,797 34,636,277 27,973,625
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBaE 11,812,823 10,115,058 3,163,655 6,458,341 6,116,343
Current liabilities mEaE 20,863,603 16,058,382 20,526,746 13,105,071 8,073,791
Total liabilities NGk 32,676,426 26,173,440 23,690,401 19,563,412 14,190,134
NET CURRENT ASSETS/ REBEEFHE
(LIABILITIES) (86 3,488,320 3,610,209  (2,795,412) 1,778,256 4,074,681
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners FiN/NEIE YN
of the Company FE(L RS 20,771,141 19,841,127 16,576,245 14,803,329 13,489,915
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR 1,035,622 512,995 518,151 269,536 293,576
Total equity R 21,806,763 20,354,122 17,094,396 15,072,865 13,783,491
# Represented the sum of selling and distribution expenses, administrative expenses ~ # FEEHE RO Y - ITIE A b 5 X A48T -
and other expenses.
Annual Report 2021 43R 3



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREMES

In 2021, global inflation persisted due to the impact of the protracted
Covid-19 pandemic. To cope with the situation, the central banks
across the world started to tighten their monetary policies, which may
slow down economic growth in the future. China still led the world in
economic development and the prevention and control of the
pandemic. In 2021, the Chinese government started off the “14th Five-
year Plan” by pressing ahead with the projects of the “New
Infrastructure, New Urbanisation Initiatives and Major Projects” which
include the major transportation and water conservancy construction
projects. This can generate long-term, huge domestic demand,
contributing to the economic growth. It is expected that such policies
will continue to add new impetus to social and economic development,
and will drive consistent, steady growth in the infrastructure
construction and pipeline industries.

As a leading large-scale industrial conglomerate that manufactures
piping and building materials in mainland China, China Lesso
capitalises on the Chinese government’s favorable policies and the
strong demand of the domestic market by fully developing all lines of
its business. Although the real estate sector benefited from the support
of various favourable policies, the sector was faced with
unprecedented challenges in terms of the prospects for profitability
and financial strength due to the deterioration of the external
economic environment, significant fluctuations in raw material prices
and continued uncertainty in the real estate sector in the second half of
the year. This also had an impact on the overall business performance
of the Group. The Group's revenue amounted to RMB32,058 million in
2021, representing an increase of 14.2% compared with RMB28,073
million in 2020, while gross profit was RMB8,448 million, representing
an increase of 0.8%. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
decreased by 18.8% to RMB3,044 million due to various negative
factors during the year. The Board proposed payment of a final
dividend of HK26 cents per share for the year ended 31 December
2021.

The Group started the strategic upgrade for its brand in 2021 by
revamping its brand positioning and image. It put forward a new
slogan "Envisioning the Better, Building the Future”, while focusing on
product quality, persisting in creativity, and creating high-value
products and services for the society. The Group had been fulfilling its
brand’s commitment to sustaining a healthy and scenic living space. It
is committed to providing sustainable, green products and services to
promote green construction which is conducive to health and cultural
development.
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In the past year, the Group achieved steady growth in plastic piping
business and continued to enhance its competitiveness by extending
the scope of the application of its plastic pipes and pipe fittings and
actively developing and launching new products. Besides constantly
promoting the development of its plastic piping system business, the
Group actively advanced the development of its various business
segments, including the businesses of building materials and home
improvement, environmental protection, agricultural application and
supply chain services platform to achieve synergistic growth in its
various business segments.

In terms of production and business operation, the Group continued to
actively raise the levels of automated production and smart
manufacturing and upgraded both the technology and equipment for
production; it also implemented an effective procurement strategy
which is aimed at keeping the pressure of the rising costs of raw
materials and production in check so as to maximise the Group's
economies of scale. In order to satisfy the huge demand at home and
abroad, the Group scaled up its production step by step.

In addition, the Chinese government has pursued a series of
environmental policies to foster the development of the environmental
protection industry. To capitalise on this trend, the Group further
developed its environmental protection business and increased
investment in technological innovation to enhance its research and
development capability. By forming a value chain that covers both
upstream and downstream businesses of the industry of the pipe and
fittings products, and by focusing on building materials and home
improvement, environmental protection and supply chain service
platform businesses, the Group has endeavoured to attain synergies
between its various operations in the long term.

In early 2022, the Group also announced the establishment of
Guangdong Lesso Banhao Photovoltaic New Energy Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (EER 28 R A e IR BE IR BHX B R 2 &]) as an extension of the
Group's business to offer a wide range of photovoltaic systems and
products as well as professional services which include integrated
consultation, design, research and development, engineering,
installation, maintenance and operation. The Group now provides
integrated energy solutions for industrial and commercial enterprises
and households worldwide.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRWEE
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRMES

Looking ahead to 2022, the Group expects that businesses worldwide
will face even greater challenges and difficulties, and that the further
divergence between the currency policies of the United States and
China will pose risks to the functioning of economy and financial
system. All these can result in a deteriorating investment environment.
Since the end of February, the Russo-Ukrainian war has heightened
geopolitical risks and led to turmoil in international markets and sharp
rises in the prices of energy, resources and commodity. This has
increased global inflationary pressures, made the outlook for
profitability unpredictable and uncertain and rapidly increased
businesses’ financial risk.

However, the State Council has set China’s gross domestic product
growth target of around 5.5% for 2022 in its 2022 government work
report to the fifth session of the 13th National People’s Congress. It
has also required a prudent approach to the pursuit of progress in
work and called for innovation as a driving force of development with
emphasis on high quality. It has also stipulated that the state will forge
ahead with the supply-side reforms as its main task. The state will
continue to stabilise employment, the financial system, foreign trade,
foreign investment, domestic investment and manage expectations (“7<
= ") while it assures employment, basic livelihood, market entities, food
and energy security, stability of supply chains and normal functioning of
public administration and public services (“ 7<1& ). All these are aimed at
improving people’s livelihood and stabilising the economy, thus
ensuring its smooth operation.

| am of the view that the business fundamentals of China Lesso remain
unchanged and the management remains cautiously optimistic about
the long-term prospect. The Group will fully grasp the opportunities
for development arising from the government policies. It will also press
on with its prudent approach to development, and continue to further
upgrade its operations with intelligent manufacturing and automated
production. It will promote the environmental protection and
sustainable development of the industry through scientific research by
providing environment-friendly plants, environment-friendly
production, and environment-friendly products and services. We will
also enhance synergies among our various businesses and improve our
management and team building while adhering to a prudent approach
to the pursuit of progress. We aspire to become a global leader in the
industry of piping and building materials. Meanwhile, the Group will
continue to fulfil its social responsibility and maintain good corporate
governance to contribute to the common prosperity, striving for long-
term returns for Shareholders and sustaining a healthy, scenic living
space.
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On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt gratitude
to all employees for their diligence and contribution, especially for
their dedication to providing quality products and services during the
last challenging year. China Lesso will maintain piping manufacturing
as its core business while expanding its businesses of building
materials, home improvement and environmental protection. We will
continue to strive for a better future through technological innovation.
We will work tirelessly for better business performance and create
greater value for our customers, employees, society and Shareholders
while expanding and sustaining healthy, scenic living spaces in cities.

Wong Luen Hei
Chairman of the Board
Hong Kong, 28 March 2022

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TRWEE
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SEEkEREREANEBREFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei, aged 59, is the founder of the Group, the chairman
of the Company and was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 5 November 2009. He is also a director of various
companies within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
Group's overall strategic planning and business management. Mr.
Wong has approximately 25 years of experience in plastic pipe
operations and management. He served as the chairman in Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to April 1999 and was awarded
"Outstanding Private Entrepreneur of Shunde” by Shunde People’s
Government of Foshan in 2003. Mr. Wong has been a permanent
honorary president of Foshan Shunde Longjiang General Chamber of
Commerce since 2018. Mr. Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping
and the brother-in-law of Mr. Zuo Manlun. Mr. Wong is the founder of
a trust which holds the entire issued share capital of Xi Xi Development
and New Fortune, the controlling shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Zuo Manlun, aged 49, is the chief executive of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies within the Group. He is primarily responsible for the
management of the daily business operations of the Group. Mr. Zuo
has approximately 22 years of experience in the plastic pipe industry.
Mr. Zuo joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various
positions in operation management since joining the Group. Mr. Zuo is
currently a non-executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings
Limited (stock code: 98), which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Zuo
won several awards including “Outstanding Worker of the Plastic
Industry in the PRC" by China Plastics Processing Industry Association
in 2009 and was awarded as “Senior Plastic Product Engineer
(Technical Entrepreneur)” by the Guangdong Human Resources and
Social Security Department in 2019. Mr. Zuo is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the younger brother of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping.

Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, aged 55, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. She is also a director/supervisor of various companies within the
Group. She is primarily responsible for procurement control and
logistics management of the Group. Ms. Zuo has approximately 25
years of experience in the plastic pipe industry. Ms. Zuo served as a
director of Shunde Liansu Industrial from December 1996. In 1999,
upon establishing the Group together with Mr. Wong Luen Hei, she
held various positions in procurement. Ms. Zuo is the spouse of Mr.
Wong Luen Hei and the elder sister of Mr. Zuo Manlun.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lai Zhigiang, aged 55, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the production and technical management of
the Group. Mr. Lai has approximately 25 years of experience in the
plastic pipe industry and served as a workshop manager of Shunde
Liansu Industrial from December 1996 to November 1999. Mr. Lai
joined the Group in December 1999 and has held various positions in
production management since joining the Group.

Mr. Kong Zhaocong, aged 56, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies within the Group. Mr. Kong is primarily responsible for the
China’s sales of the Group and has approximately 28 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Kong joined the Group in
December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management and sales since joining the Group. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Kong served as a factory manager at Foshan City Dongjian
Plastic Materials Factory from March 1993 to January 1999 and served
as a manager in the production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial
from January 1999 to November 1999.

Mr. Chen Guonan, aged 54, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group. He is
primarily responsible for the management and production of certain
companies in the Group. Mr. Chen has approximately 32 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Mr. Chen joined the Group in
December 1999 and has held various positions in production
management and engineering since joining the Group. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Chen was a manufacturing engineer in the technology
department at Guangdong Province Zhaoging Gaojiang Plastic
Products Co., Limited from July 1989 to July 1993. From July 1993 to
September 1999, he was a deputy factory manager at Foshan City
Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory. Mr. Chen served as a manager in
the production department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from
September 1999 to November 1999. Mr. Chen has been a deputy
secretary general of Plastic Pipe Special Committee of China Plastics
Processing Industry Association since 2005. Mr. Chen obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in polymer chemical from South China University of
Technology in July 1989.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELEREEAERERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Dr. Lin Shaoquan, aged 46, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director of various companies within the Group. Dr.
Lin is primarily responsible for the research and development and
overseas sales of the Group. Dr. Lin has approximately 19 years of
experience in the plastic pipe industry. Dr. Lin joined the Group in July
2002 and has held various positions in research and development and
overseas sales since joining the Group. Dr. Lin is currently an executive
director of WIIK Public Company Limited (stock code: WIIK), which is
listed on the Stock Exchange of Thailand. Over the years, Dr. Lin has
won various awards including “National May First Labour Medal” by
All-China Federation of Trade Unions in 2006. Dr. Lin received a
doctorate degree in polymer chemical and physics from Sun Yat-sen
University in June 2002.

Mr. Huang Guirong, aged 46, is a vice president of the Group and was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. He is also a director/general manager/supervisor of various
companies within the Group. Mr. Huang is primarily responsible for the
overall management of the factories and production facilities of the
Group and has approximately 25 years of experience in the plastic pipe
industry. Mr. Huang joined the Group in December 1999 and has held
various positions in production management since joining the Group.
Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Huang served as a deputy factory
manager at Foshan City Dongjian Plastic Materials Factory from 1996
until 1999 and served as a deputy manager of the plastic production
department of Shunde Liansu Industrial from June 1999 to November
1999. Mr. Huang completed a programme of marketing from Hubei
University of Technology from September 2001 to July 2005.

Mr. Luo Jianfeng, aged 50, was appointed as an executive director of
the Company on 2 April 2010. He is also a director/general manager/
supervisor of various companies within the Group. Mr. Luo has
approximately 29 years of experience in accounting and worked at
Shunde City Accounting Firm from July 1993 to March 1996,
Guangdong Dezheng Accounting Firm with Limited Liability from April
1996 to December 2001 and Guangdong Gongcheng Accounting Firm
from January 2002 to December 2007. Mr. Luo worked for Foshan City
Zhongzhengcheng Accounting Firm Co., Limited as a certified public
accountant from January 2008 to April 2016. Mr. Luo is currently an
executive director of Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (stock code:
98), which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Luo is a member of The
Chinese Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Luo obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in economics from Guangdong University of
Business Studies in June 1993.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lin Dewei, aged 61, has been re-designated as an executive
director of the Company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Lin was appointed as a
non-executive director of the Company on 27 February 2010. He is also
a director/supervisor of various companies within the Group. Mr. Lin
has more than 25 years of experience in the legal field and worked as a
part-time lawyer at various law firms in the PRC between 1995 and
2001. In 2001, Mr. Lin practised as a lawyer at Guangdong Everwin Law
Office and became a partner at the firm in 2004. Mr. Lin practised as a
lawyer at Guangdong Yogo Law Firm from 2013 to 2020. Mr. Lin is
currently a non-executive director of HC Group Inc. (stock code: 2280),
which is listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lin obtained a bachelor’s
degree in physics from South China University of Technology in July
1982. Mr. Lin received a certificate of lawyer qualification in the PRC in
January 1990.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan, aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company on 27 February
2010. Since 2002, Mr. Wong has been practising as a barrister of the
High Court in Hong Kong specialising in both civil and criminal
litigation. Mr. Wong is a member of The Chartered Institute of
Arbitrators. Mr. Wong obtained a bachelor’s degree in business
administration from Hawaii Pacific University in August 1997 and a
bachelor's degree in law from City University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. Mr. Wong received a postgraduate certificate in laws
from City University of Hong Kong in July 2002.

Ms. Lan Fang, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 January 2015. Ms. Lan has
been the President of Guangdong Construction and Decoration
Materials Association since March 2008 and the President of
Guangdong Construction and Decoration Design Association since
August 2014. Ms. Lan graduated from Guangdong University of
Technology with a college diploma in June 1996 and then pursued
further studies in the EMBA CEOQ training programme of Sun Yat-sen
University and the business management CEO training programme of
Tsinghua University. She worked as the chairman of the materials
committee of Guangzhou Architecture & Decoration Association from
February 1998 to October 2006. Ms. Lan has accumulated over 24 years
of experience with respect to the administration of social organisation
and in the industry of construction and decoration materials.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELEREEAERERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Dr. Tao Zhigang, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2015. Dr. Tao is
HSBC Professor of Global Economy and Business Strategy in the
Faculty of Business and Economics and the director of the Institute for
China and Global Development, the University of Hong Kong. Prior to
joining the University of Hong Kong in 1998, he taught at Hong Kong
University of Science and Technology from 1992 to 1998. Dr. Tao
received his B.Sc. in management science from Fudan University in
1986, and PhD in economics from Princeton University in 1992. Dr. Tao
had been an independent non-executive director of Huadian Fuxin
Energy Corporation Limited (stock code: 816), which was listed on the
Stock Exchange, from June 2014 to October 2020. Dr. Tao has joined
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business as Professor of Economics
and Management since 16 August 2021.

Mr. Cheng Dickson, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 11 July 2018. Mr. Cheng is
currently (i) an independent director of Magnum Opus Acquisition
Limited (Ticker: OPA.U), which is listed on the New York Stock
Exchange; and (ii) the general manager at the investor relations
department of The Hong Kong and China Gas Company Limited (stock
code: 3), which is listed on the Stock Exchange.

Prior thereto, Mr. Cheng worked in J.P. Morgan between August 1994
and February 1996. In December 1995, he was promoted to TCRM
professional in its global markets department. Between March 1996
and June 2000, Mr. Cheng worked in the securities lending department
of The Bank of New York, Hong Kong Branch. From July 2000 to
August 2002, Mr. Cheng worked as an assistant vice president in the
equity capital markets division of BOCI Asia Limited. In August 2002,
Mr. Cheng joined ICEA Capital Limited and worked in its investment
banking division until October 2005 when he was a senior vice
president. Mr. Cheng was an executive director at the respective
capital markets department in the investment banking division of
Mitsubishi UFJ Securities (HK) Capital, Limited and Mizuho Securities
Asia Limited from November 2005 to October 2016. From July 2017 to
December 2021, Mr. Cheng worked as a managing director and head
of the investment banking department of Shanggu Securities Limited.
He also acted as its responsible officer. Mr. Cheng has more than 25
years of experience in investment banking industry. Mr. Cheng
obtained a bachelor's degree in arts majoring in economics from
University of Toronto in June 1994 and a master of applied finance
degree majoring in corporate finance from Macquarie University of
Australia in November 2000.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(Continued)

Ms. Lu Jiandong, aged 52, was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company on 1 September 2020. Ms. Lu is
currently employed by Jiaxing TechnoDerma Medicines, Ltd. as an
executive director and chief financial officer. Prior to this, Ms. Lu
worked as an executive director and chief financial officer for NASDAQ
listed Rise Education Cayman Ltd (Ticker: REDU) from September 2018
to December 2020. Ms. Lu also served as an executive director in a
subsidiary of the Company from January 2018 to July 2018. Ms. Lu
worked for J.P. Morgan from August 2001 to February 2017, during
which, she served as a managing director for J.P. Morgan investment
banking team, junior resource manager for Asia Pacific region, chief
operating officer for J.P. Morgan China securities joint venture,
managing director and China head for J.P. Morgan infrastructure fund.
Ms. Lu has extensive investment banking and investment experiences.
She also has deep knowledge about capital markets and operation
management. Ms. Lu served as a senior representative at John
Hancock Mutual Life Insurance Company Beijing Representative Office
from July 1994 to June 1999, and she also served as a public officer
and chief translator in The Chinese People’s Friendship Association
with Foreign Countries from August 1991 to July 1994. Ms. Lu obtained
a master degree in business administration from The Wharton School
of the University of Pennsylvania in May 2001 and a Bachelor’s degree
in economics from Beijing International Studies University in July 1991.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EELEREEAERERE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Guanggen, aged 40, is the chief financial officer of the Group
and is responsible for the Group's overall financial and accounting
affairs. Mr. Liu joined the Group in November 2008. Prior to this, he
worked as a finance manager in The Industrial and Commercial Bank of
China, Shunde Branch from 2004 to 2006, and was a sub-branch
manager of The Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Foshan
Shunde Haiginwan Sub-Branch from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Liu completed a
diploma in finance from Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics in September 2005, a program in laws at Guangdong
University of Business Studies from March 2007 to January 2010, as well
as obtaining a master degree in engineering from Chongging
University upon the completion of courses for the master degree in
software engineering (specialised in financial informatisation) in June
2014. He is an associate member of the Association of International
Accountants.

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel, aged 44, is the company secretary of the
Company. Mr. Kwan has more than 20 years of experience in
accounting, auditing and finance. Mr. Kwan joined the Group in June
2010 as secretary on a full time basis. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Kwan worked in CWCC Certified Public Accountants from March 2000
to November 2004, PricewaterhouseCoopers from November 2004 to
October 2007 and Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from November 2007 to
September 2009. The latter two firms are amongst the biggest
international accounting firms. Mr. Kwan graduated with a bachelor's
degree in Commerce from Deakin University of Australia in September
2000 and obtained a master degree in business administration from
University of South Australia in August 2012. He is a fellow member of
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and member
of the CPA Australia.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

China Lesso is always committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance practices and business ethics of the Group. The
Board believes in good corporate governance practices and business
ethics which are essential for achieving sustainable development,
establishing investors’ confidence in the Company and safeguarding
and enhancing the interests of the Shareholders.

In pursuit of good and high standards of corporate governance
practices, the Board reviews the corporate governance practices of the
Company from time to time so as to meet the expectations of the
Shareholders for continual improvement, and fulfill its commitment of
pursuing excellent corporate governance. In the opinion of the
directors, the Company complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the Code during the reporting period, except that an
independent non-executive director was unable to attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 15 June 2021 (as provided
for under the Code C.1.6) due to other business engagements. See
page 19 for details.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as the code governing
securities transactions by directors of the Company. Having made
specific enquiry to the directors, all of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards as set out in the Model Code
throughout the year. The Model Code is also applicable to other
specific senior management of the Company. The directors’ and chief
executive's interests and short positions in shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
are disclosed in the Directors’ Report on pages 71 to 72.

BOARD

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises 15 directors, including 10 executive
directors and 5 independent non-executive directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD (Continued)

THE COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Continued)

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company (the “Articles”),
any director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing directors shall hold office only until the first annual general
meeting ("AGM") of the Company after his appointment and shall then
be eligible for re-election. In addition, at every AGM of the Company,
not less than one-third of the directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years. Apart from
retirement by rotation pursuant to the Articles, each non-executive
director has a term of within three years. Therefore, no director will
remain in office for a term of more than three years. For details relating
to any relationship among the members of the Board, including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship, please
refer to the sections headed "Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” and "Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests
and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” of
the Directors’ Report.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

To segregate the management of the Board from the daily
management and business operations of the Group effectively, the
post of chairman and the chief executive are held by Mr. Wong Luen
Hei and Mr. Zuo Manlun, respectively. One of the important duties of
the chairman is to lead the Board to ensure the Board always acts in
the best interests of the Group. The chairman shall ensure the effective
operation of the Board and fully perform his/her duties and ensure all
important issues are discussed at Board meetings in a timely manner.
All directors will be consulted for any proposed items in the agenda.
The chairman has delegated the drafting of the agenda of each Board
meeting to the chief executive and the company secretary. With the
assistance of the chief executive and the company secretary, the
chairman aims to ensure all directors are adequately briefed on any
issues being put forward at a Board meeting and receive sufficient and
reliable information in a timely manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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BOARD (Continued)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive directors provide various expertise
and experiences, and maintain balance of interest to safeguard the
interests of the Group and the Shareholders. They participate in Board
meetings and committee meetings and make independent judgements
on issues related to the Group's strategies, performance, interest
conflicts and management process so as to ensure the interests of all
Shareholders are properly considered.

The Company has received annual confirmation made by each of the
independent non-executive directors under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules regarding their independence. The Company regarded all
independent non-executive directors are independent in accordance
with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DUTIES OF THE BOARD

The Board shoulders the responsibility of providing effective,
responsible and reliable leadership to the Group. The Board exercises
its rights in management decision on the aspects of the Company'’s
development strategy, management structure, investment and
financing, planning, financial control and personnel in accordance with
the requirements of the Code.

The Company appointed Ernst & Young as the Company’s
independent auditor to review the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 and to audit the annual results for the year ended
31 December 2021. The directors of the Company acknowledge their
responsibility for preparing the consolidated financial statements
included in the annual report and the interim report. In preparing the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021, the directors have selected and applied appropriate accounting
policies and have made prudent and reasonable judgements and
estimates in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards.

The declaration of reporting responsibility issued by the external
auditor of the Company on the Company’s consolidated financial
statements is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 80
to 89.
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BOARD (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing corporate governance duties
including:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance;

(b)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

() to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to review of the effectiveness of the Company's risk management

and internal control system;

(e) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
directors; and

(f)  to review the Company’s compliance with Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules (Corporate Governance Code).

The Board has performed the above activities during 2021.

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board convened twelve
meetings to review operating performance, funding requirement and
recent market conditions. The Board also considered and approved
the Group's overall strategy, audited annual results for the year ended
31 December 2020 and reviewed interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021.

The chairman of the Board and the chairman of the audit committee,
the nomination committee and the remuneration committee, attended
the AGM of the Company held on 15 June 2021.
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BOARD (Continued) EE2 @)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued) EEeeRRREARE @)

The table below sets out the attendance of all members of the Board TX#HF| 2021 FEFeKXRKENTEESZHEBEN
at the meetings held in 2021:

Meetings attended/eligible to attend®
HERB SERLENRYE

Audit Nomination Remuneration

AGM® Board Committee Committee Committee
Directors RREFAE® = EVZEE REZEE® FHESE
Executive directors BTES
Wong Luen Hei e 171 12112 - N 2/2
Zuo Manlun L 11 12/12 - 11 2/2
Zuo Xiaoping St 171 1112 - - -
Lai Zhigiang wER 1" 12112 - - -
Kong Zhaocong LKE 11 12/12 - - -
Chen Guonan BB 17 12112 - - -
Lin Shaogquan wheE 1”1 12/12 - - -
Huang Guirong gEH 17 12112 - - -
Luo Jianfeng pegedlS 11 12/12 - - -
Lin Dewei wiEe 171 12/12 - - -
Independent non-executive directors B FHTES
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TER /1 12112 112 I 2/2
Lan Fang B 11 12/12 - 171 -
Tao Zhigang Ep) ”n 12112 2/2 " 2/2
Cheng Dickson b 17 12112 212 - -
Lu Jiandong BER 17 12/12 212 - 212

Note: 5T

(a) Directors may attend meetings in person, by phone or through other means of  (a) REBESRMARATE  EFYARE  FREFIEMR
video conference in accordance with the Articles. GeERrCHRERE

()  There was no other general meeting held in 2021. (b)  R2021FA - HEEIRRAGERIT o
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BOARD (Continued)

BOARD AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Continued)

The Company gives proper notices of Board meetings to the directors
and the procedure of Board meetings is in compliance with the Articles
and the relevant rules and regulations. The agenda and the relevant
documents are provided to all directors in a timely manner. The
chairman gives a proper briefing to all directors on items to be put
forward at a Board meeting. To ensure compliance with the procedure
of Board meetings and all applicable rules and regulations, all directors
gain a full understanding of all relevant data in a timely manner and
receive advice and services from the company secretary. The minutes
of Board meetings are kept by the company secretary and are available
for inspection by the directors and the auditor of the Company.

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS

The directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company provides a comprehensive induction package covering the
summary of the responsibilities and obligations of a director of a Hong
Kong listed company, the Company’s constitutional documents and
the Guides on Directors’ Duties issued by the Hong Kong Companies
Registry to each newly appointed director to ensure he/she to have
sufficient awareness of good corporate governance practices.

The company secretary reports from time to time the latest changes
and development of the Listing Rules, corporate governance practices
and other regulatory regime to the directors with written materials, as
well as organises seminars on the professional knowledge and latest
development of regulatory requirements related to director’s duties
and responsibilities.

In 2021, the Company provided a seminar on the topic of “Introduction
of Anti-Corruption” to Board members.
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BOARD (Continued)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TRAINING AND SUPPORT FOR DIRECTORS (Continued)
Apart from the above training offered by the Company, based on the

training records provided to the Company by the directors, the

TEERRE

EE2 @)

EERIIRZE @
BT Bt AR RREEFIISN - RBEERA
NEREIFIIREE  R20215F ERTAE2H

directors also participated in the following trainings during 2021: AR -
Type of trainings

Directors B= b2k ki)
Executive directors HITES
Wong Luen Hei =S AC
Zuo Manlun T i AC
Zuo Xiaoping LKSE AC
Lai Zhigiang FEER AC
Kong Zhaocong FLIKER AC
Chen Guonan PR B AC
Lin Shaoquan w2 AC
Huang Guirong - AC
Luo Jianfeng BREIE AC
Lin Dewei mwiEsE AC
Independent non-executive directors BYFHITES
Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TRz A,C
Lan Fang b AB,C
Tao Zhigang B8 25 AB.C
Cheng Dickson Epsm e AC
Lu Jiandong BER AC

Note: ks

A attending seminars and/or conferences and/or forums A HEMAE L ReE ik WmiE

B: delivering talks at seminars and/or conferences and/or forums B: R g R/ SgHER LmEES

C: reading information, newspapers, journals and materials relating to the  C: MEAHEERE  &F &/ U RAREERRD

responsibilities of directors, economy, fiscal, financial, investments and business of

the Company

REBOEM - #E - HRER

Annual Report 2021 44§ 21



BOARD (Continued)

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary reports to the Board so as to ensure
compliance with the procedures of the Board meeting and ensure the
Board is fully briefed on all legislations, regulations and corporate
governance development and has considered opinions of the directors
when making a decision. The company secretary is also directly
responsible for the Group’s compliance with its continuing obligations
under the Listing Rules, Hong Kong Codes on Takeovers and Mergers
and Share Buy-backs, Companies Ordinance, SFO and other applicable
laws, rules and regulations.

During the reporting period, the company secretary has received no
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training to refresh his
knowledge and skills.

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The directors and officers are indemnified under a directors’ and
officers’ liability insurance against any liability incurred by them in the
discharge of their duties while holding office as the directors and
officers of the Company. The directors and officers shall not be
indemnified where there is any fraud, breach of duty or breach of trust
proven against them.

In accordance with the Articles, subject to the Cayman Islands
Companies Act (as revised), every director, auditor or other officer of
the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets of
the Company against all losses or liabilities incurred or sustained by
him as a director, auditor or other officer of the Company in defending
any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which judgment is given
in his favour, or in which he is acquitted.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has delegated various responsibilities to certain committees
under its supervision, including the Company’s audit committee
("Audit Committee”), remuneration committee (“Remuneration
Committee”) and nomination committee (“Nomination Committee”)
(collectively known as “Board Committees”). Board Committees can
engage intermediaries to provide professional opinions and the
reasonable expenses incurred as a result are borne by the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises four members, namely Dr. Tao
Zhigang (chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan, Mr. Cheng Dickson and Ms. Lu Jiandong (all are
independent non-executive directors). The major responsibility of the
Audit Committee is to conduct independent and objective audit of the
truth and accuracy of the Group's economic operation and financial
activities, financial policies, financial procedures, risk management,
internal control, external audit, internal audit, financial information
reporting and financial data and assist the Board in discharging its
relevant duties.

The Audit Committee shall convene at least two meetings each year. In
2021, the Audit Committee convened two meetings. The attendance
record of the meetings is set out on a named basis on page 19.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit Committee
during 2021:

o review of the annual report and the annual results announcement
for the year ended 31 December 2020, with a recommendation to
the Board for approval;

. review of Ernst & Young's confirmation of independence and its
report for the Audit Committee for the year ended 31 December
2020, with a recommendation to the Board for the re-
appointment of Emnst & Young at the 2021 AGM,;

o review of continuing connected transactions;

o review of the Group's internal audit reports;
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RPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

review of the interim report and the interim results announcement
for the six months ended 30 June 2021, with a recommendation
to the Board for approval;

review and approval of Ernst & Young's report for the Audit
Committee for the six months ended 30 June 2021,

consideration and approval of audit and non-audit services;

review of the corporate governance report for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the corporate governance disclosures for
the six months ended 30 June 2021, with recommendations to
the Board for approval;

review of the corporate social responsibility report for the year
ended 31 December 2020 with a recommendation to the Board
for approval; and

review of the annual report on effectiveness of risk management,
internal control system and internal audit function under the
Code, with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

Subsequent to the year end, the Audit Committee reviewed the annual

report and annual results announcement for the year ended 31

December 2021 with a recommendation to the Board for approval.

EXTERNAL AUDITORS
For the year ended 31 December 2021, the service fees paid or payable

by the Group to the external auditors are set out as follows:

EEZFEE W

EREEE ()

o  EMEE2021F6A30H /A A &+ H
BRERPHREQE  YTEFEFTSEB

o EHRBALKESHMELBEZZES
HE2021F6 A30 B IENME AR HE

o EEWEBBENMIERTRS

. EEHE20200F12A3NHIEFENGESE

RIRE NME E2021F6 A30H 1S A
TEEREE  TEZEFSRB

. EBHE2020F12 A3 B ILFEMRER
GEMNRE  VEZEFTRE K

o RETAEMFERMREE  AEESH RS
RAREZDRER RS TREEESR
iF o

REEERRE  BRZESRHNEE2021F12A

NNALFENFREAFERERES  UEZES
SRk -
SN A% B A

HE2021F12A31BIEFE - XEBEMRINERZ
HME N EN 2 REBRAEINT

RMB million
ARBBETR

Annual audit services FEETRE 8.92
Non-audit services IEEET AR

— Interim results review — R EEEEE 1.85
— Others* — Hp# 1.05
Total HREt 11.82

#
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“Others” were mainly for providing advice on matters in relation to taxation. The
provision of these services by external auditors were cost effective and efficient due

to their professional knowledge.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises five members, namely Dr.
Tao Zhigang (chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
independent non-executive director), Mr. Wong Luen Hei (executive
director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan and Ms. Lu Jiandong (both of them are independent non-
executive directors).

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for studying and
formulating the Company’s remuneration policy and incentive
mechanism and is responsible for formulating the standards for the
appraisal of the Company’s directors and senior management and
conducting appraisals.

The Remuneration Committee has the delegated responsibility to
determine the specific remuneration packages of all directors and
senior management. In order to determine the level of remuneration
and fees paid to members of the Board, factors such as market rates,
each director’s workload, responsibility and job complexity are taken
into account. The following factors are considered when determining
the remuneration packages of directors and senior management:

o business requirements;

J individual performance and contribution to results;

o company performance and profitability;

° retention considerations and the potential of individuals;

o changes in relevant markets, including supply and demand

fluctuations and changes in competitive conditions; and
. general economic situation.

During the review process, no individual director is involved in
decisions relating to his/her own remuneration.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Remuneration Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2021, the Remuneration Committee convened two meetings,
assessed the performance of the Company’s directors and senior
management, reviewed terms of their service contracts, and made
recommendation of the remuneration packages for directors and
senior management to the Board. The attendance record of the
meeting is set out on a named basis on page 19.

Details of directors’ remuneration and five highest paid employees are
set out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition,
the remuneration of the two senior management fell within the band of
less than RMB1 million.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, namely Mr.
Wong Luen Hei (chairman of the Nomination Committee and executive
director), Mr. Zuo Manlun (executive director), Mr. Wong Kwok Ho
Jonathan, Ms. Lan Fang and Dr. Tao Zhigang (all of them are
independent non-executive directors). The major duty of the
Nomination Committee is to study and make recommendations on the
candidates, selection criteria and procedure in respect of the
Company's directors and senior management.

The Company follows a formal, fair and transparent procedure for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The Nomination
Committee reviews the structure, size and composition of the Board,
identifies suitable candidates if necessary and makes recommendations
to the Board. The director nomination policy sets out the approach
and procedures the Board adopts for the nomination and selection of
directors of the Company including the appointment of additional
directors, replacement of directors, and re-election of directors. Below
are details of the selection criteria and nomination process and
procedures as set out in the director nomination policy.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

In the determination of the suitability of a candidate, the Nomination
Committee shall consider the potential contribution such candidate
can dedicate to the Board in terms of his or her qualifications, skills,
experience, independence, age, culture, ethnicity and gender diversity
etc. The Nomination Committee shall consider the following selection
criteria and such other factors that it may consider appropriate for a
directorship, including but not limited to: (a) attributes complementary
to the Board, (b) business experience, board expertise and skills, (c)
availability, (d) motivation, (e) integrity, (f) independence and (g)
diversity (in all aspects).

For the appointment of new and replacement directors, if the Board
determines that an additional or replacement director is required, it
will deploy multiple channels for identifying suitable director candidates,
including referral from directors, shareholders, management, advisors
of the Company and executive search firms. Upon compilation and
interview of the list of potential candidates, the Nomination Committee
will make recommendation to the Board based on the selection criteria
and such other factors that it considers appropriate. The Board has the
final authority on determining suitable director candidate for
appointment.

For the re-election of directors, where a retiring director, being eligible,
offers himself for re-election, the Board shall consider and, if consider
appropriate, recommend such retiring director to stand for re-election
at a general meeting. A circular containing the requisite information on
such retiring director will be sent to shareholders prior to a general
meeting in accordance with the Listing Rules.

For nomination of directors by shareholders, such nominating
shareholder must follow the “Procedures for shareholder(s) of the
Company proposing a person for election as a director” which is
available on the Company’s website.

In any event, the Board shall ensure that the nomination, re-election
and/or appointment of the directors shall be conducted in compliance
with the Listing Rules, the memorandum and articles of association of
the Company and all other applicable laws, rules and regulations.

For further details, please refer to the nomination policy that is
available on the Company’s website.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee shall convene at least one meeting each
year. In 2021, the Nomination Committee convened one meeting. The
Nomination Committee reviewed the structure, size and composition
of the Board, recommended the Board on the list of retiring directors
for re-election at the AGM on 15 June 2021 in accordance with the
director nomination policy and Board diversity policy of the Company,
and reviewed the independence of all independent non-executive
directors. The Nomination Committee recommended the Board on
nomination of retiring directors for re-election in accordance with the
director nomination policy and Board diversity policy of the Company.
The attendance record of the meeting is set out on a named basis on
page 19.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a Board diversity policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. The Board diversity policy
is available on the website of the Company.

The Company recognises that increasing diversity at the Board level
will support the attainment of the Company’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Company seeks to achieve Board
diversity through the consideration of a number of factors, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and other qualities.
The Company will also take into consideration its own business model
and specific needs from time to time in determining the optimal
composition of the Board. The Nomination Committee will review the
Board diversity policy, as appropriate, to ensure its continued
effectiveness from time to time.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 15 directors. Three
of them are females. One third of the Board members are independent
non-executive directors, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The composition of the Board reflects the
necessary balance of skills, professional experience and knowledge for
effective leadership of the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY (Continued)

The Nomination Committee, after taking into account the business
model of the Group, believes that the existing Board is adequate in
terms of size, diversity and composition that are appropriate to
facilitate effective decision making. The Nomination Committee also
believes that each existing Board member possesses diverse skills and
experience required for an effective Board and the Board collectively
possesses core competencies necessary for the effective functioning of
the Board and an informed decision-making process. The Board
believes that board diversity is beyond just about gender diversity and
embraces various factors such as a need for persons from different
backgrounds, skill sets, experiences and competencies for a better
Board performance. The Board will continue to evaluate and monitor
the implementation of the appropriateness and effectiveness of the
board diversity policy to ensure that it remains fit for purpose and
aligns with the Group's businesses, strategies and objectives, such
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives, in addition to independent judgments provided by our
independent non-executive directors.

Currently, women employees form 31.1% of the Group's workforce and
24.5% of its middle or above managerial level. All employees are
treated equally regardless of gender, nationality, age, race or religion.
The recruitment procedures are impartial and non-discriminative and
each candidate is selected on the basis of objective criteria such as
skills, experience or competency. The Board is of the view that the
current gender ratio in the workforce is appropriate to the
development of the Group.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is solely responsible for evaluating and determining the
nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Group's strategic objectives, and ensuring the Group has established
and maintained appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control system. The Board is also responsible for monitoring
the design, implementation and review on the risk management and
internal control system as carried out by management, while
management has the responsibility to provide confirmation on the
effectiveness of such system. To this end, management continues to
allocate resources for a risk management and internal control system
compatible with the COSO (Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission) standards to provide reasonable, though
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss and to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure in the operating system
of the Group and in achieving business objectives of the Group.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has continuously monitored
and annually reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's risk
management and internal control system, and the Board is of the view
that the existing risk management and internal control system is
sufficient, effective and adequate. The review covered all material
aspects with regard to control, including financial control, operational
control and compliance control during the reporting period. The
internal audit reports submitted to the Audit Committee by the Group
also cover aspects of risk management and internal control. The Board
is not aware of any significant areas of concern which may affect the
Shareholders, and believes that the Group has fully complied with the
code provisions on internal controls, including compliance with legal
and regulatory requirements, as set forth in the Code. The Board,
through the appraisal performed by the Audit Committee, reviewed,
ensured and confirmed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programs received by the staff and budget of
the Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting function
at the Board meeting. In light of the Group's nature of business and
the recommendations on the Board's role in risk management, the
Group has developed risk management system and policies, and
established a risk management project team, which is responsible for
the Group's risk management, to communicate and assess the Group's
risk profile and material risks, and track the progress of mitigation plans
and activities of material risks and report on detailed examinations of
specific risks as required.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERME

RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM REkERASER

The Group has established a comprehensive organisation structure to  RNEBDEY —EXSHNAMBEE  HWAREEHR
manage the risks encountered by the Group. The risk management E%HEBETEIR - th BB EG EIERE
structure of China Lesso comprised of two key factors: risk BEMEBREZ : B EIEEENRRGEIERR

management structure and risk management program. 3 o
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A) RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (A)

Regulatory Organisation

The Board is responsible for the effectiveness of the overall risk

management

° determine the overall objective, risk appetites and risk
tolerance for corporate risk management, and approve risk
management strategies, major risk mitigation solutions and
risk management measures;

o comprehend and manage each major risk faced by the
enterprise and its existing management situations, and
make effective risks management decisions; approve the
decision-making standards and mechanisms regarding
major operating decisions, major risks, major events and
major business processes;

° approve risk management report related to major decisions;
and

° approve the annual comprehensive risk management
report.

Risk Management Organisation

The Audit Committee, the highest risk management organisation

in the Company which is accountable to the Board

o review the establishment and planning of the comprehensive
risk management system;

° review the proposal on the structure of the risk management
organisations and their responsibilities;

° review the annual comprehensive risk management report
and submit to the Board;

° review risk management strategies, major risk management
solutions and risk management measures; and

° review the annual risk management work plan.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

(Continued)

(A)

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued) (A)

Leading Risk Management Organisation

Risk management project team, the leading risk management

organisation

° responsible for the establishment and amendment of the
Company's risk management policies and mechanisms;

o formulate and submit annual risk management work plan to
the Board and the Audit Committee for their review;

° regularly collect first-hand information regarding risk
management, carry out risk assessment and discuss major
risks as faced by the Company; and

. assess the soundness, reasonability and the effectiveness in
implementing the risk management system, and review the
annual comprehensive risk management report, risk
management strategies and day-to-day risk management
solutions.

Risk Implementation Organisation

Each functional department of the Company shall accept the
coordination and monitoring carried out by the risk management
project team

o implement the basic process in risk management;

o consider and propose decision-making standards or
mechanisms regarding major operating decisions, major
risks, major events and major business processes of the
functional department;

o analyse and propose risk assessment report of the
functional department;

° properly carry out risk management work of the functional
department; and

o establish a comprehensive risk management process of the
functional department.
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RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM
(Continued)

(A)

34

RISK MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE (Continued)
Risk Supporting Organisation

Internal control team

assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal control plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

centrally organise or, together with related functional
departments, design, amend or improve internal control
documents in accordance with risk management solutions;

assist the risk management project team to inspect,
examine, evaluate and improve the implementation of risk
management in each functional departments and operating
units; and

assist the timely rectification and improvements to existing
deficiencies of each functional department based on the
findings in the internal audit report.

Internal audit department

assist the Group's risk management work, and formulate
internal audit plan in accordance with the result of risk
assessment;

carry out measures including walk-through test and
analytical review to evaluate the effectiveness in risk
management; and

after carrying out internal audit, deliver the auditing results

to internal control team and risk management project team
timely.
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N R S oA
PERERWE
RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION SYSTEM BEREREASER@®
(Continued)
(B) RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAM (B) EfEERERX
The Group has established a comprehensive risk management AEFEDEY —ETEMNRBEEREN &
program which is led by the risk management project team and BRaEREIRER AEE - NEPMAE
implemented with the assistance of the internal audit department AT - RRERERNOT ¢
and internal control team. The risk management program is as
follows:
(@)  to collect first-hand information for risk management; (@) EREBEFE—FEFUWE
(b) to analyse and assess risks; (o) ARSI
() to propose risk management strategies and form risk (0 IRLEREHEREE - WEARREIE
management solutions; and fRRTE D R
(d) to supervise the implementation of risk management works d) HEEBBEURMREREIEERER
performed by each business units and verify the overall EITEE MAZEHBMEHE -
score.
Key Corporate Risk Management Program FECEARERRN
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SUPERVISION AND ENHANCEMENT OF RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Group has set up basic procedures that cover the whole process
of risk management, connecting the channels of communication of risk
management information along the reporting lines and among various
departments and business units to ensure the timely, accurate and
complete communication of information and this has laid the
foundation for the supervision and enhancement of risk management.

The senior management of the Group, focusing on material risks,
material matters and material decisions, important management
matters and the business flow, supervises the work relating to the first-
hand information collection for risk management, risk assessment, risk
management strategies, critical control activities and the
implementation of risk management solutions. The risk management
project team carries out an annual review and examination on the
implementation of the works on risk management by different
departments and business units and its effectiveness for the year,
assesses risk management strategies and evaluates inter-departmental
risk management solutions and business units’ risk management
solutions, proposes suggestions for adjustments and improvements
and issues evaluation and recommendation reports which will be sent
to the relevant senior management in a timely manner.

MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE

The material risks that the Group may face which include macro-
economic risks, risks of inappropriate strategies for market
competition, risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price, risks of
adjustments of policies in relation to the environmental protection,
economy and industry, cybersecurity risks, risks of the coronavirus
disease ("COVID-19"), and climate change risks.

The potential risks of macro-economic risks arise from the effects of
macro-economy’s volatility and the pressure of inflation. The Group's
corresponding measures on risk management include reviewing the
management strategies and mechanism for macro-economic risks;
reviewing the relevant mechanism on the collection of intelligence
about the changes in the external macro-economic environment;
clearly defining the macro-economic risk analysis session; analysing,
reviewing, adjusting and improving the strategies for managing macro-
economic risks in future.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE
(Continued)

The potential risks of inappropriate strategies for market competition
arise from the risks involved in the formulation of competition
strategies and risks involved in the collection of clients’ information.
The Group’s risk management measures include reviewing the
management mechanism for market competition strategies; analysing
the Company’s position in market competition, reviewing the
corresponding market competition strategies; and timely devising and
reviewing the management strategies in response to the changes in
the market competition environment and submitting report thereon to
management; collecting the market competition information of new
products and offering suggestions on competition strategies.

The potential risks of the fluctuation of raw materials price arise
because the price of key raw materials purchased by the Company is
easily affected by the shortfall of refining capabilities, changes in
manufacturers’ power and labour cost structure, changes in the price
of resins made from coal and petrochemicals. The Group's risk
management measures include clearly stating the risk management
strategies and mechanism for the fluctuation of raw materials price in
the relevant systems; collecting information in relation to the
fluctuation of raw materials price and releasing such information
internally through an established channel; regularly reporting and
analysing the fluctuation of raw materials price; clearly defining the
analysis session for the increased risks of fluctuation of raw materials
price; analysing, reviewing, adjusting and improving the management
strategies for the risks of fluctuation of raw materials price.

The potential risks of adjustments of policies in relation to the
environmental protection, economy and industry arise from the risks of
adjustments of environmental policies; risks of adjustments of
urbanisation policies; risks of adjustments of construction projects of
significant water works including water saving and water supplies; risks
of adjustments of real estate policies. The Group's risk management
measures include reviewing the management strategies and
mechanism for risks involved in the adjustments of policies in relation
to the environmental protection, economy and industry; collecting
information in relation to changes in environmental protection,
economy and industry policies and releasing such information internally
through an established channel; reviewing the mechanism for
monitoring and collecting the information on laws and regulations that
affect the industry.
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MATERIAL RISKS THE GROUP MAY FACE
(Continued)

The potential risks of cybersecurity risks arise from two aspects: on the
one hand, the vulnerability of networks to different kinds of cyber
attacks because of its own security defects; on the other hand, external
and internal risks of the Group. External risks mainly represent
intentional or unintentional damage and threats from outsiders, such
as malicious attacks by “hackers”, illegal interception of network data
and transmission of computer viruses. Internal risks mainly include
misuse or abuse of critical and sensitive information, theft, intentional
or unintentional disclosure of confidential information by employees.
The Group’s corresponding measures on risk management include
establishing online permissions; developing and using software for
communication within the Group; establishing two sites and three
centers and implementing dual-active and duplication of intra-city and
inter-city data centre; and strengthening development in four areas:
environment, data, terminals and cybersecurity.

The potential risks of COVID-19 arise from the impact of
macroeconomic fluctuations and the uncertainties in resumption of
work and production of upstream and downstream enterprises. Due to
the outbreak of the COVID-19, various industries suspended work and
production and many enterprises are facing the risk of interruption of
capital flow and suffering hardship. It has also brought a negative
impact on foreign trade, thus dragging down the economy of the PRC.
The Group's corresponding measures include providing guidelines for
epidemic prevention and control and resumption of work,
strengthening employees’ awareness of prevention and control, and
enabling resumption of work and production in an active and orderly
manner; continually promoting full automation of production bases;
paying close attention to the needs of various areas in epidemic
prevention, and assuming corporate social responsibility, supporting
the construction of epidemic prevention hospitals in all provinces and
regions across the country and making in-kind donations.

Climate change risks are a kind of compound risk in the global risk
society. This risk can be classified into economic risk, political risk,
social risk, and ecological risk, etc. The Group's corresponding
measures on risk management include improving environmental
management, practicing green operations, improving the efficiency of
use of energy resources, exercising strict management on waste
discharge in the production and operation process, actively
transmitting the concept of green development to the public, and
building a green operation roadmap to the harmonious coexistence of
enterprises and the environment.
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MANAGEMENT OF INSIDE INFORMATION

The Group has formulated a set of program of continuing obligations
on information management and disclosure to formally regulate the
monitoring of inside information that arises during the course of its
current business development and has established the practice of
delivering such information to shareholders, the media and analysts.
When the Group handles the relevant matters, it will comply with
“Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the
Securities and Futures Commission and the related provisions issued
by regulatory organisations and the Group has clearly stated that the
unauthorised use of confidential or inside information is prohibited.
The Group has a system of answering enquiries about the Group's
matters by external parties, and has appointed and authorised the
senior executives of the Group to act as the Company'’s spokesperson
in response to enquiries on a particular area.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Group is committed to an open and transparent culture and has
formulated a “whistleblowing policy” whereby employees can report
any matters to the anti-fraud control unit in confidence by sending
anonymous electronic mails or letters to the designated address.
According to the type of each reported case, the case will be
submitted to the relevant departments for investigation and reported
to the Audit Committee to ensure fair treatment towards relevant
matters. Such matters include misconduct, irregular conduct or fraud
regarding financial matters and accounting practices. This policy
encourages employees to raise concerns without fear of being
accused. Any Shareholder or stakeholder can also report similar
concerns in writing or verbally in confidence to the anti-fraud control
unit.

DIVIDENDS POLICY

The declaration, payment and amount of dividends will be subject to
the Company’s discretion. Dividends may be paid only out of its
distributable reserves as permitted under the relevant laws. The
Company has adopted a general dividend policy of declaring and
paying dividends on a semi-annual basis of around 30% of its profit
attributable to the owners of the Company. The Board would review
the Company’s dividend policy from time to time considering factors
including but not limited to debt covenants, capital investment and
business plan.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no change to the
memorandum of association of the Company and Articles. The latest
memorandum of association of the Company and Articles are available
on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS
AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Act (as revised). However, pursuant to the Articles, the
Shareholder(s) may request for the convening of extraordinary general
meetings following the procedures below:

° Any two or more Shareholder(s) or any one Shareholder which is
a recognised clearing house (or its nominee(s)) may request for
the convening of extraordinary general meetings by written
requisition deposited at the principal office of the Company in
Hong Kong or, in the event the Company ceases to have such a
principal office, the registered office. The requisition shall specify
the object of the meeting and be signed by the requisitionist(s),
and such requisitionist(s) must hold as at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at the general
meeting of the Company.

o The Board shall proceed to convene the extraordinary general

meeting within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition.
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THE SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (Continued)

CONVENING OF EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETINGS
AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS AT
SHAREHOLDERS' MEETING (Continued)

J If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of
the requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held
within a further 21 days, the requisitionist(s) themselves or any of
them representing more than one-half of the total voting rights
of all of them, may convene the extraordinary general meeting in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in which the
meeting may be convened by the Board provided that any
meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration of
three months from the date of deposit of the requisition. All
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.

J An extraordinary general meeting called for the passing of a
special resolution shall be called by not less than 21 days’ notice
in writing and any other extraordinary general meeting shall be
called by not less than 14 days’ notice in writing. The notice of
the meeting shall specify the time, place, and agenda of the
meeting, particulars of the resolutions to be considered and in
the case of special business, the general nature of that business.

o Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director are available on the Company’s website.

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING THE SHAREHOLDERS'
ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

The Shareholders may put forward their enquiries about the Company
to the Board at the Company's principal place of business in Hong
Kong or by email or through the Company’s investor relations whose
contact details are provided in the “Corporate Information” section of
this report. In addition, the Shareholders can contact Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, the Company’s branch share
registrar, if they have any enquiries about their shareholdings and
entitlements to dividend.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERME

RELATIONSHIP WITH INVESTORS AND THE
SHAREHOLDERS

The Company endeavours to maintain a high level of transparency in
communication with the Shareholders and investors in general.
Communication between the Company and the Shareholders is
conducted through various channels, including interim and annual
reports, information published on the websites of the Stock Exchange
and the Company and general meetings. The Company encourages
the Shareholders to attend the Company’s general meetings. The
Group's financial and other information is also published on the
website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the website of
the Company (www.lesso.com).

The Company'’s senior management endeavours to maintain an open
dialogue channel with the investment sector to ensure they have a
thorough understanding of the Company and its operations and
strategies. The Company has emphasised the importance of the
function of investor relations, engaged a dedicated independent third
party to maintain investor relations and conduct investor/analyst
meetings from time to time and led investors and analysts to visit its
plants.

As regards to investor relations, the Group will actively conduct
activities related to investor relations in the future to strengthen its
corporate responsibility so that global investors can have an adequate
knowledge and understanding of the Company's operating strategy,
financial performance and development prospects. The Company will
actively develop and maintain close relationship with investors, analysts
and media to achieve sound investor relations management.

The Company applies the principle of a quiet period in its investor
relations communications. During a quiet period, the Company does
not comment on market prospects or factors affecting business and
performance, or engage in discussion on events or trends related to
the reporting period. The Company will not initiate any meeting or
conference call with public in which these matters are discussed. A
quiet period starts at 60 days or 30 days prior to the disclosure of
annual results or interim results respectively, and lasts until the
announcement of the annual results or the interim results.
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China Lesso Group Holdings Limited (Stock Code of Hong Kong Stock
Exchange: 2128) is a leading large-scale industrial group that
manufactures piping and building materials in mainland China. China
Lesso is one of the constituent stocks of the Hang Seng Composite
MidCap Index and MSCI China index and is a stock eligible for trading
through the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s Stock Connect. After more
than 35 years of rapid development, the Group has evolved into a
leader in the industry of building materials and home improvement. It
provides high-quality products and services such as plastic piping,
building materials and home improvement, environmental protection,
and operates a supply chain service platform.

Currently, the Group has established over 30 advanced production
bases in 18 provinces of China and in foreign countries. The Group has
established a nationwide sales network and has also developed long-
term strategic partnerships with 2,603 independent and exclusive first-
tier distributors that enable timely and efficient supply of
comprehensive, quality products and professional services to
customers. As an integrated manufacturer of a comprehensive range of
piping and building materials, China Lesso provides over 10,000 types
of quality products, which are widely applied to such fields as home
improvement, civil architecture, municipal water supply, drainage,
electric power transmission, telecommunication, gas supply, fire
services, environmental protection, agriculture and marine aquaculture.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R wm Mo

MARKET OVERVIEW

In 2021, the Covid-19 pandemic persisted. Although large-scale
vaccination plans have helped to contain the outbreak, frequent
mutations of the virus continued to affect the global economy, society,
and livelihood. Nevertheless, China still led the rest of the world in
economic development and the prevention and control of the
pandemic, meeting the targets in major indicators, despite
complicated domestic and international conditions amid the recurrent
pandemic outbreaks. In 2021, the gross domestic product in China
grew by 8.1% year on year. Although the overall economy continued to
recover steadily, the growth slowed down quarter on quarter under the
mounting downward pressure. In fact, the Chinese economy
experienced two contrary situations during 2021 — progress towards
recovery in the export-oriented economy in the first half of the year
and the severe challenges posed by the soaring global commodity
prices, disruption to the global supply chain, insufficient domestic
power supply, recurrent outbreaks of the Covid-19 pandemic in many
different places of the country, and the debt crisis of the domestic
property sector in the second half of the year.

In 2021, the Chinese government started “14th Five-year Plan” by
focusing on the development of the "New Infrastructure, New
Urbanisation Initiatives and Major Projects”. For instance, it vigorously
fostered the development of the digital economy by extending the
scope of application of the 5G telecommunications technology,
pressed on with urban renewal by redeveloping old urban
communities, and forged ahead with major transportation and water
conservancy projects such as railway and gorge dam projects. Such
government initiatives added new impetus to social and economic
development, and are also expected to drive the consistent, steady
growth in the infrastructure construction and pipeline industries.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET OVERVIEW (Continued)

Previously, Economic Work Conference of the Central Committee of the
Communist Party of China (the “Conference”) proposed that stability
must be prioritised while progress is being pursued in the economic work
in 2022. Therefore, at the beginning of 2022, the market continued to
heighten its expectation of steady growth in infrastructure construction.
The market generally anticipates that the implementation of infrastructure
projects in 2022 will become significantly faster than in 2021 and that the
“new infrastructure” will become a growth driver in the year. Furthermore,
the Conference proposed that during the “14th Five-Year Plan”, pipeline
reconstruction and construction must be regarded as an important
infrastructure project. Subsequently, the government issued a number of
policies on the construction of underground pipeline and water
conservancy projects. The market expects that investment in the pipeline
networks during the “14th Five-Year Plan” can exceed RMB1.4 trillion.
Specifically, renovation of urban pipeline networks is expected to drive
the demand for pipelines in municipal services such as the supply of
water, electricity, gas and heat, thus expanding the water pipeline
renovation market to RMB19.1 billion and the gas pipeline renovation
(including construction) market to RMB60.6 billion. This development can
generate huge and stable demand in the pipeline market.

In addition, in order to tackle climate change, the government has set
targets for the “3060" initiative whereby it strives to achieve carbon
emissions peak by 2030 and carbon neutrality by 2060. Now that the
“green ecology” has been made one of the five major indicators of the
national development in China’s “14th Five-Year Plan”, the
environmental protection and photovoltaic sectors have a bright
prospect.

Since the second half of 2020, PRC government has introduced a series
of macroeconomic control policies, such as Three Red Lines on the
balance sheet of enterprises, commercial banks’ management of the
degree of concentration of loans on certain industries or enterprises,
and the centralised tender, auction and listing-for-sale of urban lands.
The implementation of these new policies has made it difficult for real
estate developers to raise funds. Some of them faced the risk of
defaulting on their debts due to liquidity problems in the financing
cycle. As a result, the real estate market came to a grinding halt. To
cope with the situation, the PRC government will adjust its regulatory
policies towards the real estate market. The Conference reiterated the
adherence to the principle that “Houses are for living in, not for
speculation” and also proposed “promoting a healthy cycle and
healthy development of the real estate industry”. It is expected that
under the guidance of these policies, the real estate market will
gradually recover after the law of the-survival-of-the-fittest
consolidation. This can bring a stable demand to the building materials
and home improvement industry.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE &

MARKET OVERVIEW (Continued)

In addition, the Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development
issued the “14th Five-Year Plan for the Development of the
Construction Industry” in early 2022, which requires that by 2025,
prefabricated buildings shall account for more than 30% of new
buildings. With the expansion of the industry, the cost of prefabricated
buildings may gradually decrease with economies of scale. There will
be great development opportunities for the green and prefabricated
construction industry, and there will be an increasing demand for
prefabricated construction products and construction equipment in the
market, bringing growth potential for the building materials and home
improvement industry.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

In 2021, the start of the “14th Five-Year Plan” coincided with the 35th
anniversary of China Lesso. To take on challenges and grasp
opportunities arising from the new prospect under the changing
market conditions, the Group upholds the philosophy of “deepening
industrial development, seizing opportunities with prudence, creating
internal and external favourable conditions, and making steady
progress”. Therefore, it continues to make great progress in industrial
upgrade, digital upgrade, and brand upgrade. This not only enhances
its advantages in the rapid development, but also bolsters its position
as an industry leader. Over the past year, China Lesso has earned
recognitions in the industry and community by receiving various annual
honours and awards, including: “Best Green Syndicated Loan” Award
in "The Asset Triple A Sustainable Capital Markets Awards 2021" from
The Asset, a leading international finance journal, as well as the 32nd
spot among the list of “2021 Hurun China’s Top 100 Sustainable Private
Enterprises” for the first time. The accolades testify to China Lesso’s
long-term fulfilment of social responsibility and its comprehensive
contribution to green operation and sustainable development. For the
year of 2021, the Group was on the list of “China’s Top 500 Brand
Value” for the eight consecutive years. Meanwhile, the Group won
various honours, including the “2021 Listed Company with the Highest
Investment Value in the New Economy of the PRC"”, “2021 Preferred
Brands of Pipe and Fitting Suppliers for Top 500 China Real Estate
Developers by Comprehensive Strength”, “2021 Top Ten Listed
Companies of Supporting Supply Chain for China Real Estate by
Comprehensive Strength”, “2021 Brand Value Communication Award”,
“2021 Top 10 Home Furnishing Brands Trusted by Consumers”, and
“2021 Outstanding Home Furnishing Brand Enterprise”. All the awards
prove China Lesso’s brand value and its strong capabilities of digital
and intelligent manufacturing, scientific research, and innovation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

In pursuing high-quality development, China Lesso has been extending
the scope of its businesses along the value chain of the industry from the
plastic piping systems to building materials and home improvement.
Now it has covered many businesses such as piping systems, building
materials and home improvement, environmental protection, agricultural
application and supply chain service platforms. To give the increasingly
enriched connotation of China Lesso’s brand full play in line with its
increasingly optimised business mix, the Group started the strategic
upgrade for its brand at the end of 2021 by revamping its brand
positioning and image, and put forward a new slogan “Envisioning the
Better, Building the Future”. These efforts indicated the core idea of the
Group's upgrade, which not only focuses on the brand itself, but also
closely connects to social development. By adhering to the brand values
of "Focusing on Product Quality, Persisting Insisting in Creativity, and
Creating High-Value Products and Services for Society”, the Group fulfils
its brand’s commitment to “Sustaining a Healthy, Scenic Living Space”.
China Lesso has set a clear goal of becoming a global business group
engaged in the businesses of piping and building materials in the future.
It will transform itself into a platform for the ecosystem of the businesses
of producing building materials and home improvement for the
construction of facilities for cultural environment and living space. Such
move will enable the Group to provide green products and services
sustainably for the construction of green buildings that ensure health
and serve as facilities for the cultural environment.

China Lesso’s mission is to “Improve and Enhance the Living Quality”.
Therefore, it proactively fulfils its responsibility as a corporate citizen,
continues to strengthen corporate governance and social responsibility
management, makes innovative management a new engine for
business development, and enhances the control of production
process to reinforce its business foundation. All of these efforts will
contribute to sustainable urban development.

Considering that environmental protection becomes a major issue
facing the society in the midst of the rapid economic and social
development, the Group has formulated a number of comprehensive
environmental management systems, conducted the environmental
management of the whole business process that encompasses
research, development and production, and takes great effort to carry
out environmental monitoring. The Group continues to improve
environmental management, responds actively to climate change,
builds green factories and creates green products, and improves the
efficiency of resource utilisation. To build a green and natural
ecosystem, the Group takes advantage of its professional strengths to
develop the environmental protection industry and advocate the
concept of environmental protection.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
SEER e

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued) EBBR @)

In the future, China Lesso will continue to actively fulfil its social K3 - BB S EERBGAELTSEF KT
responsibility. The Group will leverage both its scientific research team — BRI BB M A EREE D - BIBE MR ITAIFT T
and advantages in manufacturing to innovate its product technology RS TAREBAIISERE - ARERFEERIFTMKE -
with the aim of championing the green and sustainable urban

development and sustaining a healthy and scenic environment.

Revenue by Region* WA EE S
Revenue % of total revenue

KA fERKA %
2021 2020 2021 2020

RMB million  RMB million
ARBEER ARWBER

Southern China R 17,036 15,215 12.0% 53.1% 54.2%
Southwestern China i3] 2,968 2,860 3.8% 9.3% 10.2%
Central China HEh 3,380 3,009 12.3% 10.5% 10.7%
Eastern China HEH 2,338 1,885 24.0% 7.3% 6.7%
Northern China =i 2,667 2,133 25.0% 8.3% 7.6%
Northwestern China [iipig 1,635 1,425 14.7% 5.1% 5.1%
Northeastern China &k 912 757 20.5% 2.9% 2.7%
Outside China FREE A 1,122 789 42.3% 3.5% 2.8%
Total st 32,058 28,073 14.2% 100.0% 100.0%

#

¢ BiENEEBE BN G BIRARME4 -

Details of the scope of coverage of each region are set out in note 4 to consolidated

financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the number of the Group’s H ZE2021F 128318 FE AEER2ESE
independent and exclusive first-tier distributors across the country M HYB B R — 4% 4535 7 BB 8 = 2,603 4 (2020
increased to 2,603 (2020: 2,397). Southern China remained the Group’s % : 2,397 %) - NEBEMN T EMHEE AFEERT
major revenue-contributing market, whose revenue accounted for 35 ' REZERM T HE AL E LA A 53.1% (2020
53.1% of the Group's total revenue (2020: 54.2%), while the revenue & : 54.2%) + E b [E FY UL AAE EE A 46.9% (2020
from other regions accounted for 46.9% (2020: 45.8%). F :45.8%) °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

Revenue by Business Unit

2021

RMB million
ARBBET

EBER (®)
WA BB E S

Revenue
A
2020
RMB million
AREBET

S EREN S

% of total revenue
1EBWA %

2021 2020

Plastic piping systems BREERSR 27,457 24,512 12.0% 85.6% 87.3%
Building materials and BYRE

home improvement 2,751 1,997 37.8% 8.6% 7.1%
Others’ Hipt 1,850 1,564 18.3% 5.8% 5.6%
Total BT 32,058 28,073 14.2% 100.0% 100.0%
# “Others” include businesses of environmental engineering and other related # [Efh | BIFBE TR RHMBBERE SRRBELREM

services, financial services and others.

To capitalise on a continued recovery in China’s economy in 2021, China
Lesso adhered to its initial aspiration to create a relaxing life for dwellers,
seized opportunities with prudence and actively responded to the
national policies, such as supply-side reform and dual circulation
economic model in which the country focuses on the domestic market
and, at the same time, remains open to international trade and
investment. The Group adopted a prudent development strategy by
steadily developing its core business of plastic piping systems and, at
the same time, by actively expanding its other various businesses,
including the businesses of building materials and home improvement,
environmental protection, agricultural application and supply chain
services platform. This can enable the Group to achieve robust
development and synergistic growth in its various business segments.

The Group achieved growth in overall revenue despite a number of
unfavourable happenings such as the recurring Covid-19 pandemic at
home and abroad and the multiple outbreaks of the pandemic in the
second half of the year, the state’s tightening regulation of the real
estate industry, the collapse of some real estate enterprises in the fourth
quarter, the debt crisis in the property sector, the environmental policy
on attaining carbon emission peak and carbon neutrality, limitations on
use of electricity and production, and rising prices of energy and raw
materials. The Group's revenue increased by 14.2% to RMB32,058 million
(2020: RMB28,073 million). Gross profit increased by 0.8% to RMB8,448
million (2020: RMB8,384 million) and gross profit margin was 26.4% (2020:
29.9%) mainly due to the Group was not able to fully adjust the product
selling prices at the same rate of the dramatically increase in raw material
costs and fluctuations in production costs in the second half of 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEE &

BUSINESS OVERVIEW (Continued)

The Group strived to maximise the benefits from economies of scale
by continuing to promote production automation and smart
manufacturing, actively upgrading production technology and
equipment and by controlling the cost of raw materials and production
with an effective procurement strategy. In addition, the Group
sustained growth in business and maintained its profitability at a
healthy level by enhancing its operational efficiency, optimising its
product portfolio and increasing its market share.

As at 31 December 2021, the total accounts receivables between the
Group and certain customers in the property sector was RMB1,672
million, of which trade and bills receivables, and loan receivables
amounted to RMB1,366 million and RMB306 million, respectively. The
Group has reached agreements with one of the customers in relation
to use of its properties as guarantees for partial settlement of its debt
equivalent to RMB543 million. The management of the Company has
performed recoverability assessment on receivables for these
customers as at 31 December 2021, and believed that an impairment
on credit losses of RMB1,129 million shall be provided correspondingly.

During the reporting period, the Group’s EBITDA decreased by 7.7%
to RMBS5,720 million (2020: RMB6,195 million), and the EBITDA margin
was 17.8% (2020: 22.1%). Profit before tax decreased by 19.9% to
RMB3,807 million (2020: RMB4,754 million). Net profit margin was 9.4%
(2020: 13.4%). Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased
by 18.8% to RMB3,044 million (2020: RMB3,751 million). The decrease
in profit was mainly attributable to factors such as the impairment
provision for the Group's receivables from customers in the property
sector and the increase in the consolidated cost of products due to
significant price fluctuations of raw materials and energy. Basic
earnings per share was RMB0.99 (2020: RMB1.22). The effective tax rate
was 20.7% (2020: 21.0%).

To express gratitude to the Shareholders for their support and to share
with them the fruits of the Group's endeavours, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK26 cents per share
for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK38 cents per share).
Together with the interim dividend, the dividend for the year in 2021
was HK38 cents per share.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS

In 2021, on the back of the recovery in the domestic economy, the
production and operation of enterprises in the PRC were recovering
steadily and the manufacturing industry showed resilience and
strength. This indicated the growing momentum of the domestic
economic recovery. Leveraging its industry-leading innovation
capability and scale of operation, the Group has capitalised on the
state’s dual circulation economic model and pressed ahead with
technological innovation so as to actively develop new products and
technologies to satisfy the market's needs. By grasping the
opportunities arising from the Chinese government’s initiatives in the
“New Infrastructure, New Urbanisation Initiatives and Major Projects”
and economic stimulus package, the Group further expanded the
market share of its plastic piping system business and maintained its
steady growth, so as to consolidate its leading position in the industry.
During the year, the Group was committed to optimising its customer
portfolio, and further shifted its focus from private engineering and
construction projects to projects led by state-owned enterprises and
municipal governments which had stronger demand.

Revenue by Region
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Revenue % of revenue
A 1 ONA
2021 2020 2021
RMB million RMB million
AREEET AREAETL
Southern China Ecdea) 14,106 12,994 8.6% 51.4% 53.0%
Other than Southern China ER MR 12,590 11,084 13.6% 45.8% 45.2%
Outside China FEBESN 761 434 75.6% 2.8% 1.8%
Total st 27,457 24,512 12.0% 100.0% 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

=R

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)
Revenue by Product Application

¥KEIFEERE @

BREBERS (8
WA 12 fm FEFE &) 7

Revenue % of revenue
A HEBA %
2021 2020 2021
RMB million RMB million
ARKBET ARBBEER
Water supply (2% 10,358 9458 9.5% 37.7% 38.6%
Drainage HEk 10,386 9,322 11.4% 37.8% 38.0%
Power supply and BB SEA
telecommunications 4,801 4,207 14.1% 17.5% 17.2%
Gas transmission PRR B 473 418 13.1% 1.7% 1.7%
Others’ Hb# 1,439 1,107 30.0% 5.3% 4.5%
Total Mt 27,457 24,512 12.0% 100.0% 100.0%
# “Others” include agricultural applications, floor heating and fire services. # [His ] BIEER - 12 KO -

RER - BREERFEFRRFAFE  ERIFE -
IR AR FIEIN12.0%E AR 274.5718 7T (20204F -
ANRBE24512187L) - (A AR EH B A #85.6%
(20204 : 87.3%) °

During the year, the plastic piping systems business continued to grow
on the back of its stable performance, with revenue increased by 12.0%
to RMB27,457 million (2020: RMB24,512 million), accounting for 85.6%
of the total revenue of the Group (2020: 87.3%).

BREmYHE 7K FHIERE - EBRKASE

Average Selling Price, Sales Volume, and Revenue by Product

Material
Average selling price Sales volume Revenue
T4ER #E KA
2020 2020 2021 2020
RVB Tonne Change ~ RMBmillion ~ RMB million
ARH ] £#9 AR%EEn ARWEER

PVC products PVCER 9,143 7,781 17.5% 1,853,687 1.957,868 (5.3)% 16,949 15,234 11.3%
Non-PVCproducts'  FPVCER* 15,118 14,250 61% 695,068 651,090 68% 10,508 9,278 13.3%
Total ) 10,773 9,39 14.7% 2,548,755 2,608,958 (2.3)% 27,457 4512 120%
# “Non-PVC" plastic pipes and pipe fittings mainly refer to those made of PE or PP-R. # [FEPVC] BRIE BN EHFTZRPESHPPRE -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

The sales of the Group's plastic pipes and pipe fittings were affected
to a certain extent by the significant increase in raw material prices and
price fluctuations, as well as the slowdown in the implementation of
certain infrastructure projects in the second half of the year. During the
year, sales volume of the plastic piping systems decreased by 2.3%. In
terms of product materials, sales volume of PVC products decreased
by 5.3% to 1,853,687 tonnes (2020: 1,957,868 tonnes), while that of non-
PVC products increased by 6.8% to 695,068 tonnes (2020: 651,090
tonnes). Revenue from sales of PVC products and non-PVC products
increased by 11.3% to RMB16,949 million (2020: RMB15,234 million)
and 13.3% to RMB10,508 million (2020: RMB9,278 million) respectively.

During the reporting period, despite the huge fluctuations in raw
material prices, the Group continued to take advantage of its
economies of scale and implement effective procurement strategy to
actively control the costs of raw materials and manufacturing, as well as
made reasonable price adjustments in a timely manner in order to
maintain its gross profit margin at a reasonable level. The Group
increased the average selling price of its plastic piping system by 14.7%
to RMB10,773 per tonne (2020: RMB9,395 per tonne). The gross profit
margin of its plastic piping system business was 25.9% (2020: 30.2%).

Intelligent manufacturing is not only one of the driving forces for the
high quality development of the manufacturing industry, but also a way
forward for the pipeline industry. As a leader in the pipeline industry,
China Lesso has actively responded to the requirements of the national
strategy of “Made in China 2025”, and seized the development
opportunities presented by the state’s “New Infrastructure” initiative.
With the advantages of the immense capacity and wide geographical
presence of its production capacity, excellent quality and strong
supporting service capacity, the Group fully implemented automated
and intelligent production by integrating resources from both the
upstream and downstream of the value chain of the industry, and made
use of the loT to upgrade its production facilities to smart factories. In
2021, the Group expanded or constructed more production bases in
Gansu, Sichuan, Jiangxi, Guangdong, Fujian, Xinjiang and Indonesia to
further enhance its overall production capacity. During the reporting
period, the Group's annual designed capacity for manufacturing plastic
piping systems expanded from 3.03 million tonnes at the end of 2020
to 3.20 million tonnes at the end of 2021, and the capacity utilisation
rate during the year was maintained at 81.1%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHHRA

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

In 2021, the Group focused its investment on the construction of an
intelligent high-tech and environmental-friendly production base in
Gansu, which is not only an integral component in the Group's
nationwide strategic business planning, but also a fulcrum of its move
to accelerate the development of the market of northwestern China. It
is expected that the project will be able to generate annual sales of
approximately 100,000 to 150,000 tonnes of plastic piping at full
capacity. In addition, the digital intelligent factory in Guangdong, will
be put into operation, adding strong impetus to the Group's intelligent
manufacturing and high-quality development. That factory also
indicates China Lesso’s commitment to the plastic piping system
business as its primary operation, pursuit of agricultural modernisation,
and the expansion of its business of building materials and home

improvement.

In 2022, the Group will continue to expand existing plants and increase
production facilities, in addition to its plan to construct new production
bases in Guangxi and Gansu. In the future, the Group will continue to
increase investment in exploring and transforming automation and
intelligence application, while accelerating the implementation and
replication of smart factories, which will help the execution of the
national “double carbon” strategy in enterprises, deepen the green
development approach, and expand the array of green industries. Our
product innovation follows the concept of circular economy so as to
enhance the operation and management efficiency of the Group, as
well as reduce costs and improve overall quality.

The Group firmly believes that innovation is the driving force for
corporate development. The Group continues to innovate and develop
its proprietary technology while keeping abreast of the global scientific
research forces. In the future, the Group will continue to invest in
research and development, steadily improve the capability of
technological innovation, and actively transform its business with the
help of intelligent manufacturing. The Group will drive its own
development by enhancing the ecosystem of its businesses throughout
the value chain of the industry and champion the green development
of the industry. All this can further consolidate the Group's position as
an industry leader in the world.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

To keep abreast of market trends, the Group continues to develop new
products and new technologies that satisfy market's demand. As the
stainless-steel pipe products which had been introduced by the Group
earlier have been advertised and have gone into mass production, an
additional production line will be set up in a plant in Foshan in 2022 for
mass production.

During the reporting period, the Group remained committed to
broadening the scope of application of plastic pipes and pipe fittings,
and actively extended it to the agricultural sector. The efforts not only
enriched the Group's income sources, but also expanded its market
share and boosted its sales growth. In 2022, it is expected that the
government will introduce a series of policies to expedite infrastructure
projects, including urban upgrading and redevelopment, the
construction of municipal pipelines, and reform of the rural sewerage
system. The Group also opportunely capitalised on the implementation
of new national policies and infrastructure construction by consistently
expanding the business of plastic piping systems and actively
responding to the national development strategy, thereby giving
strong support to the development of urban infrastructure and projects
on improving people’s livelihood.

As a market leader, the Group kept on seeking prospective business
partners and formed strategic partnerships with a number of different
private enterprises that enable all the parties to complement each
other with their respective advantages and to share information
through in-depth cooperation, and thus achieve synergies among
them. This will enable them to raise the standard of quality of urban
construction in different regions, and is conducive to enriching the
scope of their collaboration. Such strategic partnerships will ultimately
increase the Group’s market share and enhance its competitive
strength in regional markets, thus further consolidating its market
leadership.

On top of continuous and steady expansion of the domestic market,
the Group is actively seeking to develop overseas markets thus
gradually promote the internationalisation of its brand and export
high-quality China-made goods. In view of the characteristics of
overseas markets, the Group has set up overseas sales centres and
established sales sub-teams in 11 countries and regions to develop
overseas markets, making China Lesso known to more overseas
consumers and enhancing the brand awareness overseas. At the same
time, the Group also continued to optimise the overseas supply chain
and promote the localisation of its brands, striving to serve overseas
customers with better and faster experience of procurement.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHHRA

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

PLASTIC PIPING SYSTEMS (Continued)

In order to gradually improve its global presence, the Group is actively
scaling up its overseas production with a focus on the Southeast Asian
market. It will tap into the huge domestic demand of the market and
capitalise on the infrastructure development there. Phase | of the
production base in Indonesia has been put into operation and Phase Il
will be built in 2022 to prepare for the Group's further expansion into
overseas markets. The production base in Cambodia is also
undergoing renovation and is expected to commence production in
the first half of 2022. In addition, the Group has accelerated the
construction of production bases in Thailand, Malaysia, the Philippines
and Bangladesh to continue to enhance the competitiveness and
influence of China Lesso in overseas markets. The Group will also
remain open to potential acquisitions in the market to support further
production capacity expansion overseas. Overall, the management is
fully confident about the future development of the plastic piping
system business and believe that it will continue to perform well.

BUILDING MATERIALS AND HOME IMPROVEMENT

In 2021, China's real estate market experienced a change from strong
performance in the first half of the year to deep adjustment in the
second half of the year, recording “a high first and then a low” in the
transaction volume. In the first half of 2021, China’s economy fully
recovered when the pandemic was brought under control. This led to
the release of the pent-up demand for housing, rendering the property
market bullish. However, provincial and municipal governments
stepped up regulatory policies towards the real estate sector in the
second half of the year, triggering off debt crises of some real estate
developers. This weakened both the supply and demand, causing the
property market to cool down abruptly. To cope with the situation, the
Group has taken active measures to diversify its customer portfolio by
shifting the focus of its business of building materials and home
improvement to supplying its goods to infrastructure projects led by
governments and state-owned enterprise. This move aimed at
generating more stable growth in revenue at that business segment.
During the reporting period, the Group's building materials and home
improvement business recorded revenue of RMB2,751 million,
representing an increase of 37.8% and accounting for 8.6% of the
Group's total revenue. To accelerate the development of this business
segment, the Group actively explored possibilities for collaboration
with various industries. The move not only further broadened the
customer base but also provided a more stable source of revenue for
the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

BUILDING MATERIALS AND HOME IMPROVEMENT
(Continued)

China Lesso acted in line with the trend of the macroeconomy, the
development of the home improvement market and the current
conditions of the real estate industry. It seized and created new
opportunities by giving full play to its advantages such as its well-
developed businesses along the value chain of the industry, supply
chain and scale of operation. The Group has created a new model of
"BBC"” home improvement and established a unique ecosystem of
businesses in the value chain of industry, Specifically the Group has
created a one-stop integrated solution for the supply of all categories
of products for home improvement, with the aim of joining hands with
its distributors and business partners in exploring new business
opportunities in the home improvement sector. In addition, the Group
has also actively set up home improvement boutique stores under
Lesso brand and continues to accelerate its nationwide expansion
through promotional meetings held in Wuhan, Hubei; Shunde,
Guangdong; Changsha, Hunan; Nanchang, Jiangxi; Hefei, Anhui and
Jinan, Shandong. At the same time, it will also provide “Good
Housekeeping (i & )" free value-added services to fully address the
user’s concern for home improvement.

In the future, China Lesso will continue to further explore the home
improvement market, improve the business mix along the value chain
of the industry, maintaining its ability to keep abreast of the latest
developments in the market and technological innovation, and
enhance both quality and efficiency with a view to becoming a lifestyle
pioneer who will build a better urban life by providing comfortable and
high-quality products and services to more residents worldwide.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHHRA

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

BUILDING MATERIALS AND HOME IMPROVEMENT
(Continued)

Looking ahead to 2022, China will continue to adhere to the principle
that "houses are for living in, not for speculation” in its policy on the
property sector and achieve the objectives of “stabilising the prices of
lands and housing and managing the market expectations”, while
continuing to improve the long-term mechanism of the real estate
market, and adopting “City-specific Policies” to promote the healthy
cycle and development of the real estate industry. To cope with the
further adjustment of the real estate market, the Group will continue to
provide more diverse products and one-stop integrated solution and
services, strengthen its relationships with existing customers and
business partners, and explore new channels for business
development. Benefiting from the national policy of expediting the
initiatives in the “New Infrastructure, New Urbanisation Initiatives and
Major Projects”, the industry of building materials and home
improvement has great potential for development. Therefore, the
Group is confident about the prospect of its business. It will actively
give full play to the synergy between the pipeline business and its
building materials and home improvement business. Furthermore, the
Group will increase investment in scientific research, step up the
cultivation of technical talents, and innovate and upgrade eco-friendly
products. All this will further advance the healthy development of the
supply chain of the property sector and drive the steady growth in the
business of building materials and home improvement.

OTHERS

Environmental Protection Business

With the beginning of the rapid development stage, the global
environmental protection industry has gradually become an important
force to support the growth of the economic efficiency of the industry,
and is becoming an important goal and key to the innovation and
adjustment of the industrial structure in China. With the gradual
increase in national awareness of environmental protection and the
increasing importance attached to environmental protection by the
state, a series of environmental protection laws and policies have been
formulated and amended, which have played a vital role in the
development of the environmental protection industry. Against the
backdrop of China’s strategic target of “double carbon”, the Group
has actively responded to the government’s call for environmental
protection, and vigorously developed the environmental protection
business segment. During the reporting period, the Group's
environmental protection business recorded a revenue of RMB301
million due to the impact of the repeated pandemic outbreak.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

OTHERS (Continued)

Environmental Protection Business (Continued)

The Group is planning to further expand its environmental protection
business by establishing hazardous solid waste treatment centres in
Sanshui, Guangdong and Miluo, Hunan. In the future, by giving full
play to its technological advantages in the environmental protection
industry and making good use of new opportunities creating by
"double carbon” policy, the Group will continue to integrate various
resources as it aims for great achievements in various projects,
including environmental protection investment, municipal sewage and
industrial wastewater treatment, black odorous water treatment,
comprehensive treatment for rural environmental improvement, solid
waste treatment, testing, sponge city, urban underground integrated
pipeline utility tunnels, soil restoration, urban water supply and
drainage, and marine environmental protection. The Group strives to
rank among China'’s top, large environmental companies.

Supply Chain Service Platform Business

To capitalise on the Belt and Road Initiative of the PRC government,
the Group has built a supply chain service platform, which is positioned
as a "One-Stop Specialty Market for Home Improvement and
Consumer Products”, to enter overseas markets with the focus on the
Southeast Asian market. With the supply chain service platform serving
as a transnational platform, the Group is well-positioned to showcase
in overseas markets the products of Chinese manufacturers engaged in
the manufacturing of home improvement and consumer goods, and to
provide supporting services such as marketing, brand promotion and
development planning consultation to these manufacturers. During the
reporting period, the revenue from supply chain services platform
business increased by 24.2% to RMB856 million despite the recurrent
outbreaks of the global pandemic. In the future, the Group, taking into
account the business development, plans to further expand the
distribution network of the supply chain services platform business in
Southeast Asia, and grasp the resulting business opportunities to

promote the long-term development of such business segment.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHHRA

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

OTHERS (Continued)

Photovoltaic Business

Backed by the strong policy support of the national “double carbon”
target and for the purposes of its sustainable development and
responding to climate change, the Group captured opportunities of
green transformation and expanded into photovoltaic industry. The
Group announced the establishment of Guangdong Lesso Banhao
Photovoltaic New Energy Technology Co., Ltd.* (BB BT ¢ K5
BEREHE B R A F]) (“Lesso Banhao”) in early January 2022 with a view
of providing an integrated energy solutions for global industrial and
commercial enterprises and households with an array of more diverse
green products and services, including sales and design of solar panels
and after-sales services to meet the demand of a wide spectrum of its
distributors and customers.

As an extension of the Group’s business, Lesso Banhao provides a
wide range of photovoltaic systems and products and all-in-one
professional services comprising consultation, design, research and
development, engineering, installation, maintenance and operation.
The Group believes that the new photovoltaic business will create
strong synergies with its existing businesses and sales channels.

The Group will sell building applied photovoltaic (BAPV) solutions to
existing customers, such as industrial parks, hospitals and schools, and
will have three production lines to assemble and produce photovoltaic
products. Meanwhile, the Group will actively invest resources in
research and development with the aim to develop market-leading
building integrated photovoltaic (BIPV) products and solutions, which
are expected to be launched at the end of 2022.

The contribution of the photovoltaic business to the Group's revenue
and profit is limited at early stage. However, it is believed that the
eventual scale of the photovoltaic business would become a major
revenue driver of the Group's revenue and help sustain its gross profit
margins.

60 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI2EE@ZERER AT

¥KOEERE @)

H Ath ()

BERZ [#h] BROBABERF  IERT
AFEERMEHREREE  AREIEREE
BB - R 20221 A E MR ERE 2 I
HEXRFEERB AR AR ([ ) - R
RREXE RERNIHEE  KERMH 2L
RIBERAER D & - REEZ LB ERMIR
% AR BREABEEBRNEEMNRAARE
BT - UmREAEHEHMEFLHFR -

ERASBEREBIEM - BRI IRHEEE
B SRR B ME m - A NGE# - BRET - B
Tiz RE -HEMEZ - BLELONEXRE - K
SEMEHOAREBEARBENEBMBEER
B 58 K EY 13 R RUE -

AEEERRAETF HERERA N (BAPY)E
RIE - MTEE - Bk 2R0%F - YERAIK
FES ARMEESXRER RBTEREGKR
ABRETTHE - BRABEMIGRLH IR ELE

— BB BIPV)EMmAMEER T R - TBHEIAI R 2022 F
[RHEHE TS -
BADBEREHRBE  XREBHAEENAE W

BRMELL AR BRERREHERRERREAK
REHAEEBAN—KE N - UEDERFEF
TIKFE e



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK (Continued)

SUMMARY

In 2022, facing the complicated and ever-changing global economic
situation and fierce market competition, China Lesso will continue to
adhere to the principle of developing business with prudence, seek to
reduce cost and raise efficiency, and further deepen the reform and
upgrade its business by means of intelligent manufacturing.
Meanwhile, it will lead the industry’s green and sustainable
development through technological research and development and
thus provide green products and services. It will also enhance the
synergy among its diverse businesses, optimise both the team and
marketing management, and follow the trend and pursue progress
with prudence so as to generate long-term returns for Shareholders.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the reporting period, the Group's capital expenditure was
approximately RMB6,551 million, which was primarily used for
improvement of automated facilities in production bases, expansion of
the existing production bases, acquisition of industrial lands and
investment properties, construction of certain investment properties
and the facilities acquired in business combination.

FINANCIAL POSITION

The Group continued to adopt prudent financial policies. Finance, fund
utilisation and fund raising activities of the Group are subject to
effective centralised management and supervision. The Group keeps
reasonable gearing level and adequate liquidity.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had total debts (i.e.
borrowings, lease liabilities and debt component of convertible loans)
of RMB18,276 million, of which 46.3% was denominated in US dollar,
16.4% was denominated in HK dollar, 32.0% was denominated in RMB,
4.6% was denominated in Australian dollar and 0.7% was denominated
in other currencies. The Group’s borrowings are subject to effective
interest rates ranging from 0.86% to 5.8% per annum with maturity
periods ranging from within one year to more than five years. The
Group's Gearing Ratio stood at a healthy level of 45.6%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHHRA

FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's total equity increased
to RMB21,807 million. The Group's current assets and current liabilities
were RMB24,352 million and RMB20,864 million, respectively. The
Group's Current Ratio and Quick Ratio decreased to 1.17 and 0.84 from
1.22 and 0.91 as at 31 December 2020, respectively.

The Board believes the Group will be able to continue to generate
positive cash flows from its operations. With cash and bank deposits,
including restricted cash, of RMB7,646 million as well as unutilised
banking facilities, the Board considers that the Group has sufficient
working capital for its operation and future development.

The Group had no material exposure to foreign exchange fluctuation
and no hedging had been arranged during the period.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans are secured
by land and its concession rights of a subsidiary, machineries and
equipment of a subsidiary, leasehold lands and buildings of
subsidiaries, loan receivables of a subsidiary, the concession rights of a
subsidiary and personal guarantee provided by a shareholder of that
subsidiary.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group employed a total of
approximately 20,400 employees including directors. Total staff costs
were RMB1,986 million during the reporting period. The Group ensures
that the remuneration packages for employees are determined based
on their work performance, professional experience and the prevailing
industry practice. Discretionary year-end bonus and shares award may
be distributed to employees based on individual performance. Other
benefits to employees include medical insurance, retirement scheme
and training programmes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

At the end of reporting period, the Group holds 26.2% equity interest
in Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa Aluminium”) (Stock
Code: 98). Xingfa Aluminium is one of the leading aluminium profile
manufacturers in China. The Group considers Xingfa Aluminium not
only serves as a valuable investment with sustainable returns, but also
as a good strategic investment. With extensive experience in the
business of construction materials and industrial materials, Xingfa
Aluminium has established various kinds of sales channels and a
diverse customer base. This may create long-term commercial
synergies with the Group’s businesses to broaden its sales channels
and expand its customer base, and enrich the Group's comprehensive
portfolio of products and services. This can facilitate the Group's
business diversification and reinforce its market leadership. During the
reporting period, Xingfa Aluminium recorded a revenue of RMB15,433
million, and profit attributable to the shareholders of Xingfa Aluminium
was RMB888 million.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment properties
were RMB7,810 million. Increase in investment properties was mainly
attributable to the additions of properties in Asia and construction
costs on certain investment properties under development of
RMB1,997 million, fair value gain of RMB917 million, and set-off with
the exchange loss on translation of RMB561 million, the disposal of a
vacant land in Toronto and reclassification of a vacant land in Sydney
to asset held for sale of RMB1,476 million during the reporting period.
The disposal of this vacant land in Sydney was completed in January
2022.

Among these investment properties, the properties in Toronto,
Canada, Long Island, US and Auburn district of Sydney are existing
properties; the construction of first-phase projects in Thailand,
Myanmar and Indonesia have completed; and other properties are
under rezoning or at the planning stage of development.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHHRA

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS (Continued)

FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS

At the end of reporting period, the Group held long-term and short-
term financial investments of approximately RMB2,031 million (31
December 2020: RMB2,681 million) and RMB823 million (31 December
2020: RMB25 million), respectively. The investment portfolio comprised
of 52.2% in listed equity securities (issued by (i) PRC-based companies
of: home improvement and furnishings shopping malls operating,
chemical raw materials processing and property management; and (i)
United Kingdom based company of automotive manufacturer), 6.1% in
listed debt securities, 4.7% in unlisted debt securities, 0.6% in stock
funds and 36.4% in unlisted equity securities. Each of these investments
has a carrying amount accounting to less than 5% for the Group's total
assets as at 31 December 2021.

During the reporting period, the Group recognised a realised disposal
gain of approximately RMB420 million, unrealised mark-to-market
valuation loss of approximately RMB445 million due to volatility of the
global capital market and recognised approximately RMB24 million of
exchange loss on translation. Income from the portfolio amounted to
approximately RMB9 million in the reporting period, representing
dividend and interest incomes.

The Group will study the market and information of the prospective
investees cautiously before it makes its investment decisions. The
Group will also monitor the performance of its investees closely and
regularly after purchases and will adjust the investment strategy in a
cautious manner to minimise the impact of market volatility on the
Group as and when necessary.

Save as disclosed above, the Group did not have any significant
investments at the end of the reporting period.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental protection is always a top priority of China Lesso, and
the concepts of low carbon and environmental protection are
integrated into its whole operational process. The Group has applied
the ideas of going green and environmental protection throughout its
product design, research and development, production and practical
operations, and has adopted a variety of eco-friendly measures to
minimise impact on the environment. On top of that, the Group
supports the development of environmental protection industry and is
committed to water treatment and modern agriculture construction,
and has created a sustainable and eco-friendly industrial chain from
environmental protection consultation, environmental assessment,
design, construction and operation of environmental protection plans
to financing support. In addition, the Group establishes a complete
environmental management system, continues to improve criteria and
measures concerning management of environmental protection,
adopts a more simplified operating process and energy-efficient
hardware to reduce consumption of energy and water resources,
increases benefits from resource consumption, reduces wastes
emissions and enhances recycling.

The Group complies with laws and regulations governing air pollution,
noise emission, solid waste discharge, and other environmental
protection issues in China. The environmental management and
compliance department work together with the legal department to
ensure the Group will keep abreast of the latest development on

environment-related laws and regulations.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

China Lesso takes an active part in community investment and public
welfare and provides care for underprivileged groups in the society,
aiming to apply its influence, bring positive changes to the
communities where it operates, and maintain sound relations with the
communities where it operates. Further, the Group actively supports
the development of education in poverty-stricken areas and
encourages its employees to serve the community as volunteers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EREHHRA

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (Continued)

EMPLOYEE

China Lesso recognises employees as one of its most important assets.
In strict compliance with the applicable laws and regulations, the
Group protects the legitimate rights and interests of its employees and
fixes on its pay system based on the principles of legality, equity,
fairness and encouragement so as to ensure an equal access to fair
treatment and career opportunities. In addition, the Group has
formulated its own health and safety policies, intensified safety training
for employees, carried out routine safety patrols and actively pushed
forward with relevant management system building for the purpose of
creating a safe working environment for its employees, achieving a
work-life balance for its employees through diverse activities.

With great emphasis on career development of its employees, the
Group is committed to creating diversified and comprehensive
development channels for its employees by offering a series of training
programs and regular lectures on safety and health through its own
Lesso College.

CUSTOMER AND SUPPLIER

China Lesso has strived to maintain uninterrupted communications
with its suppliers for win-win results based on the procurement
principles of fairness, openness and impartiality. The Group has put in
place a “Supplier Management System” and conducts regular
performance evaluation of its suppliers. The Group has formulated a
management system, a reporting process and set up a management
team against malpractices in an effort to oversee behaviour of all its
employees and protect the interests and rights of the Company and its
shareholders. With respect to customer services and management, the
Group upholds the “market-oriented, customer-centred” principle and
adopts strict control over product quality. The Group is committed to
providing its customers with safe, reliable and quality products.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT REPORT

Details of the Group's corporate social responsibility progress and
performance in 2021 are disclosed in the upcoming sustainable
development report.
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Set out below is the report presented by the Board together with the
Group's audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the principal subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are
set out in notes 46, 17 and 18 respectively to consolidated financial
statements. Further discussion and analysis of these activities, including
a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group
and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's business,
the Group's environmental policies can be found in the “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Corporate Governance Report” and "Management
Discussion and Analysis”. This discussion forms part of the Directors’
Report.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
Group's financial position at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 90 to 234.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK26
cents per share for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the “Proposed
Final Dividend”) to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 8 July 2022, subject to
the Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company to be held on Friday, 17 June 2022 (the “2022 AGM").
It is expected that the Proposed Final Dividend will be paid on Friday,
22 July 2022.

Including the interim dividend of HK12 cents per share (2020: HK12
cents per share) for the six months ended 30 June 2021 which was paid
to the Shareholders on 18 November 2021, the total dividend for 2021
amounts to a total of HK38 cents per share (2020: HK50 cents per
share), which represents a payout ratio of 31.7% (2020: 34.8%) of the
profit attributable to the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December
2021.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

&

WS

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(A) FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND

AND VOTE AT THE 2022 AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 15 June 2022 to Friday, 17 June 2022, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the 2022 AGM, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 14 June 2022.

FOR DETERMINING THE ENTITLEMENT TO THE
PROPOSED FINAL DIVIDEND

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 6 July 2022 to Friday, 8 July 2022, both dates
inclusive, during this period no transfer of shares of the Company
will be registered. In order to be eligible to receive the Proposed
Final Dividend, unregistered holders of shares of the Company
should ensure that all transfer forms accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for registration no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 5 July 2022.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE AND PERMITTED
INDEMNITY PROVISION

Principal corporate governance practices and permitted indemnity

provision adopted by the Company are set out in the Corporate

Governance Report on pages 15 to 42.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group's results, assets and liabilities for the past five

financial years, as extracted from audited consolidated financial

statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page

3. The summary does not form part of the audited consolidated

financial statements.
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PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group’s major properties are set out on pages 235 to
237.

SHARE CAPITAL

The details of the changes in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 36 to consolidated financial statements.

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

The details of acquisition of subsidiaries are set out in note 39 to
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVE

As at 31 December 2021, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act (as
revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to RMB2,846 million (2020:
RMB3,233 million). The amount of RMB1,906 million (2020: RMB1,906
million) represented the Company’s share premium which may be
distributable provided that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary
course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total turnover attributable
to the Group's five largest customers was 6% of the Group's total
turnover and the turnover from the largest customer included therein
amounted to 2.4%. The total purchase attributable to the Group's five
largest suppliers was 42.6% of the Group's total purchases and the
purchases from the largest supplier included therein amounted to
33.3%.

At no time during the year did the directors, their close associates or
any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the directors own more
than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial
interests in these suppliers or customers referred to above.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group's charitable donations were approximately
RMB11.12 million (2020: RMB11.08 million).
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the
existing Shareholders.

DIRECTORS

Directors in office during the year and up to the date of this report are
as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping

Mr. Lai Zhigiang

Mr. Kong Zhaocong

Mr. Chen Guonan

Dr. Lin Shaoquan

Mr. Huang Guirong

Mr. Luo Jianfeng

Mr. Lin Dewei

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan
Ms. Lan Fang

Dr. Tao Zhigang

Mr. Cheng Dickson

Ms. Lu Jiandong

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the articles of association of the Company,
Mr. Wong Luen Hei, Mr. Kong Zhaocong, Dr. Lin Shaoquan, Mr. Wong
Kwok Ho Jonathan and Mr. Cheng Dickson are subject to retirement
by rotation at the 2022 AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Biographical details of directors are set out on pages 8 to 13.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM has a service
contract which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO) as
recorded in the register to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

(A) INTEREST IN SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Number and capacity of shares ©

BROBERMEEE

Interests of
spouse

Beneficial
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R2021F12A318  ARBEBRITHRAHR
AR RS EAT R AR A B (B 5 A E E A B XV
HAMTER) WG - HERD RERERHEER
BELSRBESKEIEIS2EEARRRARANFTEHE
AR EE - SRS EEST BIZE B A AR 7] KB
RETERER A BT ¢

(A) REQTRDHER

Percentage of
the issued
share capital of
the Company
RN
EBITRAE

Other
interests

[ORLy £ Hitifess NED

Wong Luen Hei - 2,308,000 (L) 2,122,485,000 (L) ®'@ 2,124,793,000 (L) 68.49%
aHE
Zuo Xiaoping 2,308,000 (L) - 2,122,485,000 (L)®'@ 2,124,793,000 (L) 68.49%
S
Zuo Manlun 4,642,000 (L) - - 4,642,000 (L) 0.15%
it
Luo Jianfeng 1,927,000 (L) - - 1,927,000 (L) 0.06%
B
Tao Zhigang 30,000 (L) - - 30,000 (L) -
e =l

Note: MEE -

(a) The letter "L" denotes the person'’s long position in such securities. (a) FE L IEZATRZEBLENTAR ©

(b) These shares of the Company are held by New Fortune, which was wholly-
owned by Xi Xi Development and ultimately owned by UBS Trustees (B.V.l.)
Limited, as trustee of a discretionary trust (the “Trust”), the settlor of which is
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (“"Mr. Wong"). The discretionary beneficiaries of the
Trust included Mr. Wong and his family members. Both Mr. Wong and Ms.
Zuo Xiaoping are taken to be interested in the said shares of the Company
held by the Trust under the SFO.

(o) Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is directly holding 2,308,000 shares of the Company. Mr.
Wong is the spouse of Ms. Zuo Xiaoping, and therefore Mr. Wong is deemed
to be interested in such shares of the Company in which Ms. Zuo Xiaoping is
interested by virtue of the SFO.

(d) These shares related to the same block of shares in the Company as set out
in note (b) above.

b) ZERNARBRGEFEENSA - ZQAIHEERE
BREEWA W &K A UBS Trustees (B.V.1)
Limited tF B — B2 ([ZE5E] - =HIEL
F((EREDBEMERT A)OETAES -
ZEANREEAZEABRERLEREREK
8- REBHRMEKA BEAEREETLL
WRBRZEFAMBAN LR R ARG R ES
M o

©  EXFRTEERFAERAFN?2308000HHA o
BREREXFRLWERME - RULBIEES &Y
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS EERTHARNK®G - HERHOR
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, BREENEZSRAE @
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

(Continued)

(B) INTEREST IN SHARES OF ASSOCIATED (B) MAMEBOEERMD KR
CORPORATIONS

Number and

capacity of Percentage of

shares® the registered

ROBEREE capital of the

Beneficial associated

Associated corporation Owner corporation

1 EEEE

A E A

HEEE BEREAA Bat

Zuo Manlun Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* 3,840,000 (L) 4.80%
i fm TEOKRRFRREBOBR AT

EDA Cloud Technology Holdings Limited 6,846 (L)® 3.00%

HEEMBIERAER AT

Luo Jianfeng Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental Technology Co., Ltd.* 2,640,000 (L) 3.30%
brgedley TLER KRR B D ER AT
EDA Cloud Technology Holdings Limited 6,846 (L)® 3.00%

ZEEFIERARAF]

Note: B

(@) The letter "L" denotes the person'’s long position in such securities. (a) FE (L EZATRZEFSNTRE -

(b) The director’s interest represents the number of shares of the associated (b) REEMEREFEERITENZAER EENRR
corporation to be purchased and acquired upon the director’s exercise in full T Y EARE R PR IS B RN U B 2 AR e I AR 1) B
of the options granted by the shareholder of such associated corporation. - BREAESENABENGE M BRI T
Details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in note 38(A) to consolidated 38(A) °

financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the b X FrigsE &S 0 2021912 A318 -
directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or RRAREEHITRAHMBERARR TS EE
short positions in any shares, underlying shares and debentures ] MREEEE AR - BRERD REERE
of the Company or any of its associated corporations that was PR EARERE S KBS R0 5 3521672
required to be recorded in the register pursuant to section 352 of RETMP RS - SR BEESTAIZAB MR
the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock NE MR TR SORE °

Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF OTHER
SHAREHOLDERS PURSUANT TO SFO

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than a director
or chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Name of Shareholders Capacity

RRERE 514
UBS Trustees (B.V.l.) Limited Trustee
UBS Trustees (B.V.1.) Limited Z3EA
Xi Xi Development Interests of controlled corporation
PR R ESV N 5
New Fortune Beneficial owner
FEE EnlEAA
Note:
(a) The letter “L" denotes the person’s long position in such securities.
(b) These shares relate to the same block of shares in the Company as those set out in

note (b) in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures: (A) Interest in Shares of the

Company” above.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the directors of the
Company were not aware of any person or corporation (other than the
directors and chief executive of the Company) who had any interests or
short positions in any shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the

SFO.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the reporting
period.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award scheme (the
"Scheme”) to recognise the contributions by certain eligible persons
to the Group and to offer suitable incentives to attract and retain
targeted talent and personnel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group. On 29 November 2018, a trust deed (the
“Trust Deed”) was entered into between the Company as settlor and
Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited as trustee (the “Trustee”)
in relation to the establishment of a trust (the “Trust”). Pursuant to the
rules of the Scheme, Shares will be purchased by the Trustee from the
open market out of cash contributed by the Company, and shall not
exceed HK$750 million and be held on trust for the selected
participants until such Shares are vested with the relevant selected
participants in accordance with the rules of the Scheme. The Scheme is
a discretionary scheme of the Company and shall be subject to the
administration of the Board and the Trustee in accordance with the
rules of the Scheme and the Trust Deed. The Scheme does not
constitute a share option scheme within the meaning of Chapter 17 of
the Listing Rules. The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10
years since the date of adoption of the Scheme. Early termination of
the Scheme may be elected by the Board, provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected
participants. For details, please refer to the announcement made by
the Company on 28 August 2018. Since the date of adoption of the
Scheme and up to the date of this report, no shares have been
awarded under the Scheme. As at 31 December 2021, there were
22,991,000 shares held in the Trust under the Scheme.
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ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any director of the Company or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were such rights exercised by them, or was the Company,
its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed under paragraph headed “Connected Transactions”,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which the
Company, its holding company and any of its subsidiaries was a party
and in which a director of the Company or an entity connected with
him had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

COMPLIANCE AND ENFORCEMENT OF THE
NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKINGS FROM
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDER

None of the directors or substantial shareholder of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group. New
Fortune (the “Controlling Shareholder”, being a company holding
approximately 68.41% of the issued share capital of the Company, and
is ultimately held by the trust the founder of which is Mr. Wong Luen
Hei, and the beneficiaries of which include Mr. Wong Luen Hei and his
family) has entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the
Group with Mr. Wong Luen Hei dated 14 May 2010 (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”).

The directors are of the view that the Group’s measures adopted by
the Company in respect of the enforceability of the Deed of Non-
Competition are adequate to safeguard the effectiveness of the non-
competition undertakings. The independent non-executive directors
have reviewed the compliance of the Deed of Non-Competition. Based
on the confirmation from the Controlling Shareholder, the independent
non-executive directors are of the view that the Deed of Non-
Competition has been complied with and has been effectively
enforced.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

(A)

76

On 6 May 2019, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
“Convertible Loan Facilities Agreement”) in relation to
convertible loan facilities in the aggregate amount of US$100
million at an interest rate of 3% per annum. The final maturity
date in respect of each facility is the date which is 36 months after
the date of the utilisation of that facility.

Pursuant to the Convertible Loan Facilities Agreement, it is
required that as at the date of the Convertible Loan Facilities
Agreement, the date of each utilisation request and the first day
of each interest period with respect to the relevant facility, (i) the
Wong Family must beneficially own (whether directly or indirectly)
in aggregate at least 51% of the issued share capital of the
Company and such share capital cannot be subject to any
security or quasi-security, and (i) the Company must beneficially
own, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of the total number of
issued shares of the borrower. Otherwise, a failure to do so will
be deemed an event of default under the Convertible Loan
Facilities Agreement.

On 30 July 2019, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-owned
subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement (the
“Facility Agreement |”) in relation to dual currency syndicated
term loan and revolving credit facilities in the equivalent amount
of US$900 million at an interest rate of LIBOR/HIBOR plus 1.60%
per annum with syndicate lenders. The final maturity date under
the Facility Agreement | is the date falling 48 months after the
first utilisation date.

On 23 October 2019, a syndication and amendment agreement
(the "Syndication and Amendment Agreement”) in relation to the
Facility Agreement | was entered into by, among others, the
guarantor and the borrower. Subject to the terms and conditions
of the Syndication and Amendment Agreement, the number of
syndicate lenders will be increased and the total commitment
under the facilities will be increased to the equivalent amount of
US$1,100 million. Save for the aforesaid amendment and
supplement, all other major terms of the Facility Agreement |
remain in full force and effect.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement | (as amended by the
Syndication and Amendment Agreement), the Wong Family shall
collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of
beneficial shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the
Company, carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from any
security. Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an event of
default under the Facility Agreement |.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULES 13.18 AND
13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES (Continued)

(@)

On 15 July 2021, the Company as guarantor and its wholly-
owned subsidiary as borrower entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement I1"”) in relation to dual currency
syndicated term loan and revolving credit facilities in the
equivalent amount of US$550 million (which may be subsequently
increased to up to US$700 million equivalent) at an interest rate
of LIBOR/HIBOR plus 1.40% per annum with syndicate lenders.
The maturity date under the Facility Agreement Il is the date
falling 48 months after the earlier of (i) the first utilisation date
and (ii) the end of the availability period of one of the term
facilities, provided that it may be extended for a further period of
12 months subject to the terms and conditions of the Facility
Agreement Il.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement Il, the Wong Family shall
collectively maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 51% of
beneficial shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the
Company, carrying at least 51% of the voting rights, free from any
security. Otherwise, a failure to do so will be deemed an event of
default under the Facility Agreement II.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, certain of the related party

transactions as disclosed in note 42 to consolidated financial

statements also constitute connected transactions or continuing

connected transactions within the meaning of the Listing Rules and

satisfied relevant disclosure requirements thereof. Details of the non-

exempt connected transactions or continuing connected transactions

are summarised below:
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(A)

PURCHASE OF MACHINERY

On 28 December 2020, the Company entered into the new
machinery purchase agreement with Guangdong Liansu
Machinery in relation to the possible purchase of machinery by
the Group from Guangdong Liansu Machinery for 3 years
commencing from 1 January 2021 and ending on 31 December
2023, at a price not exceeding the price offered to the Group by
any independent third parties. The annual machinery purchase
caps for the years ending 31 December 2021, 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2023, shall not exceed RMB190 million,
RMB220 million and RMB250 million respectively. For details,
please refer to the announcement made by the Company on 28
December 2020.

Total consideration paid for the reporting period by the Group
was RMB153 million.

ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

On 25 September 2021, Fuller Crests Limited (the “Purchaser”) (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into the Share
Purchase Agreement with Yan Sing Fu Sing Real Estate (Holdings)
Limited (the “Seller”) (ultimately and wholly owned by four
individuals who are all connected persons of the Company,
comprising (i) Mr. Zuo Manlun (an executive Director and the
chief executive officer of the Group), (i) Ms. Zuo Xiaoping (an
executive Director and the controlling Shareholder), (ii) Ms. Zuo
Xiaoying (a director of a subsidiary of the Company and a sister
of both Mr. Zuo Manlun and Ms. Zuo Xiaoping) and (iv) Mr. Liu
Laiduo (the husband of Ms. Zuo Xiaoying)), pursuant to which the
Seller agreed to sell, and the Purchaser agreed to purchase, the
entire issued share capital of Century Xinghui Creative Park
Investment Limited (the “Target Company”) for the consideration
of RMB100 (excluding stamp duty and other applicable
transaction fees). At the end of the reporting period, the Target
Company has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company. For details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 27 September 2021.

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when

determining the price and terms of the connected transactions during

the year. The Company confirms that it has complied with the

disclosure requirements in accordance with chapter 14A of the Listing

Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

The independent non-executive directors have, for the purpose of Rule
14A.55 of the Listing Rules, reviewed all continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that all continuing connected
transactions have been entered into by the Group (i) in the ordinary
and usual course of its business; (i) on normal commercial terms; and
(i) in accordance with the terms of the agreements governing such
transactions that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group's
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information , and with reference to Practice Note 740 Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditor issued an unqualified letter
containing the findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. The Company provided a copy of
the said letter to the Stock Exchange.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The details of the related party transactions are set out in note 42 to
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information obtained by the Company
and to the best knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report, the Company has maintained sufficient public float required
under in the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the 2022 AGM to re-appoint Ernst &
Young as auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Zuo Manlun
Chief Executive and Director

Hong Kong, 28 March 2022
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

BN 2 AR S

e
EY:

To the shareholders of China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Lesso
Group Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 90 to 234, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities
for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code"),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is
provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters.
Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures
designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of
our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address
the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B X AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

R EZEE @)

Key audit matter
HREZEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MAEHRAREZEE

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables

B SR KRB e B E R

At 31 December 2021, the Group had trade and bills
receivables of RMB4,212,442,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB1,264,048,000, among which
RMB822,861,000 was provided for certain individual
customers, and loan receivables of RMB1,238,692,000, net of
provision for impairment of RMB537,024,000, among which
RMB306,467,000 was provided for an individual customer
group, which in aggregate accounted for 10.01% of the total
assets. The assessment of impairment of such trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables was considered to be a
matter of most significance as it required the application of
judgement and use of subjective assumptions by

management.
R2021F 128318 EEEMNESEUFIELEEREREAEE
B ANRMEA212,442,0007C © :ZBEEEAMBREREBEARE

1,264,048,000 7T 2 1% 2 #4885 - Hh AR #822,861,0007T &H
TER % & - MEWREZIREE A AR 1,238,692,000

TL ZEREE AR ERE AR 537,024 OOOEZ&Z’@%

B Hrh AR® 306,467,000 70 & —E1E B2 F AR

IHEELTEN10.01% - BRE HEWE IE&KTFWJEHWEM
MR ERABEETERFEL B RERTBER  #RES

REEMEA -

HKFRS 9 requires that the impairment of financial assets
("ECLs")
model. In order to measure the impairment of trade and bills

should be measured by “expected credit losses”

receivables and loan receivables under HKFRS 9,
management should use judgement, assumptions and
estimation techniques in aspects such as judging significant
increase in credit risk, estimating the parameters for
measuring ECLs and determining the forward-looking
adjustments.

FEMBRELNEIRRTE - SREERRERIA [FRHME
EBEI([FEREEERDERGE - RBREEEMBmEE
RIE 9N EE HRKFIELRZEMEKERNRE &2
M %77 | (At E 8RB AR E INIE L #Er - siat 25
EEBENSBEL A REEAIEEAR) ERHE - BR
K fat 7% o

Our audit procedures included, among others:

BAMEZREZFBE(ETRR)

Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of the
design and implementation of key controls relating
to approval, post approval monitoring, credit
grading management, and loan impairment
assessment. We adopted a risk-based sampling
approach in our tests of the allowances for
impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan
receivables;

FHE MBS EEL  EHRER  EEFRERER
B FORERT (477 A B R BB I B9 BR FT R BITAK
e BTN E 5 FEWRIA K 5 M e U E BORE
BEAERBIARR SERREE

Selected samples of performing loans considering
size, risk factors, industry trends for our tests on the
measurement of impairment;

ZREAND  ARREAZR TXBEEREK
BHERNERANASRETE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AZ B AR

AR EZEE @)

Key audit matter
BEREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MM EHERERZSEIR

B S IE R IR I IE M & SR R (7 e ()

Provision for impairment of trade and bills receivables and loan receivables (Continued)

The accounting policies, disclosures of the allowance for
impairment of loan receivables and trade and bills
receivables and the related credit risk are included in notes
2.4, 3, 20 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements.
BERAGFTBER - BRERME 5 RIGIE R ZHRE R #
LEBAEERBNEBHNGEMBMEMT24 3201
24 °

iii)

Evaluated and tested the important parameters of
the expected credit loss model, management's
major judgements and related assumptions, mainly
focusing on the following aspects:

AERAREREERRRENEZSH  EEE

TEHERBERER  TEF AT TE
J Assessing the rationality of the expected

credit loss model methodology and related
parameters, including historical loss rate, risk
exposure, and significant increase in credit
risk;

AETEREEBERRIDEAN A2 B (BEE
SiEEAR . EkREERREKXEE N HEE
i3

° Assessing management’s consideration of
forward-looking adjustment information when
determining expected credit losses, including
the use of macroeconomic information, the
judgement of adjustments, and the
reasonableness of reviews; and
AEEREERNECENEE BRI HATEE
BEMNZR (BREZBEBEHNERA - 3
EeHE R EHOSEN) &

on| OH]

Assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosure of
the allowance for impairment of trade and bills
receivables and loan receivables and the related
credit risk.

il ERERE S R KRR KR E A E WS FOR
BEREUMEAGEERROBEENT ML -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B X AR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

R EZEE @)

Key audit matter
BEREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MM EHERERSEIR

RERESIABFRE R ER

Provision for impairment of manufacturing and trading related inventories

At 31 December 2021, the Group had manufacturing and
trading inventories of RMB6,145,376,000, net of provision for
impairment of RMB195,764,000, which represented 11.28% of
the total assets. The provision for impairment mainly related
to certain obsolete and slow-moving inventories. We focused
on this area because these inventories were material to the
Group and the provision for impairment of inventories
involved a high level of management’s judgement and
estimate.

R2021F12A318 - ERERENEGFERAERAR
#6,1453760007 ZHEEESMBRERBARE
195,764,000 T 2 1% 2 8458 - (HEERTEMN11.28%  ZR(E R
BERANETERLFHEFERE - HFIEREIZRE
EHRNZEGEHR EXESEREGEREREBEIRSE
BB HIET AN o

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 22.
RERE MR N RBEEES RN E24 - 3% 22

Our audit procedures included, among others:

LM EZREF % (BETRR) -

iii)

Evaluated, amongst others, the analyses and
assessments made by management with respect to
obsolete and slow-moving inventories, including
market values and expected selling prices of the
related inventories and the Group's future plan of
usage or sale;

HE(EhER) EEERBER FHEFEELND
Tk BEAEFENTEREREE U
K BEBEORKERLEEE

Assessed the reliability of the underlying data used
by management in calculating the production
related inventory provisions such as the inventory
ageing reports, by re-performing the ageing
calculation generated by the system;
ENMFERREENFH(WEFEFHRE) - UG
HEEERRTEEERBFERENRREER A
It

Tested the accuracy of management'’s calculation
by assessing the calculation criteria and
recalculating the provision; and

R ERENENRA T E S WARERERE
EVEREN

Evaluated, based on a sample of production related
inventories, the analyses performed by management
regarding the net realisable values of the production
related inventories.

MERELEENRBETS  UIAEEEEHALEEM
BEER 2R RENDIT -

84

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI2EE@ZERER AT




KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B AZ B AR

AR EZEE @)

Key audit matter
BREREE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

MM EHERERZSEIR

Valuation of investment properties

REYZE A TE

At 31 December 2021, the Group had investment properties
of RMB7,809,639,000 which represented 14.33% of the total
assets and were measured at fair value. The valuation of the
investment properties was important to our audit as it
represented a significant judgement area and an important
part of the total assets of the Group. Management employed
independent qualified valuers to assess the fair value. The
valuation of the investment properties was highly dependent
on a range of estimates made by management.
R2021F12A310» ERENRENXEAE/SARE
7,809,639,0007T * {HEEHEN14.33%WIR AR BEFE -
HRREMERESRERABARES SSEEERLENE
BEME D MREEHRMAEEZZEERN - EREREAS
UREEBRNGEMAGERIABE - REMELESEKE
EREEHE— R (EETEE -

Related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
are included in notes 2.4, 3 and 14.

REFAMBERRANEBRESRNME24 3R 14

Our audit procedures included, among others:

R EZREF % (BETRR)

i) Considered the objectivity, independence and
expertise of the professional valuers;

ZREXMEMOTENE B NBEENE

i)  Assessed the appropriateness of the property
related data, which have been used as input for the

valuations;

FHAEREERARBNYEERBE ZEA N
i)  Engaged our internal specialists to assist us in
analysing the valuations and challenging the
underlying assumptions, such as the appropriateness
of comparable lands under the sales comparison
approach and capitalisation rate and market rent
under the income capitalisation approach; and
ZERBERWBBR MDA HE LB ERBBRR -
PIEREHE L EUE T A & b R L M s B AN AT
MERNM L ERTISHESNERT &

Focused on the adequacy and appropriateness of
the disclosures relating to the valuations of these
investment properties.
EINZEREMEHREEBRENZRENES
o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B X AR

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information included
in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

J Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

J Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B X AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lee Mee Kwan, Helena.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

28 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

= A 18 £ TE PaN J‘I& =<
reEmMEMmEEkE
Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31 BILFE

2021 2020
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
Lz AR%T T ARBTT
REVENUE WA 5 32,057,584 28,073,065
Cost of sales $HEE AR N (23,609,891) (19,689,086)
Gross profit EH 8,447,693 8,383,979
Other revenue, income and gains HabU A~ Wess BRIz 5 1,433,071 509,187
Selling and distribution expenses $HE o)t 2 (1,493,378) (1,264,143)
Administrative expenses TR S (1,506,939) (1,332,183)
Impairment losses on financial TRRAKNEENRE
and contract assets BB (1,329,541) (56,439)
Other expenses HibhAx (1,441,493) (1,255,349
Finance costs Bh & Ak AN 6 (546,149) (435,892)
Share of results of associates DIEEE N R EE 242,740 203,233
Share of result of a joint venture SMEEEPEEE 18 1,278 1,167
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRBE AR R 7 3,807,282 4,753,560
Income tax expense FriS®iF X 9 (788,693) (996,171)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR £ py sl 3,018,589 3,757,389
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hib2mEkE
ltems that may be reclassified HigrgEFREZER
subsequently to profit or loss: MIEE -
Debt instruments at fair value through BARBEFAEMEE NS
other comprehensive income: MEBFSIA
Changes in fair value, net of tax AABEES (HRFHR) (315,985) (8,393)
Reclassification adjustments for BB ERE
loss on disposal included in FEEmEN
the consolidated statement of profit ZHE
or loss BB = 8,191
(315,985) (202)
Share of other comprehensive income SME—HBEARNEMEE
of an associate, net of tax Was (B8 F58) 2,594 (1.472)
Exchange differences on translation of IEHNE SRR E A HE T
foreign operations =% (327,957) 407,430
(641,348) 405,756
ltems that will not be reclassified to HelTogsifREEEn
profit or loss: #IER :
Changes in fair value of equity BARBEFAEMPEWES
instruments at fair value through HRATENAREE
other comprehensive income o (267,295) 214,505
Remeasurement gain on defined benefit REBNG &8 2 BT EN R
plan, net of tax (Biig 558) 551 -
(266,744) 214,505
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMEE
FOR THE YEAR Uy &5 (908,092) 620,261
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREE WS
FOR THE YEAR ekl 2,110,497 4,377,650
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fre B M AR RS

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILFE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET AREEFIT
Profit attributable to: AT FE(E R A -
Owners of the Company KAEEB A 3,044,159 3,750,829
Non-controlling interests FEF RS (25,570) 6,560
3,018,589 3,757,389
Total comprehensive income AT EGEE2ERE
attributable to: 4EEE -
Owners of the Company KATHEAR A 2,185,919 4,338,754
Non-controlling interests JEd RS (75,422) 38,896
2,110,497 4,377,650
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE &R F#EH AEL
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY SRER
Basic and diluted EAR R s 17 RMBO0.99 RMB1.22

AR%0997T AR¥®1227T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ArE AR AR

As at 31 December 2021
2021412 A31H

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - RE LR 12 12,331,567 9,900,108
Right-of-use assets EREEE 13A 2,378,954 2,036,052
Investment properties KEWE 14 7,809,639 6,973,570
Deposits paid for the purchase of land, BEBELH - WE - BELRE
property, plant and equipment FrfI8ike 1,043,250 1,599,016
Goodwill B 15A 495,857 381,408
Other intangible assets HivmpaE 15B 547,836 380,929
Interests in associates REE S N AR 17 2,618,990 2,395,177
Interest in a joint venture R—EeEENER 18 12,801 11,523
Other financial assets HEtheorEE 19 2,031,511 2,681,006
Loan receivables eI X 20 86,400 139,584
Other non-current assets HEMIEREEE 21 385,376 122,299
Contract assets ABHVEE 23 39,980 78,411
Deferred tax assets EERIRE = 34 349,105 159,888
Total non-current assets FRBEELTE 30,131,266 26,858,971
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories e 22 6,881,329 5,126,847
Contract assets BHEE 23 576,901 469,541
Other financial assets HthemEE 19 822,696 24,915
Loan receivables FEUR & 3R 20 1,152,292 875,066
Trade and bills receivables 2 S RN R R 24 4,212,442 3,850,194
Prepayments, deposits and TR - e REMERK
other receivables TRIH 25 2,130,992 1,874,592
Cash and bank deposits RE RIBITER 26 7,646,249 7,447,436
23,422,901 19,668,591
Asset held for sale BIELEEE 27 929,022 -
Total current assets MENEEBEE 24,351,923 19,668,591
CURRENT LIABILITIES nRBEE
Contract liabilities X ON=RET 23 3,249,079 1,528,934
Trade and bills payables EoORNFENEE 28 7,545,637 5,678,208
Other payables and accruals HAibfE IE M FEETE B 29 1,697,228 1,100,218
Tax payable JESRLIE 360,574 322,283
Borrowings =t 30 7,279,814 7,364,331
Convertible loans AR E 31 624,430 -
Lease liabilities HEaE 13B 77,670 53,448
Other financial liabilities =L 33 29,171 10,960
Total current liabilities mEBEATE 20,863,603 16,058,382
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFH 3,488,320 3,610,209
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EELBRRE
LIABILITIES afE 33,619,586 30,469,180
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
KRB IR

As at 31 December 2021
M2021F12A31H

2021
RMB’'000

ARBTR

2020
RMB'000
ARBTT

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Borrowings I=E 30 9,879,291 8,082,154
Convertible loans AR E 31 = 627,362
Lease liabilities HeEsE 13B 414,698 108,868
Other long-term payables Hih REIE IR 10,385 16,953
Provision for long-term employee benefits & EJ{E 818 ¥ 32 5,219 -
Other financial liabilities EmepasE 33 42,188 70,266
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIEAE 34 1,200,818 991,518
Deferred income PRI W e 35 260,224 217,937
Total non-current liabilities FRBAGEETE 11,812,823 10,115,058
Net assets BEFE 21,806,763 20,354,122
EQUITY s
Share capital R& 7R 36 135,344 135,344
Reserves HiE 37 20,635,797 19,705,783
Equity attributable to owners PAN/NSIE 2SN

of the Company Eam 20,771,141 19,841,127
Non-controlling interests JEPRHIRERS 1,035,622 512,995
Total equity 15 21,806,763 20,354,122
Wong Luen Hei Luo Jianfeng
=HHE ERIE
Director Director
EF EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

P

Year ended 31 December 2021

gl
=

AN

HE2021F 12831 BILEE

o BB CHE

'sysae1ul Buijjouod-uou jo uoiyisinboe ey jo 10adsel ul paiinboe s1asse 19U 8y Jo aieys ayl

ZHENTEEGN Y SN WE RTINS HETYEYE (@ j0 anjEA{00q BU3 PUE UOREISPISUOD S USBMIS] BDUBISYIP U Parussaidal Alulew aniesal ended  (q)
‘lended paissiBal 8yl JO %Gz UBY] SS8| 10U SI 8AI8sal A101N1e1s 8y} jo eduejeq Bululews.
° %S¢ ay1 1ey1 pepiroid ‘jenided ssealdul 01 U0 s8ss0| sieak Joud 18so 01 pasiin eq ued aaIssal Aioiniels
Gy B B S | SICHE B DA BRIGEEEHE T E N sy ‘|ended pauialsiBal sl JO 940G S8YdeSB) PUN} BAISSSI BY1 JO 9dUelRq BY1 [IIUN aAlasal Aloiniels
B [0 888 2070 o JTRY %05 8 Yz B JH F2 % 1€ = BT H . Gy E 2yl 01 DYd ul se|dipund Bunnunoooe paldedde Ajjeisusb yiim 8ouBpPIODIIE Ul PBUIWISISP (S8SSO|
%0l 6 (B ETHE & Do) SR [ S MY D HE HHXE (Y28 ,sieak Joud Aue Bumesyo ssye) xe1 ssye pjoid Aioinieis [enuue syy jo 0| @1eudoidde o1 palinbal
T E N EE (T EWEE R RESE Ty  KETEEHE () 1Dy u peisisiBal saueipisans s,Auedwiod sy Jo 4oes 'Dyd JO me AuedwoD) U yum souepiosde U (e)
B :©10N
> (1£000'€8L'SOL'6L Y "uoINSOd [BIDURUL JO JUSWSLE]S PAEPI|OSUOD
: 30202) 1L 000'£6£'SEY'0C 4T Y B ) ch WKL S L 0 IR B B = 72 # 843 U1 (000'€8L'S0L'61 INY “0202) 000'L6£'SES'0CEINY O S8AIS51 B3 851UdWIOD SIUNOdOR BAISSI 853Y | #
QivsEr  S66TIS Vg6l Wathersh 809 006891 48L'181) e92'1) SIS 920'99) AISEIST  on'se) 819'906') E'SEL B IEH 7l 000034 (20¢ 18qusa8q L¢3y
- - - (tez'm2) - - - - - - 16291 - - - e oissel
fiongess o3 uoneudoiddy
155 - 155 - - - - - - 155 - - - - 8)e100sse Ue
10 anasal jeyided Jo aleyg
811) 8L - - - - - - - - - - - - S15a18JU BU|0AU02-UoU
01 suongusip
se pasiuBodel spuspIng
) - (riy'S60't)  (rly'se0’ - - - - - - - - - - (01 2300)
$IBUMO 0} SUOINGSIP
YEHHY Y se pasiuBodal spuspini(]
- - - 6yl - - (e8y'21) - - - - - - - YEEEYIE oL
HEYHTYY suawnisu Ainba
WG BEHY 10 [esodsip s uodn
MR IAA=hy 3/Jasal anfen Jie} Jo Jajsuel|
0 ) - - - - - - - - - - - - BTEYST SaeIpISqNS 1O [es0dsi(]
16185 16185 - - - - - - - - - - - - g UOfeuIquId
[hEl ssauisng wouj Buisie
WREHEYE sisatjul Bui|0u0-uop
0919L 6919, - - - - - - - - - - - - B S15918Ju1 BU|0AU02-U0U
7 T 2 oy suopnqauc) ck)
(Soe'cs1) (eez'sLl) 8860 - - - - - - 8860 - - - - g Siseseyl
[eFHEE Buyjosuoa-uou Jo uoisinbay
099'LLE' 9686 v5L8eEY 62805L' - 1687LE 80wl (692'1) - - - - - - B zeak oy} 1oy
BHETMY 3Wooul BAsusyaIdwod [e10 |
192029 9%ETe 576'(85 - - 168LE £0E'wie (692'1) - - - - - - 2y 1eaf oy} Joy
BIHEMY 3WO0U BAISUBY2IdWOD JaYI0
oBELSLE 0959 6805/ 61805LE - - - - - - - - - - [T ¥ES Jeaf 3y 1o} 1joig
9E0LL  1SLBIS 29590 009667l 09T (1£6'502) (c6z'78¢) - 815 (892't8) pIS692'C (0v's8) 819'506'L E'SEL g1 H 50003 00 Arenuer | 1y

Wigny  YigEY  LigEy L
000.8INY 000.8I 000.8INY 000.8INY
BY  §EER

fnbs sisalalul 210 syjod EIVER] EIVERS)

[e0]. Bujonuo paulejsy fynba sueo|  uonennjy
sjqusnuo)  sbueyg

Uiy
000.8I4Y
B

BN
Buiby

Ui L35 : Ly
000,8Nd 000.8W 000,38y
YEyy S TV
anasal auayps [ences
e ender pleme ael aleys
TR
saleys
2 3ENA

fueduio) ayy Jo siaumo 0} 3jgeINguIY

95

Annual Report 2021 F 2k



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/\‘/\ EE/ \/ ;ﬁ%%

Year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F12A31BILFE

2021
Note RMB'000
iz AR®T R
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEg
Profit before tax BRE AR A 3,807,282 4,753,560
Adjustments for: HUTEBEEH R
Interest income F B4 zs 5 (101,341) (171,112)
Government grants released BERANB B (13,000) (12,384)
Gain on fair value changes of financial instruments BARBETABEZNER
at FVTPL TAMAREEBZHMNE 5 (199,224) (129,294)
Gain on fair value changes of other HitemBEANEE
financial liabilities 2B = 5 (8,048) (13,348)
Investment income BAEWE 5 (5,508) (17,550)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE I8 A A A a8 5 - (365)
Gain on disposal of associates HEE AR Fa 5 - (1,438)
Gain from bargain purchase HEBWEPE IR 5 (26,217) (5,579)
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets B E AL EGTIZ 5 (396) (17)
Interest expenses FMERE 6 546,149 435,892
(Gain)/loss on fair value changes of investment Txﬁ%%@ft BEZE
proper‘ties (ﬂ—'\ /}Eﬁ%ﬁ 7 (91 6,828) 157,263
Loss on disposal of debt instruments HERAABETAEM
at FVTOCI EEKENER TAER 7 - 8,191
Loss on deemed disposal of associates BIEHEBENREE 7 56,491 -
Depreciation and amortisation TE R 7 1,366,123 1,005,916
(Write-back)/write-down of inventories to (B, MmFE = 218
net realisable value, net FEFEE 7 (19,004) 18,235
Equity-settled share option expense PARR AR 30 2 BB AR i R 2 7 7,092 -
Service cost included in defined benefit plan AR TEBHET BB ARG A A 7 339 -
Loss on disposal of items of other intangible assets ~ HEEMEFLEEMYE -
and property, plant and equipment B N iR ETE B 7 E1E 7 51,789 8,257
Impairment of property, plant and equipment mE - BERSERE 7 26,783 47,831
Impairment of goodwill EERE 7 24,869 20,333
Impairment of other intangible assets HibEREERE 7 1,320 -
Impairment of loan receivables ﬁg’f\uﬁz%%’dﬁﬁﬁ 7 329,279 17,068
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of AREERE/(RERR)
contract assets, net @HE 7 20,491 (370)
Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net E%FEW KB N R EREFR 7 977,947 38,510
Impairment of prepayments, net AR FOREFE 7 1,448 20,074
Impairment of other receivables, net ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬂ&%ﬂlﬁﬁﬁ%‘%ﬁ 7 1,824 1,231
Share of results of associates DIEEE R R EE (242,740) (203,233)
Share of result of a joint venture DE—HeEtEER 18 (1,278) (1,167)
5,685,642 5,976,504
Increase in other non-current assets HAbIERmE) & B N (34,516) (51,519)
Increase in inventories ﬁféfij]l] (1,645,771) (1,034,609)
Increase in contract assets EREELM (32,267) (185,001)
Increase in loan receivables Fllﬁl{ﬁ*hi‘jju (600,381) (675,432)
Increase in trade and bills receivables ) e ES S (651,806) (540,569)
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments, deposits TR ' REMEKRIE
and other receivables (i‘ﬂﬂ)/ﬂd\ (125,712) 406,171
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities SHBEEENCRY) 1,699,428 (196,684)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables %’%FEH KA N E RN, i) 1,562,040 (237,808)
(Decrease)/increase in other payables and Hi A IE ke ER
accruals CRi),/1m (113,118) 75911
Decrease in other long-term payables Hofth = B & (3 R IEDR A (6,712) (2,674)
Decrease in provision for long-term employee benefits & Hi{& & 18 T8 R 2 (280) -
Increase in deferred income EE I N 51,675 12,727
Cash generated from operations KEEEMES 5,788,222 3,547,021
Bank interest received BYERTTAS 97,844 123,520
Corporate income tax paid ERREMER (712,895) (833,217)
Net cash flows from operating activities RETHMERENETE 5,173,171 2,837,324
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FARRTRER

Year ended 31 December 2021
HE2021F12A31BILFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES R&ZE
Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment  BEE Y% - iR &R H1E B (3,261,176) (2,089,657)
Proceeds from disposal of items of other intangible RELEEMBVEENYE -

assets and property, plant and equipment = & 5518 B TS 508 121,261 241,140
Additions to right-of-use assets {50 Pl B A N (148,828) (424,389)
Additions to investment properties REMEEM (1,024,905) (793,904)
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties HEREYESIE 547,281 -
Deposit for right-of-use assets EREEERS = (29,486)
Additions to other intangible assets Hib & & ELE N (18,787) (22,371)
Additions to associates B A EEN (309,712) (777,285)
Acquisitions of subsidiaries W B B A ] (403,693) (142,192)
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries HE I A RIATS FR0A - 6,330
Proceeds from disposal of an associate & B2 N Rl A3 5B - 5,004
Purchases of other financial assets BEHMSHEE (1,720,002) (1,173,923)
Proceeds from disposal of other financial assets HEHEMSpEEMSHRE 1,144,343 610,542
Investment income received BUR E W 5,508 17,550
Dividend received from an associate B U — B & 2 A RO AR S, 36,973 34,265
Interest received from other financial assets BWEMEFREENTE 3,381 46,234
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash ZIREIIRS (3Em),FHd (466,611) 236,595
Net cash flows used in investing activities REEZDMRREREFHE (5,494,967) (4,255,547)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEES
New bank borrowings raised FILRITER 14,026,396 16,617,812
Repayment of bank and other loans EERITREMER (12,053,618) (13,375,042)
Capital contributions from non-controlling interests ~ FEiZR I HE 163,191 76,169
Return of investment 1REER (4,475) -
Acquisition of non-controlling interests o JEFE IR 2R (204,000) (157,305)
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEERE (75,339) (85,649)
Interest paid [SARELESE (464,015) (421,032)
Dividends paid to the owners of the Company BENARAREEARE (1,278,424) (1,095,414)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests BRI AR S (22,540) (118)
Net cash flows from financing activities MEEESReRE R 87,176 1,559,421
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBESEN (D)

CASH EQUIVALENTS BINFEE (234,620) 141,198
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year FNReMREEFEY 6,442,254 6,362,444
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net SV R BN EFE (33,178) (61,388)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERNRERAEE

AT END OF THE YEAR B 6,174,456 6,442,254
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND RERRESENNER

CASH EQUIVALENTS 2T
Time deposits with original maturity of three months & EA77 3% (P EELES [R5 HAFR

or less when acquired AB=EAZLT) 26 736,129 241,397
Cash and bank balances Re MRITHES 26 5,438,327 6,200,857

6,174,456 6,442,254
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NN PR ELE

2.1

98

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands. The addresses of its registered office and
principal places of business are disclosed in the section headed
"Corporate Information” of the annual report.

The Company is an investment holding company. Particulars of
the Company’s principal subsidiaries, associates and a joint
venture are set out in notes 46, 17 and 18 to the consolidated
financial statements, respectively.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for investment properties,
other financial assets, asset held for sale and other financial
liabilities which have been measured at fair value. These
consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or
indirectly controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when
the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (Continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers
all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has
power over an investee, including:

() the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(i) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
(iii)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains control, and continue
to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributable to the owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating
to transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

100

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised standards for the
first time for the current year's consolidated financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16  Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
Amendments to HKFRS 9,

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform — Phase 2

The adoption of the above revised HKFRSs has had no significant
financial effect on these consolidated financial statements. The
nature and the impact of Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 are described below:

The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate ("HIBOR") and United States dollars
based on the London Interbank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") as at 31
December 2021. The Group expects that HIBOR will continue to
exist and the interest rate benchmark reform has not had an
impact on the Group’s HIBOR-based borrowings. For the LIBOR-
based borrowings, since the interest rates of these instruments
were not replaced by risk-free rates ("RFRs”) during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position
and performance of the Group. If the interest rates of these
borrowings are replaced by RFRs in a future period, the Group
will apply the practical expedient upon the modification of these
borrowings when the “economically equivalent” criterion is met.
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The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
standards, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HKFRSs

these consolidated financial statements:

Amendment to HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKAS 16
Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17

Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021
Reference to the Conceptual Framework?

Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
HKFRS 16 and HKAS 412

Insurance Contracts®
Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and
HKFRS 9 — Comparative Information®

Insurance Contracts®®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?®
Disclosure of Accounting Policies®

Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single Transaction®
Sale or Contribution of Assets between
an Investor and its Associate or
Joint Venture*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021
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1 1

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 2 20221 A1 Bk 2 %A 2 FEHR AR

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 3 20231 A1 Bk 2 BB 2 FEHM AR

4 Mandatory effective date not yet determined 4 ) A 7B E 98 ) AE R A B

5 As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong Interpretation 5 HAREBSHELE 1B ANTE  FES
5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower of a BESH(HMERENZER — EANLEHFIRE
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in SKAEEANK S E R E 67 4) B 20209F 10 A
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no change in B3] LNERRBE A FRIF— ME&ARIT EE
conclusion k-

6 As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October 2020, 6 20204 10 A B M A B8 B 7 s 5 RIS 17

HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023
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The Group is in the process of making an assessment of the NEBIEFZETR] MBI BT BES®RE
RNV R RN EBEITIE - 2558
b RNEBRE - ZEME] RIS BB
BHREEN S ERSTERES - T
R FIRE 3 AR R B A8 & 2248 B TSI B AX
BATE -

impact of these new and revised HKFRSs upon initial application.
So far, the Group considers that these new and revised HKFRSs
may result in changes in accounting policies but are unlikely to
have a significant impact on the Group's results of operations
and financial position.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only
when decisions about the relevant activities require unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and a joint venture are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method of

accounting, less any impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates and joint ventures is
included in profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associates or joint
ventures, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and its associates or joint ventures are eliminated to
the extent of the Group's interests in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Goodwill arising from the
acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part of
the Group's investments in associates or joint ventures.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI2EE@ZERER AT

24 TEEHHRBE

REEAARSELENRE

BERNRSNEEES — BRI DR 20% AR
RERNRIAESNER  YAHHEEES
REE - EAFENE2EREHROY
B AR B 2 B T SEFR I Sl AR 2R )
AEIRRLZIEN -

BRECER—HAERY Bt BELH
ZHREGIROATHERZAGELEN
FEE - KREH DA KNBEDIE—EE
PR e - HEREMERESRRLBED
EEFIENAT—BRABHTFE -

REBRBERR LR —HaELENRET)
BREDETHARE  RAKEREFEEN
BAERRERBENGEMBHREKF L2 -

AEBREBERTNAZLRWBRES
MEMZEE D BT A RS MM EER
A e LS MEERBERRHAEDLE
MEREREY  AAEEERNGAEEE
BRERERENEMNES (WER) - A&
BEEBENRNEEERETRII MR
MARERNmMERERAEERHE AT
FEELENESREAEE  BUORAER
ERERMEEEERLRERRIN - WE
BENRRGELXEENHESALEE
REFE QARG ERROREN—FD °



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BB M

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 TESTHEBE @)
POLICIES (Continued)

INTEREST IN JOINT OPERATION REEXEK 2 #R

A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that BREBBRERTE Bt BARZLTHZ

have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets, HEZHENS S EREZAUEZLHEREN

and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. BENBREBEAEERE - HRAEHITIAEL

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of control of an WENME— BT EEERRE

arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the relevant BRE VN BES (RSN AT — BB B

activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing FFE

control.

The Group recognises in relation to its interest in a joint AEBPENE EEF 2 HERER

operation:

o its assets, including its share of any assets held jointly; o EEE R GEAEREEZE

=

° its liabilities, including its share of any liabilities incurred . HEeE s8EsEEARREAEEZA
jointly; & :

o its revenue from the sale of its share of the output arising o HEERAEEREBEER ZFTEW
from the joint operation; A

. its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by the ° HESLEBER ZEEKA : &

joint operation; and

. its expenses, including its share of any expenses incurred ° HERY 8 EEARREES ZH
jointly. e

The assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses relating to the REBREEBEB EZZEBEE &

Group's interest in a joint operation are accounted for in &  WARBAIDREEANEEEE &8

accordance with the HKFRSs applicable to the particular assets, & WA 2 BB KR EEL AL -

liabilities, revenues and expenses.
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104

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the
acquisition-date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition-
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the
acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within

equity.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND GOODWILL
(Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of
this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group will perform its annual impairment test of goodwill as
at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating units, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than
the carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit retained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

106

POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Group measures its investment properties, other financial
assets, asset held for sale and other financial liabilities at fair
value at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction
to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must
be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in
its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the consolidated financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows,
based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly
or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy
by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the
end of each reporting period.

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets and financial
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-
generating unit's value in use and its fair value less costs of
disposal, and is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent
of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that
asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is
credited to profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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POLICIES (Continued)

RELATED PARTIES
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control of the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

() the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity);
and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in
the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis and the units
of production basis to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:

Freehold land
Land and buildings
Plant and machinery

Not depreciated

2.0% to 4.8%

4.8% to 20.0%, or units of
production basis

Furniture, fixtures and 4.8% to 32.3%
office equipment

Vehicles 4.3% to 23.8%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms and 20.0%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
DEPRECIATION (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in
profit or loss in the period the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings and other assets
under construction, which is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. Cost represents the direct costs of
construction and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for use.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset
which would otherwise meet the definition of an investment
property) held to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation, rather than for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment property.
Such properties are measured initially at cost, including
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects market
conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment

property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS AND DISPOSAL GROUPS
HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for
sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally
through a sales transaction rather than through continuing use.
For this to be the case, the asset or disposal group must be
available for immediate sale in its present condition subject only
to terms that are usual and customary for the sale of such assets
or disposal groups and its sale must be highly probable. All
assets and liabilities of a subsidiary classified as a disposal group
are reclassified as held for sale regardless of whether the Group
retains a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary after the
sale.

Non-current assets and disposal groups (other than investment
properties and financial assets) classified as held for sale are
measured at the lower of their carrying amounts and fair values
less costs to sell. Property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets classified as held for sale are not depreciated or
amortised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value as at the date of
acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to
be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Computer software

Computer software is stated at cost less any impairment losses
and is amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of five years.

Research and development costs
All research costs are charged to profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate
the technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that
it will be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future
economic benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure during
the development. Product development expenditure which does
not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any), on the
same basis as intangible assets that are acquired separately.

Patents and proprietary technologies

Purchased patents and proprietary technologies acquired are
stated at cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on
the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of 5 years
to 20 years.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (OTHER THAN GOODWILL)
(Continued)

Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights
Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights with
indefinite useful lives acquired are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are not amortised. The useful life of such
an asset should be reviewed at the end of each reporting period
to determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support an indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they
do not, the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to
finite should be accounted for as a change in an accounting
estimate.

The Group is required to test an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life for impairment by comparing its recoverable
amount with its carrying amount (a) annually, and (b) whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.

Trademark, brand name and operating concession rights with
useful lives are stated at cost less any impairment losses and are
amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives of 5 years to 24 years.

LEASES

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is,
or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to
use the underlying assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
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LEASES (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost,
less any accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the
amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.
The cost of a right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is
located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-
line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Leasehold land
Plants and buildings

10 to 50 years
1to 10 years
Vehicles 1 to 3 years

Other equipment 1to 5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by
the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of
a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the
estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment properties.
The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially measured at
cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in
accordance with the Group's policy for “investment
properties”.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include
fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less
any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected
to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease
payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease
term reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate
the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate)
or a change in assessment of an option to purchase the
underlying asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

LEASES (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of plants and buildings
(that is those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the recognition exemption
for leases of low-value assets to leases of office equipment
and laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are
classified as operating leases. When a contract contains lease
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component on a relative
stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income is accounted for on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in
revenue in profit or loss due to its operating nature. Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease
are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are
accounted for as finance leases.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified
as a finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-
of-use asset arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Group applies the on-balance
sheet recognition exemption, the Group classifies the sublease
as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, FVTOCI and FVTPL.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of trade and bills receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade and bills receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with
the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or FVTOCI, it needs to give rise to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest ("SPPI") on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows
that are not SPPI are classified and measured at FVTPL,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
to how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at
amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual
cash flows, while financial assets classified and measured at
FVTOCI are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.
Financial assets which are not held within the aforementioned
business models are classified and measured at FVTPL.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method and are subject to
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income (debt instruments)

For debt instruments at FVTOCI, interest income, foreign
exchange revaluation and impairment losses or reversals are
recognised in profit or loss and computed in the same manner as
for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining
fair value changes are recognised in other comprehensive
income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change
recognised in other comprehensive income is recycled to profit
or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity instruments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments
designated at FVTOCI when they meet the definition of equity
under HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from such
proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in
which case, such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity instruments designated at FVTOCI are not subject
to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
instruments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at FVTOCI. Dividends on equity instruments classified as
financial assets at FVTPL are also recognised as other income in
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it
is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

o the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third
party under a “pass-through” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset
nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at FVTPL. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a
loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial
recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that the Group is
unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

Debt instruments at FVTOCI and financial assets at amortised
cost are subject to impairment under the general approach and
they are classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade and bills receivables and contract assets
which apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 —  Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not credit-impaired financial assets and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage3 —  Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade and bills receivables and contract assets that do not
contain a significant financing component or when the Group
applies the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified approach, the
Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade and bills receivables that contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to adopt
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at FVTPL, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective
hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts, convertible
loans, lease liabilities and other financial liabilities.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on
their classification, as described below:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at FVTPL include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
as at FVTPL.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This
category also includes derivative financial instruments entered
into by the Group that are not designated as hedging
instruments in hedge relationships as defined by HKFRS 9.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging

instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in
profit or loss. The net fair value gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss does not include any interest charged on these financial
liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at
FVTPL are designated at the date of initial recognition and only if
the criteria in HKFRS 9 are satisfied.

fre SRR MR

2.4 FESHHREE @)

cTRAE

DNREARE
PRIEBERVBRERARSEREAABER
ABEENEHERE EXRER EBAHK
IH - N ERER RIS E A R TEMITA
TE(EA) -

FﬁﬁimﬂET IR AR BEER  WAE
RSB FIA R ER TR - RIFNRRE R EER
%;ﬂzzls

AEECREERREZRNFTANEME
A - EREER(BRRITES) - AR
FER  HEABELREGESREE -

®itE
A

H
TRABENERITERT TASRME

BEAREBEAAEZN @B E

AR EIE? Jr)&?@mﬂ’]éﬂéﬂa%%ﬂ”ﬁ%
ENCRABLIRVBERKIEEARAA
BEFABRNESRIEE -

WARIHEEMEEASMAE  Mema
BEDEAREREE - WERIMBIEREEM
AR BB B W EERE SRR EMNY
SRR EEE AR TAMNTTESRMT
B -BIUIBRARGTETENRDBAIBEE
o fIETEABREIR T EMLTAE T ARIK
Hh o

T#T’EEEE’JE%*U?&?E?T% RRER B2
E/\Tgﬁﬁ o E)]/L\\ fﬁfﬁﬁfﬂ @Z/?EETEIZ_
R B E

7
BREAZERAEBNNE -

MR T R B E R A B asR
SRARNYLERAMES  LEREA
BB BRE LB ORIBENERT S E
17 -

Annual Report 2021 4 2§ 123



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4§

Are SRR T

2.4

124

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES (Continued)

Subsequent measurement (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (“"EIR”) method. Gains and losses are recognised in
profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount
or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs
in profit or loss.

Convertible loans

The component of convertible loans that exhibits characteristics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the consolidated
statement of financial position, net of transaction costs. On
issuance of convertible loans, the fair value of the liability
component is determined using a market rate for an equivalent
non-convertible loan; and this amount is carried as a long term
liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished on
conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
allocated to the conversion option that is recognised and
included in shareholders’ equity, net of transaction costs if fixed
for fixed requirement meets. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and
equity components of the convertible loans based on the
allocation of proceeds to the liability and equity components
when the instruments are first recognised.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange
or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

OFFSETTING OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date when
derivative contracts are entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a
hedging instrument, in which case the timing of the recognition
in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in non-derivative host contracts are
treated as separate derivatives when they meet the definition of
a derivative, their risks and characteristics are not closely related
to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not
measured at FVTPL.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value.

Manufacturing and trading

Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in the
case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Property development

Cost comprises land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period.
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POLICIES (Continued)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral
part of cash management.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end of the
reporting period of the future expenditures expected to be
required to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in profit or loss.

The Group provides for warranties in relation to the sale of
certain industrial products and the provision of construction
services for general repairs of defects occurring during the
warranty period. Provisions for these assurance-type warranties
granted by the Group are recognised based on sales volume and
past experience of the level of repairs and returns, discounted to
their present values as appropriate.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,
when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

INCOME TAX (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it
has become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the period that the costs, for which it is
intended to compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates
to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to profit or loss over the expected useful
life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI2EE@ZERER AT

2.4 FTESHHREE @)

Fr 8%t (1)
EERIAEENRAENSREHRIELR
A WETBE RBERT G AREHE
B R IBEER T AFR » REER
HRELERIAE EQN S ME HAREH T -
0 4E A BE R JE S8 R A M| LA W [ 2 0 =X D
DIRIETRIAE ER T AR -

ERERAEENBBEDREREANERE
EFFERBHHENNEGE  WAREH
REETHEERATHORER (RBOR) BE

EREHAEERRERBARERENEATE
SV H - RE BB 9 HI BT AT LA RD
M REE SRR AR EHEE - mRRT
IR E B EEE R R B E R R R — B #
RIS THReHR—RERHE
B TRERHEREBLAPAEN - b TH
FERTLE A8 5t 810 & BOR R HAME (HAfE] TR A8
RAEBR R AENREERRBEREE)
NHBEEEERIIAN AR ENEEXRE
EREERGBAE -

BT BY

B Bh 10 B] & 3 S A% AT U B+ B 3 BL 7+
BFTAME IR - RO BEERAR -
ZEFBINER IR AR - AR ZIARHE
18 BE B0 AN B 85 AR B R AT RE R R IR
& o RAMPMEEERR - AEAR(EE
AAARLEWERE - BREBEENER A
ERFHANRERSF O ABEA -



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer for more than one
year, revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group with a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the contract includes the interest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point
in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the goods.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

130

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Construction services

Revenue from the provision of construction services is
recognised over time, using an input method to measure
progress towards complete satisfaction of the service,
because the Group's performance creates or enhances an
asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or
enhanced. The input method recognises revenue based on
the proportion of the actual costs incurred relative to the
estimated total costs for satisfaction of the construction
services.

Claims to customers are amounts that the Group seeks to
collect from the customers as reimbursement of costs and
margins for scope of works not included in the original
construction contract. Claims are accounted for as variable
consideration and constrained until it is highly probable
that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved. The Group uses the expected value
method to estimate the amounts of claims because this
method best predicts the amount of variable consideration
to which the Group will be entitled.

Provision of sewage, hazardous waste treatment and
related environmental protection services

Revenue from the provision of sewage, hazardous waste
treatment and related environmental protection services is
recognised when the relevant services have been rendered.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (Continued)

Revenue from other sources
Income from financial services including:

() bhandling fee income from factoring services and supply-
chain financing services which is recognised when the
relevant services have been rendered;

(i) finance lease income which is recognised over the period
of lease, as further explained in the accounting policy
"Leases” above; and

(iii)  interest income which is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method as explained below.

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected
life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

CONTRACT ASSETS

A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for
goods or services transferred to the customer. If the Group
performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before
the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a
contract asset is recognised for the earned consideration that is
conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting
policies for impairment of financial assets.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to
the customer).

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Pension schemes

In accordance with the relevant laws and regulations, the Group's
employees participate in various defined contribution plans and
state-management retirement benefit plans in the countries in
which the Group operates. Payments to these plans, where the
Group’s obligations under them are equivalent to a defined
contribution plan, are recognised as an expense when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Housing benefits, medical insurances and other social
insurances

PRC employees of the Group are entitled to participate in various
government-supervised housing funds, medical insurances and
other social insurance plans. The Group contributes to these
funds based on certain percentages of the salaries of these
employees on a monthly basis. The Group's liability in respect of
these funds is limited to the contribution payable in each period.
Contributions to the housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances are expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Defined benefit plans

The Group operates a defined benefit pension plan which
requires contributions to be made to a separately administered
fund. The benefits are unfunded. The cost of providing benefits
under the defined benefit plan is determined using the projected
unit credit actuarial valuation method.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit pension plans,
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset
ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the net
defined benefit liability) and the return on plan assets (excluding
amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability), are recognised immediately in the consolidated
statement of financial position with a corresponding debit or
credit to retained profits through other comprehensive income in
the period in which they occur. Remeasurements are not
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss at the earlier of:
. the date of the plan amendment or curtailment; and

o the date that the Group recognises restructuring-related
costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net
defined benefit liability or asset. The Group recognises the
following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under
“cost of sales” and “administrative expenses” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss by function:

° service costs comprising current service costs, past-service
costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine

settlements

o net interest expense or income

ire MR MR

2.4 FESHHREE @)

EBERF (&)
REFFIEE
AEERE-BERTENRAKSEHE - 52
ERANEEEBIEENESELER - 8
FITY KRB - RIBRTBFE BRI
KA TR AT B EEREMEEET -

RAERMNENRSAEMELNENE -
BREBEMNENER EELRNOZE(D
BREGFAREBMAEFEOFHENEER)
UG EEEMNER(NBREARERH
BEFENFENENDHE)  REAUBMR
MRPARER - N EESHRE B
EERENRE SN NERHRREA - B
HEtENERYEIEEN N BERS -

BERBRAZ TR ENBEATER
o FHEIERTEMERZ A ¢ &

o AEEWARESHEMEENKAZE

FEFENRARERER TR/ A GER:
EFFHEITMBATE - NEBIRIEELRE
BaRz [HERA] R [1THRAS ] AR
THREBANELFENED -

rml U> /m}ﬁ

° ARG AAS (B 35 BN HE IR A AR AR~ iﬂ?‘iﬁlﬁ
A R R T TESREENFI=S
E518)

o FEMXEKEFHE

Annual Report 2021 F %k 133



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A H

ANy =| /\ﬁi’%$&%m#§\£

2.4

134

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share-based payments

One of the Group's subsidiary operates a share option scheme
and the Company operates a share award scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments ("“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is measured by reference
to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group's best estimate of the number
of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken
into account when determining the grant date fair value of
awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed
as part of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. Market performance
conditions are reflected within the grant date fair value. Any
other conditions attached to an award, but without an associated
service requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value
of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an award
unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of
modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This
includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not met.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award,
and is designated as a replacement award on the date that it is
granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

DIVIDENDS

Dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity
when they are declared and approved by the Company's
shareholders in general meetings. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Interim dividends are deducted from equity when they are
declared and approved, and no longer at the discretion of the
Company.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
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POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

The Company’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars while
the Company’s presentation currency for the consolidated
financial statements is Renminbi. In preparing the financial
statements of each individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at
the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

o exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings
relating to assets under construction for future productive
use, which are included in the cost of those assets when
they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on
those foreign currency borrowings;

o exchange differences on transactions entered into in order
to hedge certain foreign currency risks; and

o exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or
payable to a foreign operation for which settlement is
neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore forming part
of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income and
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on repayment of
the monetary items.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign operations are
translated into Renminbi using exchange rates prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of exchange fluctuation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (Continued)

On disposal of a foreign operation, all of the exchange
differences accumulated in equity in respect of the operation
attributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's consolidated financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result
in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the future.

JUDGEMENTS

Deferred tax liabilities

Deferred income tax liabilities have not been established for
income tax and withholding tax that would be payable on certain
profits of the subsidiaries in the PRC to be repatriated and
distributed by way of dividends as the directors consider that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences can be
controlled and such temporary differences will not be reversed in
the foreseeable future.

If these undistributed earnings of the subsidiaries in the PRC are
considered to be repatriated and distributed by way of dividends,
the deferred income tax charge and deferred income tax liability
would have increased by the same amount of approximately
RMB343,290,000.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Consolidation of entities in which the Group holds less than a
majority of voting rights

The Group considers that it controls WIIK Public Company
Limited even though it owns less than 50.00% of the voting rights.
This is because the Group is the single largest shareholder of
WIIK Public Company Limited with 47.75% equity interest. The
remaining 52.25% of the equity shares in WIIK Public Company
Limited are dispersedly held by many other shareholders. Since
the date of acquisition, there has been no history of the other
shareholders collaborating to exercise their votes collectively or
to outvote the Group.

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill, brand name and trademark and
operating concession rights

The Group determines whether goodwill, brand name and
trademark and operating concession rights with indefinite useful
lives are impaired at least on an annual basis. This requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which the goodwill, brand name and operating concession rights
are allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimation of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate
in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. At the
end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of goodwill,
brand name and trademark and operating concession rights were
RMB495,857,000 (2020: RMB381,408,000), RMB145,183,000 (2020:
RMB147,233,000) and RMB23,230,000 (2020: RMB24,550,000),
respectively. Further details are disclosed in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECLs for contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables

The Group reviews the credit risk in relation to contract assets,
trade and bills receivables, other receivables and loan
receivables. For balances in relation to individual customers
which bear specific credit risk depending on the repayment
history, financial position and other external or internal
information, management estimates the amounts recoverable
from the financial assets taking into account any credit
enhancement held by the Group and recognise provision against
the difference between the gross balance and the amount
recoverable.

Apart from the balances in relation to individual customers which
bear specific credit risk, the Group uses a provision matrix to
calculate ECLs for other contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables. The provision
rates are based on the invoice date for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geography, product type, customer type and rating, and
coverage by letters of credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Provision of ECL for contract assets, trade and bills
receivables, other receivables and loan receivables
(Continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the
Group's contract assets, trade and bills receivables, other
receivables and loan receivables is disclosed in notes 23, 24, 25
and 20 to the consolidated financial statements, respectively.

Provision for obsolete and slow-moving inventories

The Group reviews the ageing analysis of its inventories at the
end of each reporting period, and makes provision for obsolete
and slow moving inventory items identified that are no longer
suitable for use/sale. Management estimates the net realisable
value for such inventories based primarily on the latest invoice
prices and current market conditions. At the end of the reporting
period, an accumulated provision for obsolescence of
RMB 195,764,000 (2020: RMB214,768,000) has been recognised for
inventories.

Fair value of investment properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an active
market for properties in the same location and condition and
subject to similar leases and other contracts. In the absence of
such information, management determines the amount within a
range of reasonable fair value estimates. In making its judgement,
management considers information from a variety of sources,
including (i) independent valuations; (i) current prices in an active
market for properties of a different nature, condition and location
(or subject to different leases or other contracts), adjusted to
reflect those differences; (iii) recent prices of similar properties in
less active markets, with adjustments to reflect any changes in
economic conditions since the dates of transactions that occurred
at those prices; and (iv) discounted cash flow projections, based
on reliable estimates of future cash flows, derived from the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts, and (where possible)
from external evidence such as current market rates for similar
properties in the same location and condition, and using discount
rates that reflect current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of cash flows.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BB M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS 3. FESHERMES @
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued) LT TR =& (/)

Fair value of investment properties (Continued) BREMEIABE(E)

Details of the judgement and assumptions involved in BTAEBRREMENAABERSITY RAH
determining the fair value of the Group's investment properties TR BRERZFH B HERG A M RERMT T
have been disclosed in note 14 to the consolidated financial 14 0

statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate HE —AEEEARA=E

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a AEEEZRGETHEANMBEENFX
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") AL S E TR R ([EEETFE]) T
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the SHERE - WEERF R AREBENEMU
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with EIniEth MG EEREEEGERI Y
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a EE - mASELUE B IR RS ARTS
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic BEESNZHANER - Flt » MEERFRK
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would MTAEH[EXA] OKHE SEaER
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable MR R (MY BT MER S ZH B A
rates are available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into FMsS ) NEBNENRETARURMIEE
financing transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect 2R RAG R (B EWIELAM B AR
the terms and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases ZINEEEHEET IS ) - BIIZEEFIRELR (5T o
are not in the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group B E R ABE (IS R) A AR - N
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as market EERLHEESERTR - WEELAET
interest rates) when available and is required to make certain ERETENMT (B RARNBEIEEFT
entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone &) e

credit rating).

A CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES LS E
In accordance with the HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment RIBBBSETERE 165 E - BERiKE
and HKAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting LEBEFHERESF KR « S5 EA
Estimates and Errors, the Group adjusted the depreciation basis BEMNER TEEARETYE BER
for certain property, plant and equipment to ensure the adjusted RERNITEERE  DURKSHBREEFLS K
basis to meet the estimates on the future economic benefits. The RASER N EET - TERESF T L
impact on the change in the depreciation basis will not result in a TEBHET - FITEEEF 2021451 A1
restatement. The new depreciation basis has applied from 1 HEERERA
January 2021.
From 1 January 2021, the Group has changed the depreciation H2021F1 1B AEBEHETWE -
basis for certain property, plant and equipment, particulars of WS MR ERITEREEITET - ARBIER
which are as follows: mT
Category Before the change After the change
il BEAI BEE
Plant and machinery Straight-line basis Units of production basis
55 o 1 2% BRE EEx
The change has been applied prospectively and has resulted in BHEFEUARRERERER  EBRFR
an increase in depreciation of approximately RMB50,971,000 PrEL A AR 50,971,000 7T °

during the year.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of

building materials and home improvement products; the

provision of renovation and installation works, environmental

engineering and other related services, financial services and

property rental and other related services. For management

purposes, the Group's businesses are organised by geographical
areas based on the location of the customers and assets are
attributable to the geographical unit based on the location of the

assets. The Group has eight reportable operating segments as

follows:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

(viii)

Southern China, including Guangdong Province, Guangxi
Zhuang Autonomous Region, Hunan Province, Fujian
Province and Hainan Province;

Southwestern China, including Chongging Municipality,
Sichuan Province, Guizhou Province, Yunnan Province and
Xizang (Tibet) Autonomous Region;

Central China, including Hubei Province, Jiangxi Province
and Henan Province;

Eastern China, including Shanghai Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, Zhejiang Province and Anhui Province;

Northern China, including Beijing Municipality, Tianjin
Municipality, Hebei Province, Shandong Province, Inner
Mongolia Autonomous Region and Shanxi Province;

Northwestern China, including Shaanxi Province, Ningxia
Hui Autonomous Region, Qinghai Province, Gansu Province

and Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region;

Northeastern China, including Liaoning Province, Jilin
Province and Heilongjiang Province; and

Qutside China.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of its operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource
allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is
evaluated based on reportable segment profit, which is a
measure of adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group's profit before tax
except that interest income, changes in fair value of investment
properties, changes in fair value of financial instruments at FVTPL,
changes in fair value of other financial liabilities, investment
income, gain on disposal of subsidiaries, gain on disposal of
associates, gain from bargain purchase, loss on deemed disposal
of associates, loss on disposal of debt instruments at FVTOCI,
exchange differences, non-lease-related finance costs, share of
results of associates and a joint venture and other unallocated
income and expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude interests in associates, interest in a joint
venture, other financial assets, deferred tax assets, cash and bank
deposits, asset held for sale and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group
basis.

Intersegment revenue is eliminated on consolidation. Intersegment
sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing
market prices.

The Group's revenue from external customers is derived from its
operations in mainland China, special administrative regions of
PRC and foreign countries.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no revenue
from transactions with a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group's total revenue.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REDFEER @)
(Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

BZEZ2021F12A31HLEFENEE
o EpE R

Central Eastern Northern Northwestern Northeastern Outside

Southern Southwestern

144

China
£78

RMB'000
AR%T T

China

EE
RMB'000
AR%TR

RMB'000
AR®TR

China China China
E-51 b1 Rt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL AR%TR AR¥TR

China  Eliminations Consolidated
FEES i Ga
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTRL AR%TR AR¥TR

RMB'000
AR®TR

Segment revenue: FBBA
Sale of goods HERM 15,801,237 2,892,765 3,258,939 1,988,684 2,613,559 1,625,439 905,893 989,837 - 30,076,353
Contract revenue from renovation  $£{ERZH# T2

and installation works BHRA 1,005,358 58,903 103,290 202,750 47,362 9,208 6,324 15,358 - 1,448,553
Income from environmental RETRREM

engineering and BRRS

other related services 63 142,100 5,769 16,667 12117 3,819 41 95 11,267 - 300,929
Financial service income SERB kS 74,833 10,514 1,416 25,148 2,083 31 93 - - 114,118
Property rental and other MEBRE R

related services TRRIRRRE 12,232 - - - - - - 105,399 = 117,631
Revenue from external customers  SMFEFEHA 17,035,760 2,967,951 3,380,312 2,337,753 2,666,823 1,634,719 912,405 1,121,861 - 32,057,584
Intersegment revenue DEEBA 5,519,677 499,366 667,011 546,866 641,187 262,306 203,819 935,066  (9,275,298) =
Total it 22,555,437 3,467,317 4,047,323 2,884,619 3,308,010 1,897,025 1,116,224 2,056,927  (9,275,298) 32,057,584
Segment results: FERELE 4,863,385 745,566 916,358 473,152 677,323 369,776 205,840 289,901 (93,608) 8,447,693
Reconciliations: HER -
Interest income B 101,341
Gain on fair value changes of RENELNEE

investment properties BEF|H 916,828
Gain on fair value changes of BARBEHABRS

financial instruments at SRIANDAER

FVTPL 2H7H eg;228
Gain on fair value changes of HiteMABALEE

other financial liabilities 25T 8,048
Investment income REWE 5,508
Gain from bargain purchase HERERERE 26,217
Loss on deemed disposal of REHEBE N

associates BiE (56,491)
Exchange loss [EHEE (48,560)
Finance costs (other than interest ~ BARA (AE&E

on lease liabilities) BN (536,236)
Share of results of associates DEBEDREE 242,740
Share of result of ajoint venture ~ DME—FIARGEES 1,278
Unallocated income and expenses &7 At lfizs R % (5,500,308)
Profit before tax R ATE R 3,807,282
Segment assets: DEEE : 23,144,419 1,694,292 2,071,075 2,298,299 1,128,725 950,928 568,995 8,216,082 - 40,072,815
Reconciliations: 4
Interests in associates RS DA 2,618,990
Interest in a joint venture R—HALENER 12,801
Other financial assets HiteRAE 2,854,207
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 349,105
Cash and bank deposits RBeRFATR 7,646,249
Asset held for sale BEHERE 929,022
Total assets EEBE 54,483,189
Other segment information: Hit A HEH
Write-back of inventories ROGZEEREHEFE

to net realisable value, net hes (39,055) 4,298 (200) (2,272) (372) (138) 103 18,632 - (19,004)
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 956,482 78,872 74,893 60,609 49,893 40,980 23,565 80,829 - 1,366,123
Impairment of property, nE - BERSE

plant and equipment BE 22,088 - - 469 - - 4,393 (167) - 26,783
Impairment of goodwill BERHE 24,869 - - - - - - - - 24,869
Impairment of other HitEREE

intangible assets RE 1,320 - - - - - - - = 1,320
Impairment of loan receivables FEMERIE 329,279 - - - - - - - - 329,279
Impairment of contract assets, net & #IAEREFE 20,431 - - - - - 60 - - 20,491
Impairment of trade and bills B HEBFER

receivables, net ZRREF 887,819 6,371 12,988 22,022 15,969 5,461 14,224 13,093 = 977,947
Impairment of prepayments, net  EfTFEREFH 7 25 1,090 15 236 1 = = = 1,448
Impairment of other receivables, net Hft eI 3B 5 (B 58 1,914 - - - - - - (90) - 1,824
Capital expenditure® BRI 3,485,780 148,279 620,006 211,507 143,299 123,540 23,349 1,873,239 (77,846) 6,551,153
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, # BEABYRIERENY BELRE SHAEE

right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets,
among which the additions resulted from business combination amounted

to RMB1,141,624,000.

E REVMEREMEFEE  HYRERER
AOFMEERRE R AR 1,141,624,000 7T ©
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.

(Continued)

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

HZ2020F12A31HLEFENEE
D ERE R

Northeastern Outside

China

Northern  Northwestern
China China

Eastern
China

Central
China

Southern  Southwestern

China Eliminations Consohdated

China

RMB’000

]
RMB'000

ARMT T

RMB'000

ARETT

ER
RMB'000

ARBTT

2
RMB’000

ARKETTT

(B4
RMB'000

ARBFT

Rt
RMB000
ARETT

China
s 4

ElEY
RMB000
ARBTL

B
RMB'000
ARBFIL

RMB OOO

ARBT T

Segment revenue: pix: 1 N
Sale of goods HEER 14,296,424 2,793,802 2,873,149 1,545,613 2,097,594 1,422,689 737,700 703,236 - 26,470,207
Contract revenue from renovation g RZETE

and installation works XILON 697,116 47,068 108,364 199,095 28923 1,449 19,769 8912 - 1,110,696
Income from environmental RETRREH

engineering and BRRS

other related services 63 179,958 17,539 23,773 127,330 4,098 1,299 - - - 353,997
Financial service income SRR R E 30,349 1,633 3,625 12,581 2,151 34 19 - - 50,392
Property rental and other MEBRERIAM

related services TRRIRRRS 11,370 - 24 - - 76,379 - 87,773
Revenue from external customers  SMNFZEF YA 15,215,217 2,860,042 3,008,911 1,884,643 2,132,766 1425471 757,488 788,527 - 28,073,065
Intersegment revenue AEERA 4,354,850 450,144 532,163 437,339 557,703 238,605 185,929 771,577 (7,528,310) -
Total Bt 19,570,067 3,310,186 3,541,074 2,321,982 2,690,469 1,664,076 943417 1,560,104 (7,528,310) 28,073,065
Segment results: I ES 4,801,638 884,882 952,938 526,249 620,639 346,109 185,439 224,671 (158,586) 8,383,979
Reconciliations: HER -
Interest income kY e 171,112
Gain on fair value changes of RAABEFAERE

financial instruments at SRIANDAEE

FVTPL 28738 129,294
Gain on fair value changes of HthemAaBE A EE

other financial liabilities FEEFRE 13,348
Investment income B 17,550
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HERBARGHE 365
Gain on disposal of associates HERE R RFAEHE 1438
Gain from a bargain purchase AEWBAERE 5579
Loss on fair value changes of BENELNEE

investment properties a5 (157,263)
Loss on disposal of debt HERDABEFA

instruments at it 2 miEEs

FVTOCI BB TARE 8,191)
Exchange loss B EE (2,328)
Finance costs (other than interest ~ @AM A (EEE

on lease liabilities) J,\\!’ﬁ&\\) (427 ,405)
Share of results of associates EMEDNRESR 203,233
Share of result of a joint venture /VE HAELEEE 1,167
Unallocated income and expenses & 5 Blliiz 2 (3,578,318)
Profit before tax BB AR 4,753,560
Segment assets: AUEE : 18,529,130 1,531,128 1,667,031 1,842,455 998,984 734,828 542,214 7,961,847 - 33,807,617
Reconciliations: R -
Interests in associates RESS AR MR 2,395,177
Interest in a joint venture R-EA2tENES 11,523
Other financial assets HibepEE 2,705,921
Deferred tax assets BEHRBEE 159,888
Cash and bank deposits HBERBAIER 7,447,436
Total assets BEAYE 46,527,562
Other segment information: HitpBEL -
Write-down of inventories to HAFEZEREE

net realisable value, net FE 18,367 - - - - - - (132) - 18,235
Depreciation and amortisation FERAH 658,051 68,829 61,010 49,406 42,846 41,689 21,093 62992 - 1005916
Impairment of property, ¥ BERR

plant and equipment AE 36,166 - - 11,349 - - - 316 - 47,831
Impairment of goodwill BHERE 11,578 - - 8,755 - - - - - 20,333
Impairment of loan receivables TEUETRIE 17,068 - - - - - - - - 17,068
Reversal of impairment of ANBERE

contract assets, net BEEE (370) - - - - - - - - (370)
Impairment of trade and bills B HRUIER

receivables, net ERAETE 25,522 351 1441 4,578 5,897 661 (1,158) 1,218 - 38,510
Impairment of prepayments, net  TEfTFEREFH 6,774 6,402 - - - - 253 6,645 - 20,074
Impairment of other receivables, net  ft fE W 5B B (E % 4 2,724 - - - - - - 3955 - 1,231
Capital expenditure* ERAX? 1,509,062 108,124 276,130 150,447 74,846 37,231 21877 624,145 (59,774) 2,742,088
# Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and equipment, # EARTBDEABEDE BELRE FHESR

right-of-use assets, investment properties and other intangible assets, B -REAMEREMEREE  HPBEEXEK

among which the additions resulted from business combination amounted
to RMB252,952,000.

BUMELNRE R AR 252,952,0007T °
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REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5.
GAINS

REVENUE

Set out below is the disaggregation of the Group's revenue from
contracts with customers and the reconciliation of the revenue
from contracts with customers with the amounts disclosed in the
segment information:

By revenue nature:
2021

Goods
transferred Services

at a point transferred

in time over time
RE—KH BREES
BIENER ERNRYK
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥TRT AR%TR

Revenue from contracts with REEEFRHAN

WA - B - Wi R A

A

T #IIAREE KA TP & HOHBAD TR
KAEFPEHNHNBAEDBENANESE
HEIER -

BWAMLEE D

2020
Goods

transferred Services

atapoint  transferred

Total in time over time

A B REREES
st 4008 R PR t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT AR®TR AREFRT

customers: WA :
Sale of goods HEEM 30,076,353 - 30,076,353 26,470,207 - 26,470,207
Contract revenue from renovation H{& R ZH Ti2

and installation works BHWA - 1,448,553 1,448,553 - 1,110,696 1,110,696
Income from environmental RETRNHM

engineering and other related TERERRTE

services Wezs - 300,929 300,929 - 353,997 353,997
Sub-total INEF 30,076,353 1,749,482 31,825,835 26,470,207 1,464,693 27,934,900
Financial service income SRR 114,118 50,392
Property rental and other MEREREM

related services BB RS 117,631 87,773
Total fst 32,057,584 28,073,065
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KRB BB M

REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5. WA - HlA - ISR FlzS @)
GAINS (Continued)

REVENUE (Continued) WA ()
By geographical locations: RiIR & &

2021 2020
Goods Goods
transferred Services transferred Services

at a point  transferred atapoint  transferred

in time over time Total in time over time

RE-BY BERBES i R RS

EINEm EINERY At BEm  EEORS
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000
AR®ETR AR¥TR AR¥TR ARETT AR%TT ARETE

Revenue from contracts with REEFRHN

customers: WA :
Mainland China R A 29,086,516 1,722,857 30,809,373 25,766,971 1,455,781 27,222,752
Outside China FEIESN 989,837 26,625 1,016,462 703,236 8,912 712,148
Sub-total NET 30,076,353 1,749,482 31,825,835 26,470,207 1,464,693 27,934,900
Financial service income T AR 114,118 50,392
Property rental and other MEREREM

related services TREEARTS 117,631 87,773
Total st 32,057,584 28,073,065
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in TRINTRARE BABERN RS BRYIEIA
the current reporting period that were included in the contract AHBEEANBEHEBEASTFERLNI
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised e

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ T ARETTT
Revenue recognised that was included in RERE YR AE L
contract liabilities at the beginning of BEMNDHER
the reporting period: WA -
Sale of goods HEE M 1,414,239 1,604,951
Contract revenue from renovation and HEehTHETRER
installation works A XA 24,204 1,750
Income from environmental engineering REBTRENEMIEE
and other related services Bl 7% Wz 1,041 8

1,439,484 1,606,709
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5. REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND
GAINS (Continued)

REVENUE (Continued)

Performance obligations
Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the
goods and payment is generally due within 30 to 360 days from
delivery, or is settled on an advance receipt basis depending on
the market conditions, market tactics and relationships with the
customers.

Renovation, installation and engineering services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services are
rendered and payment is generally due within 30 days from the
date of billing. A certain percentage of payment is retained by
customers until the end of the retention period as the Group's
entitlement to the final payment is conditional on the satisfaction
of the service quality by the customers over a certain period as
stipulated in the contracts.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

5.

WA - WA - SR FS @

WA ()
EHEE
BRAASEROETHERBRIT :

HE R

AEERRERBEITEL  TH—REXE
B 30E30RARNE - AT - MIHE
R EE PR EREEE S EE

K& xR R ITERPE
BREERERE R MEEREERET A
R — RN EHE RRLIORNEE - EFRE
—EANLNNREEREBHRER - HTER
REEERSENTORNETRELIZE
HREN—BRBRERBEZRTIMER
JTRMEE -

RBEMR 2 EEHRTENET(RED
HEAREL) R ZEROSEMAT -

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR%T R AREFT
Amounts expected to be recognised as T8 B e iR AR LAY

revenue: SFE
Not more than 1 year N1 F 1,435,765 954,379
Over 1 year (S 588,242 1,368,927
2,024,007 2,323,306

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be recognised
over one year relate to renovation, installation and engineering
services. All the other amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations are expected to be
recognised not more than one year. The amounts disclosed
above do not include variable consideration which is constrained.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND 5.

GAINS (Continued)

OTHER REVENUE, INCOME AND GAINS

ire MR MR

WA - Eg A - s KRR @)

HABWA - Wz KAz

2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR%T ARETT
Bank interest income HRITH W AR 93,200 123,520
Interest income from other loan receivables  E i JEUE BT B Uz 4,644 -
Interest income from other financial assets Hit S mEEMF B 3,497 47,592
Total interest income FE U =B8R 101,341 171,112
Government grants and subsidies IR 8 B e 475 B 72,271 69,375
Gain on fair value changes of investment REMELREBEEZY
properties Pl 916,828 -
Gain on fair value changes of financial BRAnBEFAEGZNERIAN
instruments at FVTPL NRABEESHNE 199,224 129,294
Gain on fair value changes of other HE& e EAnBEES
financial liabilities Fz= 8,048 13,348
Investment income wE W 5,508 17,550
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries ST B A BTS2 - 365
Gain on disposal of associates HEBE QN a TEH&=E - 1,438
Gain from bargain purchase EEWEMETRS 26,217 5,579
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets BIHEREEEMS G 396 17
Rental income HEWE 21,034 32,291
Others Eb 82,204 68,818
1,433,071 509,187

Government grants and subsidies mainly represent funding
received from government authorities to support certain of the
Group's research and development activities. There are no
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies related to these grants
and subsidies.

FINANCE COSTS 6.

BRI #7 Bh K b A E R AR BUR B IR T A
RAKEE THRESNES - W HEMHE
A ERB R BB R ER IR KA B
Mo

BE KA

2021
RMB’'000

2020
RMB'000
ARET T

AR®TR

Interest expenses on bank and other loans RITREMERNF SR 565,142 458,039
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENFERY 9,913 8,487
575,055 466,526
Less: Interest capitalised B BAMEF B (28,906) (30,634)
546,149 435,892
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7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BRBiATERF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ REBEHB BN TE NG, (5t A) T3
(crediting): BIFBER

150

Cost of inventories sold
Direct cost of renovation and
installation works

Direct cost of environmental engineering
and other related services

Direct cost of financial services

Direct cost of property rental and
other related services

(Write-back)/write-down of inventories to
net realisable value, net

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Amortisation of other intangible assets
Total depreciation and amortisation
Lease payments not included in the
measurement of lease liabilities
Auditor’s remuneration
Employee benefit expense (including
irectors’ remuneration (note 8)):
Wages and salaries
Pension scheme contributions (note)
Staff welfare and other expenses
Equity-settled share option expense
Service cost included in defined benefit plan

Research and development costs

Loss on disposal of items of other intangible
assets and property, plant and equipment

Impairment of property, plant and equipment

Changes in fair value of investment properties

Gain on fair value changes of financial
instruments at FVTPL

Gain on fair value changes of other
financial liabilities

Loss on disposal of debt instruments
at FVTOCI

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Gain from bargain purchase

Loss on deemed disposal of associates
Gain on termination of right-of-use assets
Impairment of goodwill

Impairment of other intangible assets
Impairment of loan receivables

Impairment/(reversal of impairment) of
contract assets, net

Impairment of trade and bills receivables, net
Impairment of prepayments, net

Impairment of other receivables, net

Foreign exchange differences, net

EEFERA
KERLRTREER
XA

RE T2 LM ERARTS
RN

TRRFS E A
%%@%&H@ﬁ%%%
BIEMKA

(BR),/ MpFER#
EE/%&{E/%&%E

ME - WENMRETE

FRESENE

HAib B B

WE RSB

W@%Eﬁéﬁ@ﬁ;$
WA E N

ZEEN S

REEFASL (BEES
M (FizE8)) -
TERF®
RSB ()
BTIRMEEMAL

LARG AN 202 B AR A <2

st ASE AR FIE Bl A ARAS AR A

T EE A AR
HEREMERLEEMYE -
MR &R EE E NEE
ME - BEKZERE
WEMEARBEEZD
BAnBESABSOSH
TEMAREBEZS
E@%@%%@;1ﬁ

HERAABEG AEM
1EWEWEﬁIAEE
HEMB QAR
BEYEME NS
BEELERE N REBE
B RAREEEMGN R
EERE
HimEEERE
r”&da FORE
géﬂﬁ/ﬂﬁ%@)

= %FEWMIE&WTF/WE/?E‘E

TR FOREFRE B
Hth e W SR IE R (B F 8
b 3= B

12
13A
15B

13C

32

12
14

13C

15A
15B
20

23
24

22,336,356 18,584,843
1,074,442 831,187
179,458 217,596
4,965 7,387
33,674 29,338
(19,004) 18,235
1,220,264 884,927
108,338 96,382
37,521 24,607
1,366,123 1,005,916
28,938 11,986
8,920 8,771
1,716,081 1,235,452
165,391 56,868
97,585 81,094
7,092 -
339 -
1,986,488 1,373,414
1,215,499 946,843
51,789 8,257
26,783 47,831
(916,828) 157,263
(199,224) (129,294)
(8,048) (13,348)

- 8,191

- (365)
(26,217) (5,579)
56,491 -
(396) (17)
24,869 20,333
1,320 -
329,279 17,068
20,491 (370)
977,947 38,510
1,448 20,074
1,824 1,231
48,560 2,328

Note: There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the

employer to reduce the existing level of contributions (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BB M

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMEIEEERSFMES
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
(A) DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (A) ES=HMH
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to WIEEAETHEARES D THEGI
the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong Companies ENTFAEEZFHMEIIOT ¢

Ordinance, is as follows:

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%ET AREETIT

Fees e 23,749 8,456
Other emoluments: HinBiS -

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 8L R E W& F 7,445 5,160

Performance related bonuses FRIEMEIELT - 4,482

Equity-settled share option expense VARR AR AS 3R 2 B R HE B 2 3,274 -

Pension scheme contributions RIKES &I 226 204

10,945 9,846

34,694 18,302
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMIrIOBRSFMES @
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEEHM &)
The remuneration of each of the directors is set out below: BEENHMEN T ¢

Equity-
Salaries, settled
allowances Performance share Pension

and benefits related option scheme

in kind bonuses expense contributions
e WRA
BER  REHAY E e
wE  BNEN A BRERx  EER @zt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR AR¥TRE AR%TR ARBTR ARETRT ARBTR

Executive directors: BES:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei BRELE 2,159 - - - 15 2,174
Mr. Zuo Manlun ERfREE 4,982 2,643 - 1,637 34 9,296
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping ERELL 2,159 - - - 15 2,174
Mr. Lai Zhigjang BEREE 2,159 - - - 29 2,188
Mr. Kong Zhaocong kLS 2,159 = = = 29 2,188
Mr. Chen Guonan REEEL 2,159 - - - 29 2,188
Dr. Lin Shaoquan wheET - 2,159 - - 14 2,173
Mr. Huang Guirong BEREE 2,159 - - - 31 2,190
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BEELE 2,159 2,643 - 1,637 15 6,454
Mr. Lin Dewei HEELE 2,159 - - - 15 2,174
22,254 7,445 - 3,274 226 33,199

Independent non-executive i FEHT

directors: £

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan  TEZ %4 299 - - - - 299
Ms. Lan Fang Brat 299 - - - - 299
Dr. Tao Zhigang BEEEL 299 - - - - 299
Mr. Cheng Dickson Bamit 299 = = = = 299
Ms. Lu Jiandong BRELT 299 - - - - 299
1,495 - - - - 1,495
23,749 7,445 - 3,274 226 34,694
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KRB BB M

8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMRILEERSHFMES @)
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

(A) DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) ESZHMH @

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Pension
and benefits related scheme
in kind bonuses  contributions

e

BME  RRES BKe
we  EEH T x
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'00
ARETE ARMTL ARMTL ARETR ARETRE

Executive directors: HITESE:
Mr. Wong Luen Hei HEEEEAE - 1,169 498 16 1,683
Mr. Zuo Manlun L1 - 1,194 498 43 1,735
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping ¥Rt - 1,169 498 16 1,683
Mr. Lai Zhigiang BERLE 1,169 - 498 27 1,694
Mr. Kong Zhaocong kLS 1,169 - 498 27 1,694
Mr. Chen Guonan REBLE 1,169 - 498 27 1,694
Dr. Lin Shaogquan wheEL - 1,628 - - 1,628
Mr. Huang Guirong HEREAE 1,168 - 498 16 1,682
Mr. Luo Jianfeng BEEgE 1,168 - 498 16 1,682
Mr. Lin Dewei Rt 1,168 - 498 16 1,682
7,011 5,160 4,482 204 16,857
Independent non-executive %I FHT
directors: =
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho, Jonathan  E Bl 554 289 - - - 289
Mr. Cheung Man Yu® RXFEED 178 - - - 178
Ms. Lan Fang Brut 289 - - - 289
Dr. Tao Zhigang SRS L 289 - - - 289
Mr. Cheng Dickson Ly abrd s 289 - - - 289
Ms. Lu Jiandong® BRERZLO 111 - - - 111
1,445 - - - 1,445
8,456 5,160 4,482 204 18,302
o Resigned as an independent non-executive director on 1 September o 202059 A1 BEHEB U IEITES
2020
@ Appointed as an independent non-executive director on 1 September @ R2020F9 A VR ERERBLIFNTE
2020 =
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8. DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION AND FIVE 8. EEFMrRIEBARESFMES @
HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
(A) DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION (Continued) (A) EEBHM @)
No director waived or agreed to waive any emolument and BMESENEXRABEREEAHE -
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as AN B BB B N B AN Bl s 7
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as MBEAEERSIEABBEEMRE
compensation for loss of office. EXHEREE -
There were no other emoluments paid or payable to the FRPED N ENBYIFRITES
independent non-executive directors during the year (2020: B EMBE (20204F : &) ©
Nil).
(B) FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (B) EEEEHTFMES
The Group's five highest paid employees during the year FR  AEEBREESFMEEL A
were all directors. Details of the remuneration of these BEE - RFAZSESNHFNFBSE
directors during the year are set out in note 8(A) above. R EXHIFES(A) °
9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 9. FEBIAX
2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
{iEs AR¥T T ARETT
Current tax BUEARE IR
PRC Fh 602,213 938,283
Hong Kong BB 1,331 -
Other jurisdictions Hipr AR 221,692 443
825,236 938,726
(Oven)/under provision in prior years BAEFECRE) TRERE
PRC H (82,311) (82,716)
Hong Kong i 43 -
Other jurisdictions Hh R AR (54) (35)
(82,322) (82,751)
Deferred tax EERIA 34 45,779 140,196
Total tax charge for the year FARIAX HEE 788,693 996,171
The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits AEBERAEEXE RGN T EREER
arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in which members of R EERFTEAS MRS MIZEBE

the Group are domiciled and operate. EHRNPTIEH
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

HONG KONG PROFITS TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.50%
(2020: 16.50%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the year, except for one subsidiary of the
Group which is a qualifying entity under the two-tiered profits tax
rates regime. The first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of this
subsidiary are taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable
profits are taxed at 16.50%.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, no provision for Hong
Kong profits tax was made as the Group had no assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong.

PRC CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Group's income tax provision in respect of its operations in
mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rates
on the taxable profits for both years, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof.

Certain of the Group's PRC subsidiaries are qualified as High and
New Technology Enterprises and are entitled to a preferential
corporate income tax rate of 15.00% during both years.

INCOME TAX FOR OTHER JURISDICTIONS

The Group's tax provision in respect of other jurisdictions has
been calculated at the applicable tax rates in accordance with the
prevailing practices of the jurisdictions in which the Group
operates.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, income tax of other
jurisdictions mainly arose from Australia and Canada for the
Group's disposal of investment properties.

ire MR MR

Fri8BiR X ()

EBFEHR
EBEFNEHERFAREBEENMLTIER
T 5% I B9 16.50% (2020 £ = 16.50% ) &1 42 #
& HEAREE B BARARAMMHF
BHEHNENEERIN - ZHBEBAAE
2,000,000 7% 7T 4 FIE 7R B 34 1)1 8.25% o it &
B E BB R E B4R 16.50% &9 1 R &4
i o

HE2020F12831BIEFE  ERNAEE
RERNWTEREFBELTMERTGER - W
WEAIRE BTN ST B -

HE RSB
AEEUAHBREZZ BEREMNRE
% - B E S E R R ER BOE A IR B A A R AT
HRBERBEBHAEHEE

AEBETRENBANRAEFESTS
MR EASE  TZ150%0ERLE
PSR «

Hi A E BN TEHREA

AEE A RDAEEOHARBERIEAR
KEKEXRBAENRAERRITENMNE
RBEREHE -

HE2021F12A831HILFE  HibmJkME
EHOMEHEZRERAEENBMENER
HEREYE -
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9. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 9. FrEBiBEZ @)

RAARBRE D WE R BMEREERE
FE Bt R S E RO I A BR 5 AR M 0 B TR B S

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax

156

at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in which the majority of

the Company’s subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at

the effective tax rate is as follows:

HIRERR R REATERSEERNT -

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT
Profit before tax B 75 A g A 3,807,282 4,753,560
Tax at the PRC corporate income tax LR B EFTIF IR 25%
rate of 25% AHEABIA 951,821 1,188,390
Effect of different taxation rates TRMER ZE (133,513) (412,939
Share of results of associates PANI=E: /N (60,685) (50,808)
Share of result of a joint venture DME—HEEREEE (320) (292)
Income not subject to tax BRRBWE (10,326) (51,684)
Expenses not deductible for tax ANATHNF R 2 49,721 58,459
Tax losses utilised from prior years EBABRTFEHRIBEEE (44,062) (26,431)
Tax losses not recognised RERRIEERE 95,814 132,019
Adjustments in respect of current tax FLBEFE BT IR
of prior years BT (82,322) (82,751)
Tax incentive on eligible expenses & B 2 BT OUED (109.254) -
Effect of withholding tax at 5% on the AR BIFEIME R AR 5k
distributable profits of the Company's i M3 5% B TR 1R FT 1S
subsidiaries in PRC =0p- A= 131,819 242,208
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAEEERHEFTENHIBES N 788,693 996,171
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10. DIVIDENDS 10. K&
HKS HK$'000 HK$ HK$'000
BT TiEx BT TAL
per share per share
i Bk
2021 interim dividend paid 01 FENFHRE
(2020: 2020 interim dividend paid) (20005 : 200 FEMHHRE) 0.12 372,290 0.12 3712290
Less: Dividends for shares held for B SR B B R
share award scheme (note 38(B)) HIR S (M5 38(B)) 0.12 (2,759) 012 2.759)
369,531 369,531
2020 final dividend paid WNFERRERE
(2020: 2019 final dividend paid) (020% : 09FENXSRS) 0.38 1,178919 028 868,677
Less: Dividends for shares held for B R REE R
share award scheme (note 38(B)) 1% 8 (3 38(8)) 0.38 (8,737) 0.28 (6437)
1,170,182 862,240
1,539,713 1,231,771
Equivalent to FER RMB1,278,424,000 RMB1,095,414,000
AR 1,278,424,0007 ARH1,095,4140007C
Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, final dividend of RBERE EFEREAREZE2021F
HK26 cents in respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 per 12A3MBLFEERARAKRE TR E B
ordinary share in aggregate of HK$800,651,000 has been 2671l - & 5800,651,000 % 7T T 7 2022
declared by the Board to the owners of the Company whose 7RA8BRIARNFIRELZMOERRIES
names appear on the Company's register of members on 8 July A (20205 : REAIR B TR E AR 38 1L -
2022 (2020: final dividend of HK38 cents per ordinary share in £7571,170,182,00078 7T ) » L& ZE 2021 4F 12
aggregate of HK$1,170,182,000). The amount of final dividend ANBLEESRNARBKRETERGEES
declared for the year ended 31 December 2021 is calculated g E R BIE BITIRMOEE - RBR
based on the number of issued shares, less dividends for shares RN ET 2T AR BETE -

held for the share award scheme, at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements.
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11. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO M. XRFEEAEREBRER
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are RIBEATZBNESRERAREEAR -

based on:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTT
Earnings 2R
Profit attributable to owners of the Company 5T & &R F A K& 8 B 765
used in the basic and diluted earnings o NCIEZZE DN
per share calculation A & F 3,044,159 3,750,829

Number of Shares

R EE
2021

Shares R 13
Weighted average number of ERITEALINE

ordinary shares in issue F e 3,102,418,400  3,102,418,400
Weighted average number of shares held for [ {5 82En 5T &I A4 A% (5 H0 4

the share award scheme Fi5g (22,991,000) (22,991,000)
Adjusted weighted average number of ST G MREA K S B 6

ordinary shares of the Company in FH?'J EI'JK NEIE T

issue used in the basic and diluted Me e SR I

earnings per share calculation Dﬁi’/]%( 3,079,427,400 3,079,427,400
The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in issue REBEREZE 2021 F £ 2020F 12 A 31 B 1L
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, FEARSBITNEEHE LB -

respectively.
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12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

12. 1% - BERRHE

Furniture,
fixtures
Land and Plant and and office Leasehold  Construction
buildings machinery equipment Vehicles improvements in progress
FE 4B g
1#HEEF  BEREE RBLERG EHIE nEEE HBIE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL ARETTL
Cost: HA:
At 1 January 2020 RANE1R1H 5678440 5,550,319 306,564 20471 138,453 1731310 13,631,557
Additions "E 61,374 531917 16,894 15,675 31740 898,634 1562,234
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEREAR 97,888 21,568 2,002 53 10279 - 138,240
Transfers E 304015 241,792 7636 2,209 9285 (564977) -
Disposals e (106,947) (175,530) (13451) 9174) (468) (73.093) (378.663)
Exchange realignment AR (13,648) 2212 (175) (901) (448) (357) (18,401)
At 31 December 2020 and RANENANER
1 January 2021 021F1818 6,021,122 6,173,794 318,870 228,843 194,841 1997517 14,934,987
Additions AE 126,855 1,050,945 20982 459,201 19925 1,659,99% 3,337 904
Acquisitions of YERBAR
subsicfaries (note 39) (Ht3£39) 206623 17032 9,852 3019 1374 137,072 528,266
Transfers B 780,509 615,576 15947 11,606 17312 (1,440,950) -
Transfer from investment HReREnE
properties note 14) (fitzx14) 31516 - - - - - 31,516
Disposals He (85,295) (274500 (9,059) (11.387) (37,015 (6316) (423572)
Exchange realignment EREE (10,664) (27,065) (390) (1,185) (2028) (26,643) (67.975)
At 31 December 2021 RA1E1AYE 7,070,666 7,709,076 356,202 690,097 194,409 2,320,676 18,341,126
Accumulated depreciation ZHHER
and impairment; B
At 1 January 2020 RANE1A1H (1,334,197) (2,446,264 (206,484) (156,494) (80,640) (12,655 (4236,730)
Provided for the year FREE (314719) (484,308) (35842) (22133 (27925) - (884927)
Disposals e 12,855 99,061 10,790 7,954 266 - 130,926
Impairment i - (507) (3192 (14) 2.110) (42,008) (47.831)
Exchange realignment BEHAE 1,083 1578 366 662 - - 3689
At 31 December 2020 and RANEF12EINER
1 January 2021 021F1A18 (1634978) (2.830.440) (234.362) (170,027) (110.409) (54,663) (5,034,879)
Provided for the year ik (392,018) (724,485) (39,730) (39,489) (24543 - (1,220,264
Disposals e 62027 139163 7,388 8,452 36,298 - 253,328
Impairment i - (12,29) (451) 13 (5,24) (8,807) (26,783)
Exchange realignment BHAE 7563 8760 % 828 1,79 - 19039
At 31 December 2021 RANE12A31H (1957,406)  (3,419,298) (267,063) (200,222) (102,100) (634700  (6,009,559)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2021 RANE12A31H 5,113,260 4,289,778 89,139 489,875 92,309 2,257,206 12,331,567
At 31 December 2020 RONE12A31H 4,386,144 3,343,354 84,508 58,816 84,432 1942854 9,900,108

Included in the Group’s property, plant and equipment are
freehold lands which had a net carrying amount of RMB84,167,000
(2020: RMB19,639,000). The freehold lands are situated outside

Hong Kong.

FFARKEME - BE RREBHKAFEL
i 7 BR T B A A R % 84,167,000 7T (2020
F: AR®19,639,0007T) © #ZKA¥EREL
HWRIRBEABRI
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LEASES

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE

The Group has lease contracts for various items of leasehold
land, plants and buildings, vehicles and other equipment used in
its operations. For leasehold land classified as prepaid land lease
payments previously, lump sum payments were made upfront to
acquire the leasehold land from the owners with lease periods of
50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the terms
of these land leases. For other leased lands classified as
operating lease previously, they generally have lease terms
between 10 and 50 years. Leases of plants and buildings
generally have lease terms between 1 and 10 years. Leases of
vehicles generally have lease terms between 1 and 3 years, while
other equipment generally have lease terms between 1 and 5
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group. There are several
lease contracts that include extension and termination options
and variable lease payments, which are further discussed below.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. *H%.E(ﬁ)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) AEBEREBEA ()
A. Right-of-use assets A, EAREE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets AEBFERAEEENERAEARRTNRN
and the movements during the year are as follows: HEBIAT -

Leasehold  Plants and Other
land*  buildings Vehicles  equipment Total

HERE

it EERET ERIA  HARE )
RMB000 ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
AREBTT ARETE ARETE ARBTT ARBTL

At 1 January 2020 R2020F1A1H 1,454,108 145,131 941 14,215 1,614,395
Additions NE 453,159 12,791 117 - 466,067
Acquisitions of subsidiaries  UEEHTE AR 65,011 - - - 65,011
Depreciation charge (note 7) &R (Fi5E7) (41,323) (52,597) (393) (2,069) (96,382)
Termination ®E - (364) - - (364)
Exchange realignment (& 5 % (7,951) (4,704) (20) - (12,675)
At 31 December 2020 and 2020128318

1 January 2021 20211818 1,923,004 100,257 645 12,146 2,036,052
Additions NE 172,217 77,651 536 2,216 252,620
Acquisitions of subsidiaries  YXEEM B A A

(note 39) (P5E39) 51,431 166,278 1,134 3,943 222,786
Transfer from investment ABERENE

properties (note 14) (BFzE14) 8,361 = = = 8,361
Depreciation charge (note 7)  $T &R (Fit37) (51,787) (53,773) (604) (2,174)  (108,338)
Termination R1E - (10,795) - - (10,795)
Exchange realignment [E 5 (19,028) (2,695) (9) - (21,732)
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A31H 2,084,198 276,923 1,702 16,131 2,378,954

#

The Group has obtained the land use right certificates for all # REBEDBUISHAHEEEZELIE L

leasehold land except for those under operating lease arrangements FAREE - MEIREDFE B A R 44,337,000

with a net carrying amount of RMB44,337,000 (2020: RMB42,442,000). 70 (20204F : AR¥542,442,0007T) By 48 &
EERHET AL HERIN o
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. *H%.E(ﬁ)
THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued) AEBEEREABEA (&)
B. Lease liabilities B. HE&RE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEAENEEELRRNFANNE S
during the year are as follows: T
2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETFT
As at 1 January »1A1H 162,316 206,124
Additions NE 86,399 41,678
Acquisitions of subsidiaries g 1) PN 323,871 -
Interest expenses (note 6) FERZ (H5E6) 9,913 8,487
Payments (NE (75,339) (85,649)
Termination 42k (11,191) (381)
Exchange realignment P& 5 (3,601) (7,943)
As at 31 December ®W12A31H 492,368 162,316
Analysed into: DA
Current portion TRENE 77,670 53,448
Non-current portion FERBE D 414,698 108,868
492,368 162,316
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note HEBBEMNIH A TREERE B W
44 to the consolidated financial statements. KM 5E 44 NIFEE -
C. The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to C. REZNCRIAHEEESERNSEN
leases are as follows: T

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets FREEENERY 108,338 96,382

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEAENSMX 9,913 8,487

Gain on termination of right-of-use assets BIEREEEMSN &S (396) (17)
Expense relating to short-term leases and RHRE R THENER

other leases with remaining lease terms sk BlfEmr E A EE

ended on or before year end CopiElz g 22,837 10,903

Expense relating to leases of low-value assets REEEEHENHEBMX 6,101 1,083

Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIEEANERN AR 146,793 116,838
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13. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)

D.

Extension and termination options

The Group has several lease contracts that include
extension and termination options. These options are
negotiated by management to provide flexibility in
managing the leased-asset portfolio and they are aligned
with the Group's business needs. Set out below are the
undiscounted potential future rental payments for extension
options which the Group is not reasonably certain to
exercise:

Extension options expected TRER &7
not to be exercised A BRRE

ire MR MR

13. AE @)

REBEREBA (8

D. EMRAILHE
AEEALENE SRR RKILENTE
E6H - ZEEERBEEEHE
NEERERHEEEHESG XA
KSENEHFTE - TXHIAEEA
I HETE T T AR e R IR 2 BT
ARFME K -

2021
Payable Payable
within after

Total

five years

five years
AREE#R
XA
RMB’000
AR¥T T

AREER
=4
RMB’'000

AR®T

#Et
RMB’000
AR®T T

2020

Payable Payable
within after
five years Total
BARAEFNA
)
RMB’000

ARETT

five years
ARAFIE
A
RMB'000
ARETT

st
RMB'000
ARBTT

Extension options expected TEER & ITER
not to be exercised T ERRE 57,261 14,744 72,005
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13. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (Continued)

E. Variable lease payments
The Group has lease contracts for land that contain variable
payments based on the unit purchase price of rice
announced by local government. Management's objective
is to align the lease expense with the amount paid last time.
The following provides information on the Group's variable
lease payments, including the magnitude in relation to

fixed payments:

13. AE @)

REBEEREEA (8

E. AWZAER
AEBEB AR BN RMEEA
WiEE BN 2R LHEERL -
EEENBERAEMEEMNNE ERX
NS BERTE % - TXRHAREA
SERAERERNER  SREEEE
NHRBEBHOEHRE

2021
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
& R AR #st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®BTR AR®T
Fixed rent EEHE 100,627 - 100,627
Variable rent only ErEfe - 81 81
100,627 81 100,708
2020
Fixed Variable
payments payments Total
Eefis  WEHR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTIT ARETT ARBTRT
Fixed rent EFEMe 85,569 - 85,569
Variable rent only BRI EMEE - 80 80
85,569 80 85,649

A 5% (2020: 5%) increase in unit purchase price of rice
would increase total lease payments by 5% (2020: 5%).
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13. LEASES (Continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSOR

During the year, the Group leases certain commercial properties
in Asia, North America and Oceania which were classified as
investment properties. The rental income of these properties
amounting to RMB117,631,000 (2020: RMB87,773,000) was
recognised and included in “Revenue” in profit or loss. Certain
office premises, machineries and equipment were classified as
property, plant and equipment under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the
tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent
adjustments according to the then prevailing market conditions.
Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB21,034,000 (2020: RMB32,291,000), details of which are
included in note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the undiscounted lease
payment receivables by the Group in future periods under non-

cancellable operating leases with its tenants are as follows:

13.

ire MR MR

HEwm

AEBEAHBEA

FR - AEBPBEMN - AEEMNRAEMEE
FREAEEMENEEDE - FINZLY
X¥EBRANBEKZE B AR 117,631,000
7L (20204 : AR¥587,773,000 ) Wit A8
HHTWA IR - BEFRAE - e REHER
KEREZHET)DEAME  BEMRE -
ZEMENKTBEERAEINRES -
WAEEEMSHALEHETHEAE - K
EERFRABRNBERTAARE
21,034,0007T(20204F = AR¥E32,291,0007T) -
HBERN R M ISHRRWES -

RERER - AEERBE AT HECENRE
F 7S 2R HA i e LR 5 WHR 9 AR B 2R A & R an
T

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%ET AREEFIT
Not more than 1 year TZ1 542,590 397,186
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FAERE2F 118,002 82,813
Over 2 years to 3 years 2F N EE3F 18,242 17,017
Over 3 years to 4 years 3FUEEAF 17,624 14,016
Over 4 years to 5 years AFLNEESF 16,604 13,345
Over 5 years S5 E 14,052 13,989
727,114 538,366
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13. LEASES (Continued) 13. *H%.E(ﬁ)

THE GROUP AS A LESSOR (Continued)

The disaggregation of these office premises, machineries and

REBEFERHAA (8

DRRKEHERTYE  BERREH
NE -~ W RREZ TR ERARE
BENHREIIAT -

equipment classified as property, plant and equipment under
operating leases and the reconciliation of the carrying amount at

the beginning and end of the period are set out below:

Land and Plant and
buildings machinery Total
T REF R 55 K2 #k 25 et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT ARETIT
Cost: R :
At 1 January 2020 R2020F181H 22,999 557,782 580,781
Additions NE 76,058 724,590 800,648
Expiration and termination B ER R 4% E - (139,008) (139,008)
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F12A31B X
1 January 2021 20211 A1H 99,057 1,143,364 1,242,421
Additions NE - 471,295 471,295
Expiration and termination FIER R AR E - (48,024) (48,024)
At 31 December 2021 M2021F12 A31H 99,057 1,566,635 1,665,692
Accumulated depreciation: REE -
At 1 January 2020 MR2020F181H (6,574) (122,645) (129,219)
Provided for the year FREE (23,276) (220,335) (243,611)
Expiration and termination B H R a2 - 58,188 58,188
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F12A31B X
1 January 2021 202151 HA1H (29,850) (284,792) (314,642)
Provided for the year F R (4,282) (133,832) (138,114)
Expiration and termination I HR M &% 1 E - 26,699 26,699
At 31 December 2021 20214612 A 31 B (34,132) (391,925  (426,057)
Net carrying amount: BRTERE :
At 31 December 2021 M2021F 12 A31H 64,925 1,174,710 1,239,635
At 31 December 2020 M2020%F12 A 31 H 69,207 858,572 927,779
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ire MR MR

14. REYZE

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTRE ARETRT

At 1 January »1A1H 6,973,570 6,870,181
Additions NE 1,806,613 439,356
Acquisitions of subsidiaries LSt i B /e 2 A 39 189,949 -
Transfer to property, plant and FREME - BFE

equipment R 12 (31,516) -
Transfer to right-of-use assets HEEFRAEEE 13A (8,361) -
Transfer to asset held for sale TR EBEHEEE 27 (929,022) -
Changes in fair value NIREEEE 7 916,828 (157,263)
Disposals He (547,281) -
Exchange realignment i 5 S8 B (561,141) (178,704)
At 31 December R12 8318 7,809,639 6,973,570

Further summary details of the Group's investment properties are

set out in the section headed "Summary of Major Investment

Properties” of this report.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under

operating leases, further summary details of which are included

in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

AREBREMERBZAE — P BHEN AR
SFEBEREMEME] —Ff -

REKEHEHETE=ZTNREMENE
— IR EFBEHNGRE M BRRME 13-
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

VALUATION PROCESSES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment
properties were stated at fair value and were revalued by
independent professionally qualified valuers detailed below:

American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd. For properties in Thailand
Acumentis Pty Ltd. For properties in Australia
Metropolitan Valuation Services Inc. & For properties in US

CBRE Valuation & Advisory Services
Colliers International Realty Advisors Inc.  For properties in Canada
Guangdong Jingxin Real Estate Land For properties in PRC
Asset Evaluation Co., Ltd.

KJPP Susan Widjojo & Rekan in For properties in Indonesia
association with VPC Asia Pacific

Albawsala Real Estate Valuation For properties in Dubai

SRE Global Pte. Ltd. For properties in Myanmar

Advantage Property Services Co., Ltd. For properties in Cambodia

The valuations performed by the valuers for financial reporting
purposes were reviewed by management. Management also
discussed the valuation processes and results with the valuers.
The net fair value gains or losses on revaluation are included in
“other revenue, income and gains” or “other expenses” in profit
or loss, respectively.

Management reviewed the valuation results by verifying all major

inputs and assumptions and assessing the reasonableness of
such valuations.
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American Appraisal (Thailand) Ltd. RREWEM

Acumentis Pty Ltd. SENERE

Metropolitan Valuation Services Inc. &~ GiEEI#IEME
CBRE Valuation & Advisory Services

Colliers International Realty Advisors Inc.  GLINEA#IE T

hall[3

ha[13

ERRERMET AR SERENENT
BB AT

KJPP Susan Widjojo & Rekan in REVEMEMS
association with VPC Asia Pacific

Albawsala Real Estate Valuation FHEWENE

SRE Global Pte. Ltd. SAEANENS

Advantage Property Services Co., Ltd. ~ BREENEM =S

EEEAEEMNEEMUMB2HRE WOATE
fhfE - BEE S B EM I wGEEREF X
BR - AEBMEEN QA EEFNEAE
BIoREt ABRE AR [EBRA - RS R
Mgt B4R ]
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14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 14. BREYE @)
VALUATION TECHNIQUES AND FAIR VALUE HEEFERAABERE
HIERARCHY
The following table shows the valuation techniques used by the TRINMEERMEBEE AR BEKFITANGE
valuers in the determination of fair values. There were no FiE o ERHET AR EIE (T EREF -

significant changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

Fair value Valuation techniques Unobservable inputs
DABE fHER* THHERAE
2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR AREBTE

Vacant lands and buildings 3,683,161 3,909,448  Direct/sales comparison Premium (discount) in
approach quality of land™
B R B HERBOR B 'S SEEN
B (Hrag) ™
Lands and buildings 2,333,443 1,650,988  Residual method Gross development value®

and estimated
construction cost®

bz Y EY/E 3 FerRE HEREE?
MARFH KA
Lands and buildings 1,793,035 1,413,134 Income capitalisation Capitalisation rate®
approach and market rent®
st yYEYES W EARNMEE NI e =
NmigHE®

7,809,639 6,973,570

Note: BEE

o The higher the quality of land, the higher the fair value o TEERS  ANEBEERS

@ The higher the gross development value, the higher the fair value @ HBEREEDS  AREEDS

@ The higher the estimated construction cost, the lower the fair value @ HErEEX AR R AN EERE

@ The higher the capitalisation rate, the lower the fair value @ BARCLERR - AR EBEERK

® The higher the market rent, the higher the fair value © misaEeRs  AREERS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's investment RIPEHR  REEZEFEATTERE A
properties were within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as their gng REFBWINEMEETAEALEHE
valuations were arrived at by reference to certain significant IORER B = o ERBENE = i A siaE
unobservable inputs. There were no transfers into or out of Level H (20204 - &) -

3 during the year (2020: Nil).
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15. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE

170

ASSETS

15. BERHMETLEE

(A) GOODWILL (A) EE

2021 2020
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
BT ARET T ARETIT
At 1 January »1H1TH 381,408 398,589
Acquisitions of subsidiaries Ay =ING] 39 139,395 3,152
Impairment A 7 (24,869) (20,333)
Exchange realignment [E H A (77) -
At 31 December M12A831H 495,857 381,408

(B) OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (B) HhEREE

Operating  Patent and Computer
concession  proprietary Customer software
Trademark  Brand name rights technologies  relationship  and others Total
BAR g
[l fH  BORER EEH B )
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETRH \RETT ARETR Tr  ARETT ARETR
Cost: B
At 1 January 2020 R2020E1A1E 79,885 110,577 24.550 121,594 - 87276 423,882
Additions RE 483 - - 1427 - 19,569 21479
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEEHB AR 37,669 - - 11,928 - 84 49681
Disposals HE @ - - (1,629) - (1,520) (3,151)
Exchange realignment EHEE 8 - - (66) - (26) (84)
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F12A318R
1 January 2021 202151818 118,043 110,577 24.550 133,254 - 105,383 491,807
Additions NE 94 - - 5927 - 6,371 12,392
Acquisitions of subsidiaries IR B AT
(note 39) (H339) 48,520 - 8992 92,260 47,700 3151 200,623
Disposals HE - - - - - (3429) (3,429)
Exchange realignment [E A% (4,035) - (638) (113) - (313 (5,099)
At 31 December 2021 R2021E12 4318 162,622 110,577 32,904 231,328 47,700 111,163 696,294
Accumulated amortisation: s o
At 1 January 2020 20201 A1H (4,284) (15) - (16,099) - (67,375) (87,773)
Provided for the year EREE (6,804) (10) - (10,221) - (7.572) (24,607)
Disposals HeE - - - 1,181 - 310 1491
Exchange realignment i ) - - - - 13 1"
At 31 December 2020 and R00F 124318 R
1 January 2021 021E181A (11,090) (25) - (25,139) - (74,624) (110,878)
Provided for the year FREE (7,063) (11) (140) (21,843) - (8,464) (37,521)
Disposals HeE - - - - - 622 622
Impairment HE - - (1,320) - - - (1,320)
Exchange realignment [ i b - 314 35 - 284 639
At 31 December 2021 20215124318 (18,147) (36) (1,146) (46,947) - (82,182) (148,458)
Net carrying amount: REFE:
At 31 December 2021 2021512318 144,475 110,541 31,758 184,381 47,700 28,981 547,836
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12 4318 106,953 110,552 24,550 108,115 - 30,759 380,929
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16.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill, brand name
and trademark and operating concession rights with indefinite
useful lives set out in note 15 have been allocated to twelve
individual cash-generating units (“CGUs"), comprising
subsidiaries engaging in the following businesses:

. provision of environmental engineering services;

° provision of sewage treatment services;

o provision of hazardous waste treatment services;

o provision of solid waste treatment services;

o manufacture and lease of aluminium formworks;

o provision of e-commerce services;

. cultivation of flowers and plants;

o manufacture and sale of plastic pipes and pipe fittings; and
o manufacture and sale of waterproof materials.

16.

ire MR MR

R N H A B R A6 A F HI Y
BREERENR

SURERAME - MEISHENEE - AR
PR A] 2 A AR P S S IR A AR S
DEET—EERREEEEM(REE
HEBAI])  ZEBLBREMEEIATEBH
MEAR :

o RMEIRTIERS

o RHUTKEER ;

o RHUEkREREERS

o RUEIREVEIER

o BUENHEIREI

o EHERRS

o HBEERNEY:

o  BHENMHEBHEBEBREMN R
o BUERIHERIKMH o
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILLAND 16. BEREMEEROEREHY
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH | EERENR @
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

The carrying amounts of goodwill, brand name and trademark RBEMRDEEZFEVNDE  BRK
and operating concession rights at the end of the reporting HEMEFEEENREmENT ¢

period allocated to these units are as follows:

Brand name Operating

and  concession
Goodwill  trademark rights

BE  ERRER  HCER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT AR%TrR

Guangzhou EP Environmental BN ERRRE TI2RAt

Engineering Ltd.* and its subsidiary BRARREMEAF

("GZEP") (TGzZEP]) - 110,520 23,230
Hainan Baolai Industrial & Trading BREERIEARAAR

Co., Ltd.* and its subsidiary (“Baolai") HBE ARk ]) 39,997 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao Environmental LERKERREH

Technology Co., Ltd.* and its BRARKENMBAR

subsidiaries (“Jiangsu Yongbao") (DIEXE]D) 276,098 = =
Guangzhou KingHing Construction M S E R R

Technology Ltd.* and its subsidiaries BRARREKEAR

("Guangzhou KingHing") (TEM=E]) 37,292 - -
Guangdong Jinying Flower Seedling BREBETENRERAF

Co., Ltd.* ("Guangdong Jinying") (TEx&&]) 1,763 - -
Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. 1,312 34,663 -
China National Petroleum (Guangdong) — ##{EE (ER) Bk 15

Waterproof Co., Ltd. and BRARRHENMBAR

its subsidiaries ("CNPW") ([FhEE]) 70,837 - -
Guangdong Xingfa Environmental EHREBIRER

Technology Co., Ltd.* ERAR

("Guangdong Xingfa”) (TER#EE]) 3,843 - -
CNPW New Material Technology Taizhou # i {E[E #41 BHEHE Z2)1 A R 2 7]

Co., Ltd.* ("CNPW Taizhou") (TR EREZM ) 29,277 - -
Shenzhen EDA CLOUD Technologies RINT P EERRBRAF

Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries K H KB AR

("EDA CLOUD") ([ZEE]) 35,438 - -

495,857 145,183 23,230
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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16. IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND 16. BEKEMEERUFEHRAEHRN
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH | EERENR @
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

Brand name  Operating
and  concession
Goodwill  trademark rights

HE ERKER RErEER
RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTIT ARBTT AR®TT

GZEP GZEP - 110,520 23,230
Foshan Shunde Huifengyuan LT B E LR

Environmental Engineering RIRTIEEIR

Management Co., Ltd.* BRAR

("Huifengyuan”) (DEZIR]) 7,457 - 1,320
Baolai =R 39,997 - -
Jiangsu Yongbao ST #EROK TR 276,098 - -
Guangzhou KingHing M = 37,292 - -
Guangdong Qicheng Information SRR (= 2l

Technology Co., Ltd.* BRAT]

("Guangdong Qicheng”) ([ERBE]) 17,412 _ _
Guangdong Jinying EReE 1,763 - -
Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. 1,389 36,713 -

381,408 147,233 24,550
Management regarded brand name and trademark and BIRERABBERSFEENES M EE
operating concession rights acquired through business MFreEEEBERAFERTH  tiH
combinations having indefinite useful lives because they are REFER EEEENIE S A -

expected to generate net cash inflows indefinitely.

The recoverable amount of each CGU has been determined REEABN2ANESENERRERE
based on value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections BRHAEZREBEBT MBS RN
which are based on financial budgets approved by management TIIRBEEEESE c AFHMEEE - B
covering a five-year period. The growth rate used to extrapolate TFEMHeREERA2% B REHEE
cash flows beyond the five-year period is 2% and the pre-tax MIReRETEAFAERSMAEIRENT

discount rates applied to cash flow projections are as follows:

Pre-tax

discount rate

BAl AR =

GZEP GZEP 15.3%
Huifengyuan ELR 10.3%
Baolai =S 12.6%
Jiangsu Yongbao TLERIK I 13.7%
Guangzhou KingHing BN 5= 52 15.9%
Guangdong Qicheng EREE 15.8%
Guangdong Jinying ER&A 16.8%
Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. 15.9%
CNPW o fE R 13.7%
Guangdong Xingfa R R 14.8%
CNPW Taizhou o £ P 2R M 15.0%
EDA CLOUD HEE 23.7%
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174

IMPAIRMENT TESTING ON GOODWILL AND
OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS WITH
INDEFINITE USEFUL LIVES (Continued)

Other key assumptions for the value in use calculation relate to
the estimation of cash inflows/outflows which include budgeted
sales and gross margin. Such estimation is based on the units’
past performance and management'’s expectations for the market
development. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the carrying
amount of each CGU to exceed its recoverable amount.

At the end of the reporting period, based on the value in use
calculation, impairment losses amounting to RMB7,457,000 and
RMB1,320,000 were recognised on the relevant goodwill and
operating concession rights of Huifengyuan, and RMB17,412,000
was recognised on the relevant goodwill of Guangdong Qicheng
in respect of the current year, which arose from the expected
decline in the market demand.

At 31 December 2020, based on the value in use calculation of
Anhui Jianghuai Quality Technology Testing Service Co., Ltd.,
Hunan Huaqging Testing Technology Co., Ltd., Guangdong
Zhongheng Precision Metal Manufacture Co., Ltd. and
Guangdong Yitong Technology Co., Ltd., impairment losses
amounting to RMB8,755,000, RMB1,726,000, RMB1,989,000 and
RMB7,863,000, respectively, were recognised on the relevant
goodwill in respect of the year ended 31 December 2020, which
arose from the expected decline in the market demand.

Except for goodwill and operating concession rights mentioned
above, there are no impairments of any other CGUs containing
goodwill, brand name and trademark and operating concession
rights with indefinite useful lives (2020: Nil).

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

16. BENK E B &R ERFH

| EERENR @

AEAEREENEMIRZRREBREER
HEBREMENRSRA MENM[EE
B - BRI DERERIEMABERR R
BEEHERNTSERROBEMEL - BE
EBRE  EAZERRAEHANENAE
EP T eEYRReELEURANERHAE
HBHESBMA KBS

RRERKR - ANEREBENE  AFER
BUELIRMAR R R R R RS A S B FER
B E BB A R #7,457,0000T M A R #
1,320,000 7 * A K2 ok FE SRR A0 4B 7 2 v
ZREEB AR 17,412,0007T @ TS
HRTEEA T RFTER

20201231 H  ERLZHETHELEE
Fffrg A RSB R AR - 2 AR
BRAF - BRAERESBREERAF]
MER—BEERMDERATNEREER
B HZ2020F12A31HILFEC I
B B ERIBERE 18 A R’ 8,755,000 7T
AR ¥1,726,0007C ~ A R # 1,989,000 7T &
AR¥E7,863,0007T ¢ WG FHRKIEHT
FEFTEN ©

B B OB RS RTINS A
EEmE  AERAEAFHOERLE
TR AP 2 IR 2 B A B AR (B (2020
T

17. REEE DTSR

2021 2020

RMB'000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Share of net assets PGB EFE 2,132,251 1,922,508
Goodwill on acquisitions WHEE AR 486,739 472,669
2,618,990 2,395,177

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI2EE@ZERER AT
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17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 17. REFE AR NER @)
Particulars of the associates as at 31 December 2021 are as R2021F12 4318 - BRE R alfEENT -
follows:
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ FiiEEAL
Registered registration  Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
capital  and business interest power sharing  activity
EMRL
dfER HEMREXEE AEEER EiaH FEXH
Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited RMB3,744,000 ~ Cayman Islands 26 26 26 Manufacture and sale of
aluminium profiles
BYRERRARRA AR 3,744,000 70 FEHS RERFERAM
Foshan Hechuang Yingke Real Estate RMB180,000,000 PRC 38 38 38 Property development
Development Co., Ltd.*
BTaelBNEEREERAR K 180,000,0007C i NEER
Guangdong Home Electronic Appliances RMB40,000,000 PRC 30 30 30 E-commerce platform
World E-Commerce Co., Ltd.*
ERFEHREFHBERAA AR 40,000,007 e EFEBTAR
Guangdong Gold Ashlar Industry RMB6,667,000 PRC 25 25 25 Investment

Financing Investment and
Development Co., Ltd.*

ERENNERREERARNAA AR 6,667,000 i A
Guangzhou Luhang Agricultural RMB123,410,000 PRC 38 38 38 Agriculture development
Technology Co., Ltd.*
BMERERMRARAR? AR 1234100007 i RERR
Jiangyin Yongqing Water Purifying RMB5,000,000 PRC 20 20 20 Manufacture and sale of
Agent Co., Ltd.* chemical products
TRmAEFKEERAT AR 5,000,000 7T i RERFECIER
Shanghai Banxin loT Tech Co., Ltd.* @ RMB13,173,000 PRC 13 13 13 Provision of IoT solution
services
LRATHBENRERAR AEH13,173,00070 i B BRI RRT
Artaic, LLC? US$2,500,000 usS 17 20 11 Manufacture and sale of
mosaic tiles
Artaic, LLC? 2,500,000%7¢ *H RERHERERLRE
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Place of
incorporation/

Registered registration
capital  and business
AMER EMREXDH
Guangdong Lianwei Orchid Technology RMB1,000,000,000 PRC
Co., Ltd.*
BERBEHTHRBNARATF AR 1,000,000,0007C i
Hangzhou Yuehui Venture Capital RMB30,000,000 PRC
Partnership*
MMEERIERE AN EE A 30,000,00070 i
Foshan Aoxue Lesso Sports Culture RMB5,000,000 PRC
Development Co., Ltd.*
FLPHERHEEVRRERAT  ARE50000007 TE
Hunan VARY Tech Co., Ltd." RMB121,080,000 PRC
HEEARERNERAFD AR 121,080,0007C i
Billion Milestone Properties Inc PHP10,000,000 Philippines
Billion Milestone Properties Inc 10,000,000 FEEL R JFEE
Note:

m During the current year, the Group acquired 28.00% equity interest in Hunan
VARY Tech Co., Ltd. from independent third parties at a total consideration
of RMB264,439,000.

@ It is considered that the Group has significant influence over these
companies because the Group has a director in each of the boards of

directors of these companies.

Xingfa Aluminium Holdings Limited (“Xingfa Aluminium”), which
is considered as a material associate of the Group, is engaged in
the manufacture and sale of aluminium profiles and is accounted
for using the equity method.
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17. REEE DT REZ (@)

Ownership
interest

FrefER
49

20

49

28

40

Percentage of

FrEER

MisE

M

@

Voting Profit  Principal
power sharing  activity

RER  EERN IEXH

49 49 Cultivation of flowers

BETR

20 20 Investment

BA

49 49 Holding sports events

28 28 Provision of solid waste
treatment services

fRtElR R IE R

40 40 Property investment
NERE

RAFERN AEBRBLIE=HRBEIEES
BB BR AR 28.00% K - AREAAR
264,439,000 7T °

AEBERZUERFRESERE—RES  BR
REEEHZLRRREERNTES -

IR AR AR ([HERE D RER
AEEN—HBEABEAT  HERERHE
EIREN - WIRHERIEAER ©



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Summarised financial information of the material associate,
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ire MR MR

17. REEE DT REZR @)

BRI E AR A R RS MR A B A R
B (REAR DR BB IZREY
BRI HA A N R A B BT HE)
T

Xingfa Aluminium

RS

2021

RMB’000
ARET T

2020
RMB'000
ARBTT

Current assets TEEE 12,999,957 6,538,614
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill ERBEE(TERERE) 4,946,191 3,151,610
Goodwill on acquisition of the associate W g & A A E A )Ry 124,590 124,590
Current liabilities A= (8,770,532) (5,039,315)
Non-current liabilities SEREAE (4,229,425) (403,219)
Net assets BEFR 5,070,781 4,372,280
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEFHE(CIeEEE) 4,946,191 4,247,690
Reconciliation to the Group's interest in B B A B2 N RIS

the associate: HVHIER -
Proportion to the Group's ownership FT{h AN S & B g #E LL 1) 26.18% 26.28%
Group's share of net assets of the associate, ~ ANEEDEHE N RN EEF5

excluding goodwill (TEERE) 1,295,134 1,116,292
Goodwill on acquisitions U BE EE A Ry P R 124,590 124,590
Carrying amount of the investment KEREE 1,419,724 1,240,882
Revenue W A 15,432,900 11,900,456
Profit for the year F N A 930,397 749,327
Other comprehensive income Hin 2 11,270 (1,734)
Total comprehensive income for the year FREEKTAEE 941,667 747,593
Fair value of the Group's investment REBEREANAEE 660,086 674,872

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information
of the Group's associates that are not individually material:

Share of the associates:

DIEME QA

2021
RMB’000

AR®T T

TREIAKENHIEHEAR LR A0
BATRER

RMB'000
ARBTT

(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB, EF (879) 6,310
Other comprehensive income Hip 2wl - -
Total comprehensive income 2ERGEERE (879) 6,310
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group's REBRERBE QA

investments in the associates 48 BR TE B 1,199,266 1,154,295
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18. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE 18. R—EEELENER
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR%T T AREFTT
Share of net assets DB EFEE 12,801 11,523
Particulars of the joint venture are as follows: BEPENFBOT
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ FiEE S b
Registered registration Ownership  Voting Profit
capital  and business interest power  sharing  Principal activity
ML,
ZMER EMREXGHE AEEER REE EGEN IEXEK
Guangdong Lesso EPCO Residential RMB10,000,000 PRC 50 50 50  Provision of household
Equipment Design Services Co., Ltd. decoration design work
and maintenance
services
ERBELBRETRERARE  AR10,0000007T Gl RERERMRTR
BRRA HERT
The following table illustrates the information of the Group's TREVNAREFNRN —BELDENERNE

interest in a joint venture: o

RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Share of the joint venture: DlEEERE

Profit from continuing operations RHEREEBRN 1,278 1,167
Other comprehensive income Hith 2 EUE = -
Total comprehensive income eI ERECEE] 1,278 1,167

Carrying amount of the Group's AEERENEGLEREN
investment in the joint venture BRTEE 12,801 11,523
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19. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-current
Debt instruments at
FVTOCI:

3"5/)“:@
monBEFARLM2EKE
MEBTIA :

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4= A H

RE SRR ML

HtEMEE

2021
RMB'000

2020
RMB'000
ARBTT

ARET R

Debt securities listed in Hong Kong RNEE L HERE 31,073 29,724
Debt securities listed in PRC PR FHERE 142,500 -
173,573 29,724
Debt instruments at FVTPL: BRARBEFTABENEBIA
Unlisted convertible loans JEETRRRE R (ii) 64,530 -
Equity instruments at BAREBESARMEERE
FVTOCI: FEATA :
Equity securities listed in PRC PR EmRAE 226,616 853,576
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE T RAE 352,133 551,520
Unlisted equity securities JEERRAES 889,641 485,319
1,468,390 1,890,415
Equity instruments at FVTPL: BAREBEFABRNRATIA :
Unlisted equity securities JEFTRARES (iii) 150,775 53,958
Equity securities listed in PRC B R AR - 446,196
Equity securities listed in the R iR
United Kingdom 5 (iv) 157,763 241,983
308,538 742,137
Funds at FVTPL: RARBEFABENES
Stock funds RERES 16,480 18,730
2,031,511 2,681,006
Current mE
Debt instruments at BRARBEFALBEEKE
FVTOCI: MEBIA - (i)
Debt securities listed in Hong Kong REE ETHERE - 24,915
Debt instruments at FVTPL: BARBEFABSNEBLIA
Structured deposit EBETR 30,000 -
Unlisted convertible loans JELETRBIRER (ii) 40,000 -
70,000 -
Equity instruments at FVTPL: BAREEFABR E’JH§$I,E\ :
Equity securities listed in PRC AR AR AE 752,027 -
Derivative financial instruments: TTESHBIA:
Forward currency contracts RHIEEEAH (v) 669 -
822,696 24,915
2,854,207 2,705,921
Note: BisE
(i) The debt securities carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 5.65% to 6.90% (i) B 5 B R SR E E F F XN F5.65% = 6.90%
(2020: 5.70% to 7.85%) per annum, payable semi-annually or annually in (2020%F : 5.70% 2 7.85%) i & * BY FHBF
arrears and will mature from January 2023 to January 2026 (2020: February AT R AR 2023451 A ZE 20265 1 A B (20204F -
2021 to January 2023). 202162 A& 2023F17) »
(if) The convertible loans carry fixed interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to (i) A AR B A BB B E F R R F6.00% =

10.00% (2020: Nil) per annum, and contained a right to convert the loans into
ordinary shares of the issuers at the maturity date from May 2022 to

September 2024 (2020: Nil).

10.00% (2020 4F : f&) 5T - W B3 — 87 7 2022
FEAE2024F9ANEB A B ERERABET
AZ BB R (20204 - £) -
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20.
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OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (Continued) 19. Hitt €M EE (#)

Note: (Continued)

(iii) The equity securities contained a puttable option were classified as equity
instruments at FVTPL.

(iv)  The rights of the equity securities are restricted by a loan agreement with a
third party mentioned in note 33.

(v) The Group has entered into various forward currency contracts to manage its
exchange rate exposures. The forward currency contracts are not designated
for hedge purposes and are measured at FVTPL. Changes in the fair value of

non-hedging forward currency contracts amounting to RMB669,000 (2020:

Nil) were recognised in profit or loss.

Bt - ()

(iii)

(iv)

v)

DERBEANBEF ANBEROEATANRAE
FEa —{ERh B -

AR SR Z RN 33T E = B
ek ©

AEBERVZBERPEESH  UEEBEHER
kg - RS RBEE AN IFETES RS
WHEARBEFABZENFRGAE - FR - AR
& 669,0007T (2020 « f&) FEEH R EIE B A HH

LOAN RECEIVABLES 20. FEUWRME K
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETTT
Non-current IERE
Finance lease receivables BbE T B AR 7 P W OR 53,400 3,584
Factoring receivables RIBARFS FE U KRIA 33,000 136,000
86,400 139,584
Current nE
Finance lease receivables b & S AR 7 e W IR 153,857 140,219
Factoring receivables RIZBARFS FE U RIA 1,471,059 816,932
Receivables from supply-chain 1 E 5 R B AR 7S e U
financing services FRIB 64,400 125,660
1,689,316 1,082,811
Less: Provision for impairment W R ERE (537,024) (207,745)
1,152,292 875,066
1,238,692 1,014,650
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20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Minimum lease
receivables

ire MR MR

20. FEWE K (@)

(A) BEEE R EWKIE

Present value of minimum
lease receivables

REHERBERZRE BEAERFERRERRE

2021 2020 2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR AREBTT ARBTR ARETET
Not more than 1 year DER1F 157,576 141,557 153,857 140,219
Over 1 year but within 5 years 19 LA F5F AR 56,913 3,736 53,400 3,584
214,489 145,293 207,257 143,803
Less: Unearned finance B REEME
income Wz (7,232) (1,490)
Present value of minimum KA E R ER
lease receivables FIERE 207,257 143,803

The Group's finance lease receivables are denominated in
Renminbi. The effective interest rates of the receivables
range from 5.61% to 14.37% (2020: 11.42% to 11.77%) per
annum. There are no unguaranteed residual values of assets
leased under finance leases and no contingent rent
arrangements that needed to be recognised (2020: Nil).

The following is a credit quality analysis of these finance
lease receivables:

REERRYE T E R E W TE )
ARBHE ZEBERFENER
FERRNTF5.61%Z 14.37% (2020 £ -
11.42% £ 11.77%) - B EAE R ge & R
EEENRERFGERE  HEEM
AT R KA E L BE(2020F -
) o

AT RBEHEREERYGRIENEE
BRI

2021
RMB’000

2020
RMB’'000
ARETF7

ARET R

Not past due A8 EA 84,574 19,804
Overdue £ 180 51 122,683 123,999
207,257 143,803

The receivables are secured by assets leased under finance
leases and cash deposits (where applicable).

ZEBFEAREHEEERRE R
& (WER) (R -
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20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

182

(A) FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Cash deposits from finance lease customers are collected
upfront based on certain percentage of the entire value of
the lease contracts. When the lease contracts expire and all
related liabilities and obligations are fulfilled by the
customers, the cash deposit will be returned in full. The
balance of the cash deposit can also be used to settle any
outstanding lease receivables for the corresponding lease
contract. The collected cash deposits of RMB1,310,000
(2020: RMB1,310,000) have been included in “other
payables and accruals” in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

At the end of the reporting period, RMB69,057,000 (2020:
RMB48,245,000) of the Group's finance lease receivables
was impaired.

FACTORING RECEIVABLES

The Group's factoring receivables arise from the provision
of factoring services to companies located in PRC. The
credit period granted to each customer is generally within
365 days.

Factoring receivables are secured by receivables and/or
commercial bills originally owned by the customers. These
receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 6.00% to
14.00% (2020: 8.04% to 12.00%) per annum.
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20. EUYRERR @)

(A)

(B)

b & AH AR A PR WRROR ()

MEHERBEFPRSREDENE
EAMNEEEBENSETEN ALK
B RNEEENERMAREFEITH
BEHBEERERR ZREREH
EEHRE BHERSERTAIAR
BT E A QR A A R WY
HERBEEFE - SRINRE R
® AR ¥1,310,0007T (20204F - AR
#1,310,0007T) B 5t A (R & M AR
FH) [EENRBREER] A -

R4 R AR B69057,00075T
(20204 : A R #48,245,0007T ) HY 7K
EBENREHEREEWIAS BE °

1R 12 R 75 FE W R I8
AEBEMREBRSEWRFIERS A F
B ArRREBRERSE BEFEEFHN
ZFRHAR —A% A 365 KA ©

RIEREEKFEANRKAZFES
MERFIE R, REEEZER - Z
% W 3R TE N T 6.00% = 14.00%
(2020 4F : 8.04% & 12.00%) ) £ FI| =&
AT A o



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(B)

(C)

FACTORING RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The maturity profile of the factoring receivables at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

ire MR MR

20. FEWE K (@)

(B)

PRI R 5 M W RROR ()

REE IR - RIE RS B URIR A B
HIERWT

2021
RMB’'000

2020
RMB’000
ARET T

ARBTR

With a residual maturity of: im R ERRR
Not more than 3 months % 31EA 338,726 19,219
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEAR EZE6{EA 196,652 158,410
Over 6 months to 12 months AR EZE 1218 A 776,181 479,803
Over 12 months to 24 months 12ME A = 2418 A 33,000 136,000
Overdue 2 HA 159,500 159,500
1,504,059 952,932

At the end of the reporting period, RMB465,967,000 (2020:
RMB159,500,000) of the Group's factoring receivables was
impaired, among which RMB306,467,000 (2020: Nil) was
provided for an individual customer group.

RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN
FINANCING SERVICES

The Group's receivables from supply-chain financing
services arise from the provision of supply-chain financing
services to companies located in PRC. The credit period for
each customer is generally within 365 days.

These receivables carry interest at rates ranging from 9.60%
to 14.40% (2020: 9.72% to 16.20%) per annum.

Certain receivables from supply-chain financing services
amounting to RMB64,400,000 (2020: RMB125,660,000) are
secured by certain interests of companies and personal
guarantees.

(€

Rk EH KR AR #465967,0007C
(20204F : A R 159,500,000 7T ) By 7K
SENRERBGERZEERE &
i A R 306,467,000 7T (2020 £F - 48 )
BERE PR -

AR SR B A AR A% B WK IR

7R E2 B B £ 8 5 B A IR A% R IR R
AT E AR REEEERE RS -
EEFPHNERHR—MRA365KA

ZE W FIEE N T9.60% = 14.40%
(20204 : 9.72% & 16.20%) &) 4 7| =&
§+/%\ °

AETHERRE RS EKREA
AR 64,400,0007T (20205 = AR
125,660,0007C ) LA & T A &) # 25 K &
AERIEER -
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fre SRR MR

20. LOAN RECEIVABLES (Continued) 20.

(C) RECEIVABLES FROM SUPPLY-CHAIN
FINANCING SERVICES (Continued)

The maturity profile of the receivables from supply-chain
financing services at the end of the reporting period is as

follows:

LALEEEINE )
(C) {HFEERLE R 75 e W FIE (4])

REE IR - H SRS RS UK
HEOEEERAT

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARET T

With a residual maturity of: iw SR HARR
Not more than 3 months T%n3MEA 17,700 84,810
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEAU EZE6EA 44,700 30,550
Over 6 months to 12 months AR EE121EA = 10,300
Overdue £ 180 58 2,000 -
64,400 125,660

At the end of the reporting period, RMB2,000,000 (2020:
Nil) of the Group's receivables from supply-chain financing
services was impaired.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default of those companies with
financial conditions, historical loss experience, coverage by
letters of credit or other forms of credit insurance. At the end of
the reporting period, the loss given default for the remaining
balance of loan receivables was not material and has no impact
on the Group's consolidated financial statements.

21. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 21

ARSI - AR 2,000,000t (2020
FE)NAEERHEERE R E
WA RIE -

BERMBAN - BELEBRER  FEREXEHE
N RERRBRE B%E A RIAER R
T REREAMETREST - RREB
R BINEBEFTEONBRELTER R
HAKENGEMHRRLEZE

HMERBEE

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Other long-term receivables Hh REAFE KT IA 19,214 10,985

Long-term loan receivables from third parties 3K 8 % = 7 & HE W E & 61,000 11,000

Value-added tax ("VAT") recoverable e E R ([ EF ) 82,122 50,314
Prepayment for acquisition of TE A S 1

non-controlling interests RS 204,000 -

Prepayment for acquisition of FaAT W B A
equity investments wE 19,040 50,000
385,376 122,299
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22. INVENTORIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BB M

22. 78

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

Manufacturing and trading BENESH 6,145,376 4,577,047
Property development YR 735,953 549,800

6,881,329 5,126,847
(A) MANUFACTURING AND TRADING (A) HERES

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARKBTE

Raw materials R 2,275,798 1,700,817

Work in progress TEER 583,073 476,854

Finished goods B 3,286,505 2,399,376

6,145,376 4,577,047

(B) PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT (B) MI¥ER

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETIT

Property under development KRR 735,953 549,800
The property under development is expected to be RERPEETRRERREZ R

completed in more than twelve months after the end of the + A AT °

reporting period.
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23.

186

CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES

23. ENEE EWERE

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREBETT

ARETR

Contract assets EHEE
Non-current: IERD
Concession operating right R AR 39,980 78,411
Current: Ep
Renovation and installation works HERLTRETE 565,859 441,970
Environmental engineering services R TIERK 30,162 27,903
Concession operating right FEETAC & 1,667 3,882
597,688 473,755
Less: Impairment 8RR (20,787) (4,214)
576,901 469,541
616,881 547,952
Contract liabilities EHEE
Current: Ep
Renovation and installation works HIERLTRTR 146,002 104,685
Environmental engineering services RIBET ARG 13,622 10,010
Advances from customers ZE8I 3,089,455 1,414,239
3,249,079 1,528,934

The Group's contract assets represent the Group's rights to
consideration for work completed but not yet billed to customers
at the end of the reporting period. The contract assets will be
transferred to trade and bills receivables when the rights become
unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings to
customers based on the certified amount agreed with customers.

At the end of the reporting period, RMB20,787,000 (2020:
RMB4,214,000) was recognised as an allowance for expected
credit losses on contract assets. The Group's trading terms and
credit policy with customers are disclosed in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group's contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligations
to transfer goods or services to customers for which the Group
has received consideration, or for which an amount of
consideration is due from the customers.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES
(Continued)

The expected timing of recovery or settlement for contract assets
at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

ire MR MR

23. BHEE GHNEE®m

RBEHR - WEHEREE
BT

HWEEMTRR R

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETIT

ARBTR

Not more than 1 year eSS 576,901 469,541
Over 1 year 1FAE 39,980 78,411

616,881 547,952
The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of contract AUPEERENEIERESZISNT

assets are as follows:

2021 2020
Note RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT

it ARET R

At 1 January »1A1H 4,214 4,584
Impairment losses recognised/(reversed) B %2, (2 &[0 BB EE 7 20,491 (370)
Amounts written off as uncollectible WEE AU e 4 5 (3,918) -
At 31 December M12A31H 20,787 4,214

For the contract assets arising from renovation and installation
works and environmental engineering services, an impairment
analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates for
the measurement of the expected credit losses of the contract
assets are based on those of the trade and bills receivables as the
contract assets and the trade and bills receivables are from the
same customer bases. The provision rates of contract assets are
based on the invoice date of trade and bills receivables for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns
(i.e., by geographical region, product type, customer type and
rating, and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

REERLZETRASLIRETIRRBAEL
MEMEEMS  AREREHREHHER
BEERETRESTAGFERREER
B-EANBEENTRREEBRNBEEE
TRE SRR R ENEREEEEE
E o DHARANEEME S RIGRIAREE
KAR—EEFEN - SNEENBEBEXH
BROUBEEANE ZRUGERERENE
BEE AR (BZE - EmiEL - BP
BRRFE - AR ERBEREMEANER
R MBZAHRETE - LAt ERREIAEK
IR - BERIREEN LR #E B HIR]
ESEMAEEN  BRAMARREERNTE
AHAIETFHER -
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23. CONTRACT ASSETS/CONTRACT LIABILITIES 23. BHEE SHNEBWm)
(Continued)

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure T EyERAEB(FERBEEETENS
on the Group's contract assets using a provision matrix: NEENEZERRER -
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETTT
Expected credit loss rate TRHEEEEE 3.49% 0.90%
Gross carrying amount BRMEARE 596,021 469,873
Expected credit losses TEEMEEEE 20,787 4,214
For the contract assets arising from concession operating right, MEHRERIEENENEEMS @ ER
since the parties to concession agreements are local government Bt AP B BT #E - KEER
authorities in PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low as at BRIMEHROEERR BK - NEEI &
the end of the reporting period. The Group does not hold any AR ETMESR -

collateral over the balance.

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24. BEFRWREARRE

2021 2020

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR%T R ARETT

Trade receivables 2 S WA 4,478,861 2,815,700

Bills receivable eSS 997,629 1,298,021
Less: Provision for impairment B R ERE (1,264,048) (263,527)
4,212,442 3,850,194
The Group's major customers are independent distributors, civil AEBNETERZFR ATEAMANE LD H
contractors, property developers, utility companies and B EARTIREAER  EHEMRZEE - AF
municipalities in mainland China. Depending on the market EENBNRTEEMN  c AEBKRFEDR T
condition, marketing tactics and relationships with the customers, BERBELERENEE A BEEE T D8
the Group's trading terms with its independent distributors may ENESERREBR AR EET N AR T
change from settlement on an advance receipt basis to giving a —R—E A ZEANERER (EE)
credit period of generally one month or more, if appropriate. The AREEBTES—MIEDERELR FIZER
Group does not have a standardised and universal credit period ZFHER - ERIZED R T M= AERR
granted to the non-distributor customers. The credit period of an FREBIERME » WEEE S AR F)BE (N
individual non-distributor customer is considered on a case-by- BE) - HNRIE - FNEHRRERPEE—
case basis and is set out in the sales contracts, as appropriate. RIBEALATEW ARSI RA T EREHARNEE -
Sales to small, new, or short-term customers are normally REFWELENIE HREHEERYE

expected to be settled on an advance receipt basis or shortly FREARR -

after the goods delivery. No credit term period is set by the
Group for small, new and short-term customers.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade and bills receivables are unsecured and interest-free.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills receivables at
the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date and
net of loss allowance, is as follows:

ire MR MR

24. BRI FREBREE @

EHREFRALRRBEOREERLLE

RBEHAR - NEENE S RKKIEREE
1REE H BN B R H & 8 R H T
T

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T

ARBTR

Not more than 3 months TNZ R 3EA 1,699,679 1,690,927
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEALL EZ6A 739,355 741,507
Over 6 months to 12 months AR EE121EA 1,033,348 939,601
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FAERE2F 544,819 392,035
Over 2 years to 3 years 29 A EEIF 174,842 74,378
Over 3 years 3FLAE 20,399 11,746

4,212,442 3,850,194

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the
Group's trade and bills receivables are as follows:

ALREE P RNFIR KRR E R BB R
ZEmT

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT

B &E AR®TR

At 1 January ®W1A1H 263,527 237,226
Acquisition of subsidiaries WS E A A 31,032 -
Impairment losses recognised BRI E R 1R 7 977,947 38,510
Amounts written off as uncollectible == I E bk - (8,458) (12,209)
At 31 December R12A31H 1,264,048 263,527

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on the invoice date for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
geographical region, product type, customer type and rating,
and coverage by letters of credit or other forms of credit
insurance). The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

Impairment provision amounting to RMB822,861,000 were
provided for trade and bills receivables from certain individual
customers at the end of the reporting period after taking into
account of the restriction on financing management and the
financial position of these individual customers and credit
enhancement held by the Group.

AEBERSHRE B HERBBREETRE
DAt EBRBERER - BEXHAHRU
EBEREANZER S EARN (AiRtE - &
MR BEPRA LA UREMRERHE
R ERRR) NERABETE © %&t
ERMIRENENER  EEREEAR
RiE AR R SABERM - BRICK
REBEARRTRAH AR IFER -

RIERR  LEEEREFEFPHREETER
B R AR M A R B E B R 1R
EETENEFPHNE 5 EUKRIEARRET
TR ER B AR 822,861,000 7T °
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 24. EZERWREREE @)
Except for the receivables from certain individual customers B Eal B FREREF ARG  EHE
mentioned above, the remaining trade and bills receivables are SEWNZEREEEAEZT/ILEEER
related to a large number of diversified customers and set out UTAAEEFERBEEETENFRES
below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the FENFEIB R R EENZEREER
Group's remaining trade and bills receivables using a provision
matrix:

2021
Within 1to 2 to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total

1R 1825 2Z3F 3fFLLE F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’‘000 RMB'‘000 RMB’000
ARB TR AR TR AR¥ TR AR¥ETR AR¥ETR

Expected credit loss rate TEEEEEEX 3.17% 7.43%  16.27%  92.92%  10.73%
Gross carrying amount IRMEARE 3,025,117 588,574 208,825 288,069 4,110,585
Expected credit losses BEEEEIE (95,779)  (43,755) (33,983) (267,670) (441,187)

2,929,338 544,819 174,842 20,399 3,669,398

2020
Within 1to 2to Over
1 year 2 years 3 years 3 years Total
1ER 122 2%3F  3FMLE #at
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
ARBTTE ARMTT ARBTTE ARMTT ARSTR

Expected credit loss rate BEEEEEX 0.83% 6.62% 23.85% 94.01% 6.41%
Gross carrying amount BRT42E 3,400,141 419,835 97,674 196,071 4,113,721
Expected credit losses JEHEEEBE (28,106) (27,800) (23,296)  (184,325)  (263,527)
3,372,035 392,035 74,378 11,746 3,850,194
25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. AR - ZE R HAEWFIE
RECEIVABLES

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T ARET T

Prepayments SCANE 1,062,751 1,186,439
VAT recoverable R FNIBER 672,511 448,157
Corporate income tax recoverable FEMPEMER 22,587 18,123
Deposits %4 152,239 104,812
Other receivables Hih ey ka 201,146 102,166
Loan receivables from third parties REF=HREWER 97,454 124,548
2,208,688 1,984,245

Less: Provision for impairment T OB (77,696) (109,653)
2,130,992 1,874,592
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25.

26.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of the
Group's prepayments and other receivables are as follows:

ire MR MR

25. EAR - RERHEMEWEIE @)

7 5 8 B 0 e L 1 SRR TR L A 5 15 1
EEEHMT

2021
RMB’'000

2020
RMB'000
ARET T

ARBTT

At 1 January »1A1H 109,653 88,348
Impairment losses recognised BRERREEE 3,272 21,305
Amounts written off as uncollectible =2 e - (35,229) -
At 31 December »12A31H 77,696 109,653
Except for the loan receivables from third parties, the financial BRIk E % =7 EUAEFIN - 5T A Ll &5 880

assets included in the above balances are unsecured, interest-
free and receivable on demand. The effective interest rates of the
loan receivables from third parties range from 6.44% to 15.00%
(2020: 10.00% to 15.00%) per annum.

CASH AND BANK DEPOSITS

Restricted cash: ZRFIRE

TRVBEERME - 2B RIRESRIRE - 2k
BEZHRWEZTNERFFNENT6.44%
Z 15.00% (2020 £F : 10.00% % 15.00%) ©

26. BERBITER

2021
RMB’'000

2020
RMB'000
ARBTT

ARBTR

Guarantee deposits for banking facilities EARITRENERES 1,471,793 1,005,182
Cash and cash equivalents: RekReEEY
Time deposits with original maturity BT R (RERES R A BAMR
of three months or less when acquired A=A LT) 736,129 241,397
Cash and bank balances e NIRTTHER 5,438,327 6,200,857
6,174,456 6,442,254
Cash and bank deposits RE RIBITHER 7,646,249 7,447,436

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short-term time deposits are made for varying
periods between one day and twelve months and earn interest at
the respective short-term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and restricted cash are deposited with creditworthy banks with
no recent history of default.

FHRIRITHRSIRE B RITERRERNF
BRI RWMIAE - BHERFROHPRN T
—RE+ZEATFLIREE T R/FRF
KEREA B - RITAEHRZR BN S FHRN
ATHEIE RCER B S B RAFROIRTT
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fre SRR MR

27. ASSET HELD FOR SALE

The Group decided to sell one of its investment properties
located in Sydney, Australia because the Group changed its
development plan in Australia. At the end of the reporting
period, this investment property was ready for sale and therefore
was classified as asset held for sale. The disposal was completed
on 13 January 2022.

Asset held for sale

FIERERE

27. BEHEEE

HMAKREEREEERMNNZEAE - BUR
EHEMRBMNBENEF —EREDE -
RREER  ZIEMECATHEE - Ei
WHOBARBENEEE - HEEEE M 2022
F1H13H7EK °

2021
RMB’'000

2020
RMB’000
ARHEF T
929,022 -

ARBTR

This investment property was written up to the fair value of
RMB929,022,000 before it was classified as asset held for sale,
and a fair value gain of RMB496,349,000 was included in profit or
loss for the year.

ZREMEER D BRFHELEEER © &
BEERAEBEEARK290220007T A
R #496,349,000 T A R BEMZD A
RER IR

28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 28. ESENREREE
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
Trade payables Z S ENTE 1,880,896 1,657,654
Bills payable JENRIE 5,664,741 4,020,554
7,545,637 5,678,208
The trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled on BEENSFERE  GEHREBEEA30E

terms of 30 to 90 days.

An ageing analysis of the Group's trade and bills payables at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as
follows:

Q0K °

RBEHRR - AEENEZRNFTEARTER
HERZEAHOREDNAT -

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥ T ARETT

Not more than 3 months TN 31E A 4,465,850 3,752,988
Over 3 months to 6 months 3MEALL EZ6MA 2,558,088 1,725,541
Over 6 months to 12 months AR EZE121ER 356,633 103,177
Over 1 year to 2 years 1FANEZE2F 96,590 45,885
Over 2 years to 3 years 2FNEEIF 24,736 16,130
Over 3 years 3FUE 43,740 34,487
7,545,637 5,678,208
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. HttERRERESTER

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREEFIT
Accruals fEETEH 365,462 226,808
Salaries and welfare payables FENE S REF 262,033 229,181
Other payables H e RIE 1,069,733 644,229
1,697,228 1,100,218

The financial liabilities included in the above balances are FALMESRNSRA R R B RIRERE

interest-free and repayable on demand. o

30.

BORROWINGS 30. f&X
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Current B
Unsecured bank loans I RIRITE R 6,410,017 7,080,626
Current portion of long-term unsecured REPEIERIRITER
bank loans KRB AL > 699,774 185,634
Current portion of long-term unsecured REEEREMER
other loans B ENEL 601 28,330
Secured bank loans BHEIPRITERK 100,496 61,750
Current portion of long-term secured REAERRITER
bank loans KRBV AL 7> 10,193 7,991
Other borrowings H a3 58,733 -
7,279,814 7,364,331
Non-current ERE
Unsecured bank loans I IRIRITE R 1,586,753 571,503
Unsecured syndicated bank loans EEAREER 8,025,428 7,145,603
Unsecured other loans EE R E A E - 614
Secured bank loans BEIPIRITE 267,110 364,434
9,879,291 8,082,154
17,159,105 15,446,485
Analysed into borrowings repayable: AEEER
Within one year or on demand —F IR E K 7,279,814 7,364,331
In the second year FE-FER 794,426 480,513
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FEZERFAN(BREERRFE) 8,907,353 7,418,879
More than five years ZHRAF 177,512 182,762

17,159,105 15,446,485
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30. BORROWINGS (Continued)

194

Note:

(a)

The effective interest rates of the Group's borrowings range from 0.86% to
5.80% (2020: 1.08% to 7.60%) per annum.

At the end of the reporting period, the secured bank loans are secured by
land and its concession rights of a subsidiary, machineries and equipment of
a subsidiary, leasehold lands and buildings of subsidiaries, loan receivables
of a subsidiary, the concession rights of a subsidiary and personal guarantee

provided by a shareholder of that subsidiary.

At 31 December 2020, the secured bank loans are secured by machineries
and equipment of a subsidiary, leasehold lands and buildings of subsidiaries,
investment property of a subsidiary, loan receivables of a subsidiary, the
concession rights of a subsidiary and personal guarantee provided by a

shareholder of that subsidiary.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group's borrowings are denominated
in US dollar, HK dollar, Renminbi, Australian dollar, Canadian dollar and Thai
Baht which are equivalent to RMB7,701,244,000 (2020: RMB6,979,300,000),
RMB2,996,486,000 (2020: RMB4,074,077,000), RMB5,572,419,000 (2020:
RMB3,507,450,000), RMB843,519,000 (2020: RMB754,987,000), RMB&91,000
(2020: RMB130,671,000) and RMB44,746,000 (2020: Nil), respectively.
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30. fBER @)

Wi

(a)

IR B S KA BB F A E N F0.86% % 5.80% T
% (20204 : 1.08% £ 7.60%) °

R|EHR - BEMRITERDA—REHELRR
ML R ESTE SR B AR NRER
Fif - MBARMAEER IO RET - —HH
BARMEAAET - —RIE QRS SR
R B — AR R A E A YRR R o

M2020F 12 A31H + BEMIRITERTIA —HE
B AR RE R WBARNMEE LK
BF . —HRNBARNKENE —HBAR
K ERMER - —RNB AR R E g R —
ERRE B EABRIEER -

RIREHIR - AEBUETT - B ARKE R
TC M RFRGKHENEBRD I EERARKE
7,701,244,000 7T (20204 = A B % 6,979,300,000
L)~ AR #2,996,486,000 7T (20204F : A R #
4,074,077,0007%) + AR#ES5,572,419,0007T (20204 :
AR #3,507,450,000 7T ) + A % 843,519,000 7T
(20204 © AR#754,987,0007T) « AR 691,000
JC(20204F © A R #130,671,0007C ) & A B #
44,746,000 7T (2020 4F = £E) ©
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31. CONVERTIBLE LOANS 31. IRRER
At the end of the reporting period, the convertible loans were RIRERR - AR ERERABES D &
recognised as a debt component and an equity component as WERRER D » WA ¢
follows:

Debt Equity
component component Total
BB D BB D #st
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT AREFIT
At 1 January 2020 R 2020F1 A1 H 652,595 27,605 680,200
Interest expenses B 41,692 - 41,692
Increase in interest payable JES B 18 0 (16,346) - (16,346)
Interest paid B FE (10,333) - (10,333)
Exchange realignment [E 5 (40,246) - (40,246)
At 31 December 2020 and R2020F 12 A31 B X

1 January 2021 2021%F1H1H 627,362 27,605 654,967
Interest expenses FI RS 75,485 - 75,485
Increase in interest payable FET R B IE hn (40,614) - (40,614)
Interest paid B FE (19,650) - (19,650)
Exchange realignment FE H 2R (18,153) - (18,153)
At 31 December 2021 2021512 A31 4 624,430 27,605 652,035
2021 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREETIT

Debt component analysed into: BEHHLDDTAH
Current portion ENE S 624,430 -
Non-current portion IEREEL D - 627,362

624,430 627,362

Annual Report 2021 % § 195



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4§

Are SRR T

31. CONVERTIBLE LOANS (Continued)

196

Note:

(a)

On 6 May 2019, the Group's wholly owned subsidiary entered into a
convertible loan facilities agreement with ICBC International Investment
Management Limited in the aggregate principal amount of US$100,000,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB684,025,000) (the “Convertible Loans”).
The Convertible Loans bear interest at the rate of 3.40% plus LIBOR per
annum. The Group drew down US$60,000,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB410,415,000) on 22 May 2019 and US$40,000,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB279,489,000) on 29 November 2019. The maturity dates
are 21 May 2022 and 28 November 2022, respectively.

The convertible loans contain two components, a debt component and an
equity component. The initial fair values of the convertible loans were
determined based on gross proceeds at drawdown. The initial fair values less
allocated transaction costs of the debt component were estimated to be
US$55,799,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB381,681,000) and
US$36,982,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB258,432,000) as at the
drawdown dates of using the Monte Carlo Model and Binomial Option
Pricing Model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the
convertible loans. In subsequent periods, the debt component is measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The residual
amount less allocated transaction costs representing the value of the equity
component of US$4,001,000 (approximately equivalent to RMB27,605,000) is

included in convertible loans equity reserve.
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31. TR ER @)

Wi

(a)

R2019F5 60 » AEBHE2ENBRARET
BEEIREERER ARG LA BRERE %
# K& % 5100,000,000% T (HHEROAR
¥ 684,025,000 7T) ([ATHRIREFK]) o ZE AR
B R F R 3.40% NN BER AT R AR B FIR 5
B e 7R20194F5 A 228 + 7 £ @42 B 60,000,000
FE T (HE RO AR 410,4150007T) K #2019
11 A 29 A $2E140,000,000 % 7T (HHERHAR
¥ 279,489,000 7T.) © B B 9 5l £2022F 5 A 21
H % 2022411 A28H -

HRRERBVEEHREZMELS - TRRE
FE A AN BETDYIRIRIESH TS B REE
TE o BRED 2 MR AR BERE DERSKA
TH#EE TR B R G R G2 - RIZERE
HRBESERETERAR B HE T ERY
s 8 /55799000 (B RN AR
381,681,0007T) 236,982,000 7T (MEERHAR
& 258,432,000 7T ) « R E & BifA - EE 9 KA
BERFIFEIRBERAE - R T2BRESE
R 5K (Bl 505 /I E(E) £4,001,0003 7T (18
BRI AR 27,605,000 7T ) T A ATHRAR & R ER
Tt
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32. PROVISION FOR LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE 32. REIEEEFEBE
BENEFITS
The movements in the present value of the defined benefit ATENETREZSNOT -

obligations are as follows:

2021

RMB’000

AR®T T

At 1 January ®W1A1H -

Acquisition of a subsidiary (note 39) Wi — MM B A E) (FHFE39) 6,056

Current service cost (note 7) BIHARR AR AN (Bt5E7) 339

Interest expenses FERX 81

Actuarial loss arising from financial assumption I BREHEEN

changes EEEE (688)

Benefit paid BEF (280)

Exchange differences on a foreign plan AHNTEIVEE K ZRR (289)

At 31 December M12A318 5219
The principal actuarial assumptions used at the end of the RIREBRFEAMNEZRBERRWOT ¢

reporting period are as follows:

Discount rate ALER & 1.4% —1.9%
Expected rate of salary increases TEER T &R I8 3.0%
Staff turnover rate BT RAR 0.0% - 31.0%
The Group does not expect to pay long-term employee benefits rEEEF T —FETEXNRAREERT -
next year.

At the end of the reporting period, the weighted average REER - REESENAGENINETY
duration of the liabilities for long-term employee benefits is 6 HR /A6 E 105 ©

years to 10 years.
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32.

198

PROVISION FOR LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE
BENEFITS (Continued)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions at

the end of the reporting period is shown below:

RS REARERHE EHR

o

32. RHEEENBE@®

SEDMFIR

Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in defined in defined
Increase benefit Decrease benefit
in rate obligations in rate obligations
Btk REBIEME Batk REBIEME
#in G B #2hORd)
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
% AR®T T AR®T T
2021
Discount rate 8EIR & 1 (324) (M 384
Expected rate of salary TEETE
increases SRS 1 384 M (344)
Staff turnover rate BT RA=R 1 (344) ) 61
The sensitivity analysis above has been determined based on a BRI M AR E 2 RERN RS

method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligations as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions
occurring at the end of the reporting period. The sensitivity
analysis is based on a change in a significant assumption, keeping
all other assumptions constant. This may not be representative of
an actual change in the defined benefit obligations as it is
unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of
one another.
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33. OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

3. Hft e @A E

2021 2020
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
k3 ARBT T ARETT
Current RE
Selling right from non-controlling FEFERR AR &
shareholders R (i) 29,171 10,960
Non-current IERE
Selling right from non-controlling FEFERR AR &
shareholders N (i) = 5,411
Debt portion with uncertain RRIERTEE 2
payment term B (i) 42,188 64,855
42,188 70,266
71,359 81,226

Note:

(i)

The fair value of this financial liability has been estimated using valuation
technique with unobservable inputs. Management has reviewed the
valuation result by verifying all major inputs and assumptions as well as
assessing the reasonableness of such valuation.

The Group entered into certain sale and purchase agreements to acquire
70% equity interest in Jiangsu Yongbao during 2018 and 70% equity interest
in Spirolite (M) Sdn. Bhd. during 2020. Pursuant to the agreements, the non-
controlling shareholders have the right to sell the remaining 30% equity
interest to the Group within a two-year period after three years and two
years from the respective dates of acquisitions.

The debt portion with uncertain payment term is managed and the
performances are evaluated on fair value basis. Any change in fair value was

recognised in profit or loss.

On 31 March 2020, the Group entered into a loan agreement with a third
party in the amount of GBP8,400,000 (approximately equivalent to
RMB73,198,000). The amount is interest-free and repayable according to the

return of an equity investment held by the Group.

The fair value of this borrowing has been estimated using valuation
technique with unobservable inputs. Management has reviewed the
valuation result by verifying all major inputs and assumptions as well as

assessing the reasonableness of such valuation.

Wi

(i)

BB ENARBEDRBMAEEATATE
R ABEG c ERECEBRERNEIES

ABERBR M HZGESBIEARMZE
BHER
REETZETEE BN 2018 F U TEF KR

70% BB AHE 2R - LA Bt 2020 5 YL Spirolite (M)
Sdn. Bhd. 70% HORRAN#E2E © iR IHha% - FRIRARAR
REEWEAPRE=FROMFALTFRARE
A A S2 B 65 R R ) 30% AR AN i 2 o

NFRIGEATEE 2 EHBO RERRTIZASRE
ERIEEE LFTH - ER AR EELZHHNE

AEBMR2020F3A31AE—RE =R —E
B B 15 A8400000E H(HE RO ARK
73,198,00070) M E F i - Ze MR EREEAR
SEFARRERENERMER

ZEFOARBEEBRBEETEATATEHER
)\%ﬂfﬂﬁ# CERECDEBREMBIZGAK
BRBR R EZGEZ AR EAERZEES
2o
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34. DEFERRED TAX 34. EELEMIA
The major deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and their RAFERBEFFECHERNEZELEHRE
movements during the current and prior years are as follows: BE/ (B MEESHHT ¢

Withholding Loss Fair value Fair value
Fair value Fair value taxon available for adjustments adjustments

adjustments adjustments  distributable offsetting arising from of equity

arising from Provision for Accelerated arising from profits of against financial investments  Re-measurement
investment impairment tax  acquisitions of subsidiaries Deferred futwre ~ instrument at at fair value on defined
properties ofassets  depreciation subsidaries in the PRC income taxable profit through OCI benefit plan
RENE WEHEAE  GEKELAE ARfEEE WBEA  RAAEEHAR
i 141 #EH HERE FEEY  TAREAN REREH f2EREHRE
DARESR RERE fiE  ARERE REAEH il EANER  HAAR ﬁﬁmﬁﬁﬁﬂ
) RA

At January 2000 RANEIA1E (261,506) 86,562 414 AV} (448.038) 15920 141 - - - (680,370)
Acqisition of subsiciares WENBLR - - - (16619 - - - - - - (16415)
Credted/charged) toproft orloss #1/ha)FEER

forthe year note 9) (Hz9) (36118) 8180 (1431) 4065 (147,589 0 3294 (5,588) - - (140,198)
Exchange realignment ExfE 1% - % %3 - - 51% - - - 5551
At31 December 2020 and RANERANER

1 January 2021 ME1A1R (29748) U782 218 (91.424) (595,627) 1591 45100 (5,588) - - (831,630)
Acquisitions of subsidiares fnote 39) WEMERA (W) - 5463 - {5114 - - 259 - - 1180 (3919
Credtedchargec] to profit or loss i1/ ha)FREE

forthe year (note 9) (K9 w9m 15239 1403 473 (49,0007 2705 39,029) (2218) - - #5779
Creditedcharged) to other comprehensive income 5t A/ (H16) &

Torthe year fikailed - - - - - - - - 56001 (137) 55,864
Exchange realignment i 23 763 106 874 - - (25 - - - 5751
At 31 December 2021 RANENANA (337,230) 253,366 (68,555) (130,941) (644,627) 18,636 8,398 (7,804) 56,001 1,043 (851,713)
# The amount represented the deferred tax provision of RMB131,819,000 (2020: # ZEB|AARA R BEH B A R A 2k s R

RMB242,208,000) on the distributable profits of the Company's subsidiaries H I JE % TE B4 A R 5 131,819,000 7T (2020 4F :
in the PRC after offsetting the realised deferred tax liabilities of AR ¥ 242,208,000 7T ) 3 48 45 84 5% P B A ®I R
RMBB82,819,000 (2020: RMB94,619,000) arising from dividends declared by FANMBEIMIEET RREMELENE BRRIT
these subsidiaries to their foreign investors during the year. B8 EARK82819,0007T (20204 « AR

94,619,0007T) °

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARBTT

Gross deferred tax assets recognised in the 434 BIFEAR R A HERH

consolidated statement of financial position — IEIEF{IE & E 42 %8 349,105 159,888

Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the W4RA ISR R AFER K
consolidated statement of financial position — IRIEFFIEE F42%E (1,200,818) (991,518)
(851,713) (831,630)
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34. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

35.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between mainland China and the jurisdictions of the foreign
investors. The applicable rate for the Group is 5%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by
those subsidiaries established in mainland China in respect of
their earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax liabilities of RMB343,290,000 in respect of temporary
differences relating to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries,
amounting to RMB6,865,804,000, that would be payable on the
distribution of these retained profits as the Company controls the
dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it is probable that these
profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

DEFERRED INCOME

Deferred income represents government grants received by the
Group as financial subsidies for the renovation of factories and
machineries or the construction of new factory premises in
Guangdong, Changchun, Hunan, Hainan, Daging, Hubei,
Yunnan, etc. and rental income received in advance from certain
of the Group's employees for leasing the staff quarters.

The government grants are released to profit or loss over the
expected useful lives of the relevant premises by equal annual
instalments, while rental income received in advance is
recognised on the straight-line basis over the respective lease
terms.

34.

35.

fre SRR MR

IERERR IE (8)

RIEFRPEMETE - RN A
INEREMINRIEEE ST IR R EAHMN
10% K TR FT1S 1 245 € B 20084 1 A 1
BfEES  BAKBE2007F12A431BBE
BEEF] o fwe B Bz HNBIIS & & FTTE
ANEREE AR HBGL - QIR BRER X
BUNTEIRFTSH - AEBERBERAHE 5% -
EE - BEEZE R B A A Sz K M B A F Bk
20084 1 A1 HRATF &M Mo IR AR S
5 AEEBEBNTEREH o

RIFEHR - ARAREHEHIZ SN B A A
R BIEER - BZE R AR iR DIk
AREMET R MASBEWEERZSEWNER
AR IR E R E2 A AR 6,865,804,000
THRERIBEAEA (AR RZERDB R
R 1+F) AR 343,290,000 7T ©

3 FIE WS 358

B S IR AR B RAFE) - R
HEER RF #8E 88 KE - HitR
R F R TR S A S SR R TR S
MR AREARERE TREELK
BMHER TEEME e -

BTN EREEERRERFRAEE
NEREBABDAER - MELKERNES
Yeas BliR & B R B B ARORTER
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. R
Shares i} 2021 2020
Authorised: EE
20,000,000,000 (2020: 20,000,000,000) 20,000,000,000 (20204 : 20,000,000,000) % HK$1,000,000,000 HK$1,000,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREE.SAETH L AR 1,000,000,000 7 7t 1,000,000,000 7 7T
Issued and fully paid: BRIRBRE:
3,102,418,400 (2020: 3,102,418,400) 3,102,418,400 (2020 : 3,102,418,400) & HK$155,120,920 HK$155,120,920
ordinary shares of HK$0.05 each BREE0.05E TR EBR 155,120,920 8 7t 155,120,920/ 7T
Equivalent to ZER RMB135,344,000 RMB 135,344,000
ARM135344000 AR 135,344,000 7

37.

38.

202

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for Sino-foreign
joint venture enterprises, a portion of the profits of the Group's
subsidiaries which are established in PRC has been transferred to
reserve funds which are restricted for use.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by a Group's
subsidiary on 15 January 2021 (the “Share Option Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Such scheme does not constitute as a
share option scheme under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.
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38.

e

AR BAE B R RS F R
DENGA EAEDENES) -

REBERARTING EEENBEREARERR
B ANEBEERBEKIZAMNEB QR &
NEBBREREIRBINFEEESR

Ui B ERAM

(A) BBRRESTE
R2021%1 8158 © BB K& EEY
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 38. UM AEBRNZF @)
(A) SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) (A) FERESTE (430
The following share options were outstanding under the FN o BRETEETHMAITFEORE
Share Option Scheme during the year: REREL N
Weighted
average
exercise price Number
per share of options
EIR i
FHITEE BRERE
HK$
BT
Granted during the year and FRRR2021F12A31H
at 31 December 2021 [k 228 29,666
No granted share options have been exercised during the FERIEBITFEE R HAEBRLE -
year.
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share REEHR  MRITEABRIENTT
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting period PERITERT ¢

are as follows:

Number Exercise price
of options per share Exercise period
BRERE BRITEE 1TEEH
HK$
BIT
14,833 228 15 January 2022 to 14 January 2031*
2022F 1 H15HE2031F 1148 ¢
14,833 228 15 January 2023 to 14 January 2031*
20231 H15HE2031F 1148 ¢
29,666
# The vesting of share options is also subject to the participants’ # BRENEBRET2EARTEIESS
achievement of performance targets to be set by the Board. The BRELEHEBREME EFTEEERE2H
Board will notify the participants, after considering the participants’ AHTERBIE 2 BEBRRKRE - SIREE
performance and achievement of the pre-set targets, the revised fREET SIS AR B BWARE 2 B3
date of commencement of the exercise period of the vested share TR EARAG A E -

options in accordance with the share option scheme.

The weighted average fair value of the options granted FARLNERENETSAAEE
during the year was HK$290.92 each. The Group recognised RE17H290.928 T - AEEC HRE
a share option expense of RMB7,092,000 during the year Z2021F12 A31H I EHIE i#
ended 31 December 2021. Fx AR 7,092,0007T °
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38. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

204

(B)

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 28 August 2018, the Company adopted a share award
scheme (the “Share Award Scheme”) to recognise the
contributions by certain eligible persons to the Group and
to offer suitable incentives to attract and retain targeted
talent and personnel for the continual operation and future
development of the Group.

The total amount of the funds contributed to the Scheme
by the Company shall not exceed HK$750,000,000 and the
Board shall at its absolute discretion to determine the
amount of fund contributed to the Share Award Scheme for
each financial year of the Company.

The Company shall not make any further grant of award
which will result in the aggregate number of Shares
underlying all grants made pursuant to the Share Award
Scheme (excluding award shares that have been forfeited in
accordance with the Share Award Scheme) to exceed 5% of
the issued share capital of the Company without
shareholders’ approval. The total number of non-vested
award shares granted to a selected participant under the
Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total

number of issued shares at all time.

During the year, no ordinary shares of the Group on the
Stock Exchange were purchased for the Share Award
Scheme (2020: Nil). At the end of the reporting period,
22,991,000 ordinary shares have been purchased (2020:
22,991,000 ordinary shares).

No shares have been awarded under the Share Award
Scheme since the adoption.
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38. URMAERN @
(B) R{pIEEE

RNE 2018 F 8 A 28 H B 4 f 10 82
BYEH B (TR M e8I ]) - S T8
T4 E 18 A 897 5 B e 0 R 8
R4 T EEE - HHRE REE A
1A B A B B (R 7 B 5 0 4
BRI -

AAREHZTERENESBRETS
B35 750,000,0008 7 - MEELiHE
BRBEEEARAESVREELHRK
HREETEIHENES SR -

A A AR R AR B =1 &) 9% H # P
BB (T RIERIED =R &
EOR M SRR AR 1) 4R B R IB AR A F)
BTN 5% BRERRHLE - BY
TREBRNEMER - SRET2H
AARIE Bt 22D 5t 81 AT AR B0 1) K B3
BEBEOEE THREETHE®R
TN AR ZREN 1% o

FRAEERERABMIMEEL®
f& AR I (0 2B At &1 (2020 4F : #&) ©
RIpEHIR - AEBEEE 22,991,000
% & 37 P& (2020 £F ¢ 22,991,000 A% & 3@
&) o

RAT B ERARD SR ET 8 AR - I
ERBR ) REEEIE B
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION 39. ¥ &4t
During the year, the Group entered into sale and purchase FN - AKEFTCEE R  WENLT QA
agreements to acquire equity interests in the following ERR A AR
companies:

Percentage  Consideration

Acquisition date Company name of share RMB  Principal activities
KE

g A NEER LR E AR® FEXHB

2 February 2021 Heshan Fuyue New Material 100% 66,586,000 Manufacture and sale of
Technology Co., Ltd. new metallic materials
("Heshan Fuyue”)

202152 R 2H 5 1L = TR A R R SHERHENL B
BRRAR([EEILER])

12 March 2021 Jiangxi KingHing Aluminium 80% 10,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
Formwork Manufacturing aluminium formwork
Co., Ltd. ("Jiangxi KingHing")

2021537128 ITEE R EERR IR E SuE R HE IR
BRAR(IASE])

8 May 2021 CNPW 35% 196,328,000  Manufacture and sale of

waterproof materials

202145 8H o fE I RUE L E KR

26 May 2021 CNPW (Heshan) Co., Ltd. 100% 58,043,000 Manufacture and sale of
("“CNPW Heshan") waterproof materials

20215726 H FOm ERE (B8 1L ) RER B R SUE RHEIKM R
NE([FREESLL )

27 August 2021 WIIK Public Company Limited 23.5% 139,838,0009  Manufacture and sale of
and its subsidiaries (“WIIK") plastic pipes and pipe fittings

202158 A 27 H WIIK Public Company Limited SERHEBREBRENY

REMBRR (TWIK])

18 September 2021 CNPW Taizhou 100% 66,000,000 Manufacture and sale of
waterproof materials

202159 A 18H HomEE R M SUE RHENIK R

27 September 2021 Century Xinghui Creative 100% 100  Property development

Park Investment Limited
("Century Xinghui")

20219 A 278 RS EREE MEER
BRAR([HLEE])
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39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

202112 A 138 SHEE

[z

The above acquisitions allow the Group to further diversify its

businesses.

Note:

M

206

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with the controlling
shareholders of Jiangxi KingHing and CNPW to transfer 80% equity interest
and 35% equity interest to the Group, respectively, after which the
controlling rights have also been transferred to the Group. Accordingly, the
investment in the associates are remeasured to fair value at the date when
the Group obtained the control and is deemed to have been disposed of in
exchange for the consolidation of the subsidiaries. The resulting loss from
the remeasurement is recognised in profit or loss.

The total consideration included cash consideration amounting to
RMB149,268,000 and consideration settled by loan receivables amounting to
RMB47,060,000. The loan was lent to CNPW before the acquisition. As at the
date of the acquisition, the outstanding loan was deemed to have been fully
settled by CNPW and constituted part of the consideration.

During the year, the Group's equity interest in WIIK increased from 24.25%
to 47.75% through the issuance of additional directional shares by WIIK. In
view of the absolute high shareholding held by the Group of 47.75% and the
relative shareholding held by the other shareholders, and the parties that
would need to act together to outvote the Group, management believes
that the Group would have the power over and the ability to direct the
relevant activities of WIIK. Accordingly, the investment in the associate is
remeasured to fair value at the date when the Group obtained the control
and is deemed to have been disposed of in exchange for the consolidation
of the subsidiary. The resulting loss from the remeasurement is recognised in
profit or loss.

The total consideration to acquire WIIK amounted to THB702,000,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB139,838,000).

During the year, the Group entered into an agreement with the controlling
shareholders to transfer 31.07% equity interest in EDA CLOUD to the Group,
after which the controlling rights have also been transferred to the Group.
Accordingly, the investment in the associate is remeasured to fair value at
the date when the Group obtained the control and is deemed to have been
disposed of in exchange for the consolidation of the subsidiary. The resulting
loss from the remeasurement is recognised in profit or loss.
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of share

Percentage
Acquisition date Company name
UYfiE B 2 NEER LHL =
9 October 2021 Guangdong Xingfa 60%
2021410 A9 R BREE
13 December 2021 EDA CLOUD 31%

ARM

39. #4586t @

Consideration

RMB Principal activities
RE
TEEK

18,000,000  Provision of solid waste
treatment services
TR E B EE I 18 AR TS
89,975,000  Provision of internet technology

and related services

RE T ERER R R ARR RS

Et R R AR SR B — SRR A RS -

BiRE

FR - AEERRTHESERPHERENOERERR
RIS ek - 9 RIS 80% AR e I 35% Ak i 5% T AN
SE HERHETEEETAEE - At R
BN AR AN AR EESEHIE S B EHE
EEANEE  UHEKEAD HE LRI E AR
Bftc ENFEELMNBEBNBETRER -

BRERERSREARE 149,268,000 7T & A FE
W g SR EE B R E AR 47,060,000 7T © 2B 5K
TIRUREEAT{E I T b (EE - RIKEER © REE
ZERWE AT HEEC2EAEE  WEKRRE
H—E5 -

RER - BBAWIKEITEINERRD  AER
A WIIK 89 % HE F 24.25% 38 5 47.75% © & A AN &
E35547.75% B Y R RO R MR RS
MRS SRR LB - AR & HELRITE ARAE
ANEE EREREAEEGEEREENEE
WIIKHIAEREE B  [Eitt - P& A R E R A
SEENBEHEZHENTEEANEE I
BHEEEUNRBRMNBARAH - EXFTEEE
HESERIEE P IER -

U B8 WIIK &9 48 X {8 /5 702,000,000 Z= &k (HEE R 4
AR 139,838,0007T) °

FR - AREERZBRERR LG BHETH
31.07% Bt igaE T ARG E - LR BRI B
TAREKE - At REERRRRERAKEE
BEGRERENTEEAAEE  UREAE
HENMEBE AR A - ENFTEBELNER
RIBER T HER



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BB M

39. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 39. ¥¥aft@m
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the RUER - AEEWE FAARIMA A&
above companies acquired at the dates of acquisitions assumed E;MBERNAREBENT :

by the Group are as follows:

Heshan Jiangxi CNPW CNPW Century  Guangdong
Fuyue KingHing Heshan WIIK Taizhou Xinghui Xingfa Total
BILEH IERE HREERL WK REERN tLER ERAZ 2 &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTR ARBTR  AR¥TR  ARMTR  AR¥TR  ARETR ARETR
Property,pantandequpment 1% BERAE 8175 631 998 ngw 287 93404 % 11,415 W S8
Right-of-use assets FRELE 12821 - - 10927 12239 25,780 - - 161,019 222,786
Other intangible assets 2 ENEE - 175 67857 - 58,191 - - - 74400 200623
Investment properties hENE - - - - - - 189,949 - - 189,949
Deposit paid for the purchase of land, BE L3t - 1% - BR R E
property, plant and equipment % itRe - - - 0 9 - - 5,405 - 5,704
Interests in associates REEARMER - - - - - - - - 3000 3000
Contract assets-non current AMEE-IRE - - - - 4229% - - - - 4229
Other financial assets EHEBEAE - - - - 5921 - - - 30,000 35927
Other non-current assets EErBEE - - - - 5,521 - - - - 5521
Deferred tax assets EHELE - 5% 5498 - 559 - - - - 11,155
Inventories g - 24,951 39509 - 80,673 10430 - - - 155,763
Contract assets-current ANBE—FE - - 13,108 - 1,749 - - - - 14,857
Trade and bills receivables BSRNZEREE - 4,667 29,634 - 119,898 5 - - 6924 453128
Prepayments, deposits and BiR - RERER
other receivables [z 5533 642 2190 4.8% 11,003 10,774 3398 129 30,352 90,136
Cash and bank deposits RERBAER 67 22 12923 5 86,867 402 11,908 6,503 5312 174017
Contractfiblies AHAR - - - - 20717 - - - - @)
Trade and bills payables BORMIERER - (21210) (34093) - (18210) (34633) (29) (685) (66249) (181,104
Other payables and accruals MR RETER (10) (41,496) (15,741) (33) (17,467) (69,439) (50,550) (342) (22,035) (217416)
Tax payables FEHE - (51) (666) - (3092) - - - - (3,809)
Borrowings-current BR—ry - - (54,500 - (35643 - - - (11952 (102,099)
Lease liabilities-current BEAE—F® - - - - (2617 - - - (30.752) (33429
Borrowings —non current B — kg - - - - (39417 - - - - (39417)
Lease liabilities — non current BEAE—ERD - - - - (10,12¢) - (143992) - (136,324) (290442)
Provision for long-term employee £ EIES
benefits B - - - - (6,056) - - - - (6,056)
Other long-term payebles REEMHA - - - - (144) - - - - (144
Deferred income ETUE - - - - - - - - (3612 (3612)
Deferred tax izbilties EEHESE - - (12976) - (2939) - - - (11,160) (47.074)
Total identifiable net assets BESIE
at fair value (BAREE) 66,586 12,348 352671 58,506 472537 36723 10,784 2,59 154,064 1,187,813
Non-controlling interests FaER - - (143,489) - (246,893) - - (9430 (77839) (477,657)
Gooduill arising on acquisitions WEELHES
(note 154) (3 15A) - - 70837 - - 20207 - 3843 35438 139,395
Gain from bargain purchase REMMRA - hakHE
recognised in other revenue, EANZEUBAREHE
income and gains (note 5) (MEs) - - - 483) (14970) - (10,784) - - 26217)
Total consideration satisfiedby: WA AR AR ELE:
Cash B 66,586 10,000 149,268 56,043 139838 66,000 - 18,000 69975 577,710
Other payables EtoRRzUE - - - - - - - - 20,000 20,000
Loan receivables B - - 47,060 - - - - - - 47,060
Carrying amount of the Group's REERBENGH
interests in the associates BREAE - 2102 140,608 - 58,165 - - - 34,180 235,055
Remeasurement of the pre-existing ~ EFE D AIRAERR
interests in the associates (note 7). E#fat & (FiE7) - 26 (56,916) - 12611 - - - (12.492) (56,491)
66,586 12,348 260,020 56,043 210674 66,000 - 18,000 111,663 82333
# The assessments of the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of * SEENAHIEEREBENAABEINEET
EDA CLOUD are still in process and the information of the fair values of the b BRI EERABENAABEERRY
identifiable assets and liabilities is provisional. TEH] ©
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39.

208

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions is as
follows:

39. ¥ & 6tum

ERZERBORERESNOT

RMB’000
ARET T

Cash consideration paid ENIESNRE 577,710
Less: Cash and cash equivalents acquired B EWEReRREEED (174,017)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents RETEBIENRE &

included in investing activities ReFEBYNL FHE 403,693

Reconciliation of the carrying amount of the Group’s goodwill at
the beginning and end of the reporting period is presented
below:

AEBENHERRE RV RHREARORE
BEHRZ5/0T

RMB'000
ARETT

Gross carrying amount IRE#AE
At 1 January 2021 20211 A1 8 431,213
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BB BT & A~ 7 139,395
Exchange realignment bEE 3, 5 B (77
At 31 December 2021 2021512 A31H 570,531
Accumulated impairment losses 2R EEE
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 20211 A1 A KX2021 12 A31H (49,805)
Impairment DERIE] (24,869)
At 31 December 2021 K201 12 A31H (74,674)
Net carrying amount IRENFE
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 A1 8 381,408
At 31 December 2021 R20215F12 318 495,857

Acquisition-related costs incurred in relation to the above
acquisitions are insignificant and have been excluded from the
cost of acquisition and have been recognised directly as expense
for the year and are included in "other expenses” in profit or loss.

The aggregate fair values of the trade and bills receivables and
other receivables at the date of acquisition amounted to
RMB449,164,000 and RMB174,002,000, respectively, which
approximate to the gross contractual amounts of the
corresponding balances acquired by the Group. At the dates of
acquisitions, management considered that the contractual cash
flows not expected to be collected were insignificant.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI2EE@ZERER AT

B ELE N WBREBK AL TERR
BRI B WBRA 2SN BERNFRER
RRFXIWET ABRE [HMFES A -

RUREE B - & 5 MUK ERIE I IR A E i fE Uk
HERNAAREBEBE»IAARE
449,164,000 7T & A & # 174,002,000 7T + £2
AEBKEZSHEEHRNE NS EREME
HoRWER  TEERABHERKLON
BHREREWTERK o



39.

40.

41.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be deductible
for income tax purposes.

Since the acquisitions, these subsidiaries contributed
RMB477,378,000 to the Group's revenue and recognised a profit
of RMB26,236,000 in profit or loss for the year.

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the year,
the Group's revenue and profit for the year would have been

increased by RMB545,029,000 and RMB44,533,000, respectively.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the end of the reporting period, the Group did not have any
significant contingent liabilities (2020: Nil).

COMMITMENTS

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of
the reporting period:

Contracted, but not provided for:
Property, plant and equipment and
investment properties

REWR

ERIAE R R
WE - BB MEEM

39.

40.

41.

ire MR MR

EF S aC )

HETBPAEHME - MACHERNEHES
ATHIRR ©

BUEEATK - ZEMB AR AREBRAR
BA A R # 477,378,000t © WA A F E B
R I A R 5 26,236,000 7T ©

Wz A FEREFEHETT  AEBRAFERK
AN B i 9 Bl hn A R # 545,029,000 7T
8 AR ¥ 44,533,000 7T °

HREE

PRERER  AEBTETIMNEANAERE
(20204 : 47) o

i
RIEHRR - AEBEHEE AT ERASE

2021
RMB’'000

2020
RMB’000
ARET T

ARBTR

2,544,225 2,404,045
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. BBA TR G R
BALANCES
(A) THE GROUP'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS (A) FREAKEEBEBRALTIHEAR
WITH RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR =2
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETT
Connected transactions BERXS
Transactions with companies under REZEHET —(IEFE
the common control of a director: ZEHERARINR S
Sales of goods, services, HEEM R - AAEE
utilities and others KEAM (iy* 6,472 12,502
Rental income HeWas (i) 11,290 6
Rental expenses ek (iiiy* 4,267 4,056
Purchases of materials EREE MR (iv)* 19,091 17,014
Purchases of machinery and/or iy =N
equipment B (v) 152,510 148,208
Purchases of electronic accessories £ = FHi2 14 (v)* 25,254 1,893
Purchases of other intangible assets #REEHEMEF EE (v 361 129
Hotel expenses 52 A (vi)* 2,126 2,236
Acquisition cost for a subsidiary —MMNE ARz KA (vii) = 39,117
Rental expenses paid to directors MEBEXMOESHAX (viii)* = 159
Non-connected transactions FEERS
Purchases of goods, equipment, MBS ARIREES -
utilities and rental services #E - RAEER
from associates HERY (ix) 62,033 188,352
Loans to associates BERTEHE QA (x) 145,237 -
Design and maintenance services BEDERBNRGTR
from a joint venture WS AR TS (xi) 3,600 3,600
Note: BiEE
0} Sales of goods, services and others to related companies were made (i) FEABATHEE R R REMIIAA
with reference to the prices and conditions offered by the Group to SERME=TEFRENEBRRIEERS
the third-party customers. Utilities were provided by related SRHETT o N F I THIRANAN 1 AT 2 R4
companies at cost. o
(ii) Rental income from related parties was made with reference to the (ii) KA BT NES WEDAREEmE=
prices and conditions offered by the Group to the third-party FEPFHLOERRGG R2RET -
customers.
(i) Rental expenses were based on mutually agreed terms. (i) TEeRXREFHBTEOGRTE -
(iv)  Purchases of materials from related companies were made based on (iv)  MEDREHBENGRABBAREE -

mutually agreed terms.
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(A) THE GROUP'S MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
WITH RELATED PARTIES DURING THE YEAR
(Continued)

Note: (Continued)

(v)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

Purchases of machinery, equipment, electronic accessories and other
intangible assets from related companies were made with reference
to the prices and conditions offered by the related companies to

their third-party customers.
Hotel expenses were based on mutually agreed terms.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the consideration was
determined after arm'’s length negotiation with reference to (i) the
appraised value of the total equity interest in a subsidiary as at 30
September 2020, amounting to RMB71,119,000, as set out in the
valuation report prepared by Foshan Dingxing Asset Appraisal Firm,
an independent asset appraisal firm, and (i) the proportion of equity

interest being acquired by the Group under the acquisition.

Properties including office premises, cafeteria, workshops,
warehouses and yacht were leased to the Group based on mutually
agreed terms.

Purchases of goods, equipment, utilities and rental services from
associates were made on normal commercial terms negotiated on an
arm’s length basis by the parties with reference to the prevailing
market prices.

The covenants of loans to associates were based on mutually agreed
terms.

Services were provided by a joint venture based on mutually agreed
terms.

These related party transactions constitute connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules but are exempted from complying with the disclosure

requirements under the Listing Rules.

ire MR MR

42. A TR Z R &SR @)

(A)

FRAEBEEEHALNEAR
7 (1&)

Y

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)

(#)

HES - R’ ETRHMEMETLEETY
KLERBARRNE=FEFHAHNER
KGR ABBARREE

BIEBERTRET HENGREE -

REZE2020F12A3MBIEFE RETY
2R () BB EETEEHAHILMSE
BEEEBAREENGERSFTEN—
eI B B 2 &) 2020 4F 9 A 30 B 7 A9 AR A
S EBEHEEARE71,119,000 7T K (i) &
BEE N ASERERRAER L%
CATHEFET -

MECERLE RE BHR BERE
fE - THIRETT I E MR T AR E -

B & AREERBERB RS
H2EER M HEREATERRHENE
EREGRABELTREE -

ERTH
e

=
=

BRI TR IR R 165 5 £

il

BEDETIRET HE N RFIRHEIRT o

ZERBA LR S ITEK ETREE 14A
EMRENHER SR EMERS
BT EMRAABERE o
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R B B R MR

42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND 42. A TR G K& @
BALANCES (Continued)
(B) BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES (B) EHEEEA T HIEER
2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR%T R ARETT
Balances with companies under RERERZ—(ES
the common control of EHIH R BRI A R
a director arising from: xE :
Deposits paid for the purchase of ~ BEE# 22N 3R &
machinery and/or equipment I e s (i) 203,216 128,056
Purchases of machinery and/or RIS KBk
equipment B (ii) 61,209 42,844
Sales of module, utilities and HERR - NS
others R E At (iii) 8,206 8,551

Balances with associates arising from: FAEE& R BIMAEERKE ¢

Purchases of goods, equipment, REEH X
utilities and rental services NAEELHEER (ii) 14,515 93,312

Note: BT

0} The balances are included in the Group’s deposits paid for the 0} ERMFTAREEBE L WX BER
purchase of land, property, plant and equipment. BB NIRE ©

(ii) The balances are included in the Group's trade payables and other (ii) EHFTAREENE S EMNRBBME AL FE
payables and accruals. RIERETER ©

(iii) The balances are included in the Group's trade receivables and other (iii) EHRETALREBNE S ERFIEFH b fE
receivables. WK -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (Continued)

(C) COMMITMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

Certain of the Group's subsidiaries have entered into lease
agreements with a director and a company under the
common control of a director to lease properties for
operations, and sale and purchase agreements with a
company under the common control of a director to
purchase machinery and/or equipment for production. The
capital commitments of RMB139,205,000 (2020:
RMB100,619,000) have been included in note 41 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(D)

COMPENSATION OF THE GROUP’S KEY
MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

The remuneration of the Company's directors and the
senior management was as follows:

ire MR MR

42. A TR Z RESR @

(C)

(D)

CARARE A TR FESIE
AEBETHB AR AHEEMEEL
ERRE-—ZEER—HERT
BEERFINAREAERZE LA
BEREL R EEEERGRE—
MERS —MNEZEHNARGILE
i o AR 139,205,000 7T (2020
£ AR¥100,619,0007T ) 8] & 2N %
ERENRE M ERARMTES -

FEEFEEEASEHM

ARBERELSREEBOFHHMNT -

2021 2020
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARETET
Short-term employee benefits EEEE R 33,105 20,004
Post-employment benefits RURIZ BN 269 258
Equity-settled share option expense VARR RS 3R 2 BB AR M 7 =2 3,274 -
36,648 20,262
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KRE MR

43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 43. €@t TENAAEBERE
INSTRUMENTS

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (A) SRTEEHR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RHFEHR SEeRITANERE
instruments at the end of the reporting period are as m
follows:

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETIT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost: 1 # #56K K5 BRI 2 G B2 -
Loan receivables FEUfE TR 20 1,238,692 1,014,650
Trade and bills receivables BoEWZIEREE 24 4,212,442 3,850,194
Financial assets included in ST AE A ERFIERY
other receivables TREE 242,197 166,551
Other long-term receivables H th & B JE U 5RIE 21 19,214 10,985
Long-term loan receivables from REFE =T REEWK
third parties B3 21 61,000 11,000
Cash and bank deposits HE RIBITER 26 7,646,249 7,447,436
13,419,794 12,500,816
Financial assets at A BB AAMEH K e
FVTOCI: H) M EE -
Debt instruments at BAAEBE AR
FVTOCI WEBKLIA 19 173,573 54,639
Equity instruments at BARBEFARMEEWE
FVTOCI Mg T A 19 1,468,390 1,890,415
1,641,963 1,945,054
Financial assets at BT BB AE R
FVTPL: THEE -
Debt instruments at BAREBEFTAEBEN
FVTPL EHITA 19 134,530 -
Equity instruments at BRAREBEFABRD
FVTPL BARTE 19 1,060,565 742,137
Funds at FVTPL BRARBEFAERNES 19 16,480 18,730
Derivative financial instruments PTEERMTA 19 669 -
1,212,244 760,867

16,274,001 15,206,737
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ire MR MR

43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 43. €@ TAMAABHEIE @)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(A) CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(B)

(Continued)

A= 5=k

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities at amortised cost: & ##5 L K FBray & L B (& -

(A) @I AEE5R (&)

2021
RMB’000
ARMT

2020
RMB’'000

ARETT

Trade and bills payables B I RENFIBERER 28 7,545,637 5,678,208
Financial liabilities included in = A E fth B FRIE
other payables and accruals [EETEBRMNERmEE 29 1,435,195 871,037
Borrowings I=E 30 17,159,105 15,446,485
Convertible loans AR E X 31 624,430 627,362
Other long-term payables HREBERRIE 10,385 16,953
26,774,752 22,640,045
Financial liabilities at BASEEEGABZA
FVTPL: EHEE
Other financial liabilities === 33 71,359 81,226
26,846,111 22,721,271
FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) M ITANAAEE

The Group's finance department is responsible for
determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At the end of each
reporting period, the finance department analyses the
movements in the values of financial instruments and the
major inputs applied in the valuation. The valuation is
reviewed and approved by management.

Assets and liabilities measured at amortised cost:

The fair values of loan receivables, trade and bills
receivables, financial assets included in other receivables,
cash and bank deposits, trade and bills payables, financial
liabilities included in other payables and accruals, and
current portion of borrowings and convertible loans
approximate to their carrying amounts due to the short-
term maturities of these instruments.

AEENYHHFIAEBETCERTA
ARBEFENHERIESF - NER
THR MBHMASMERTANE
BEEHLRETERANEENEZHA
iz - HEHEEEEMRILE -

BBERATENEERAE
EUES EZRUEFALTERE 5

AEMEYENEREE  REM
RITHER  BZRNFALRE &
ARMENFRIBEREFTERNSREA
18 R & SR A0 AT 2 B & 5K 7 B &F 0 9
ARBEEEKEAEABAE AR
ZETRTANSRAEH -
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43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

(B)

The fair values of other long-term receivables, long-term
loan receivables from third parties, non-current portion of
borrowings and other long-term payables have been
calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows
using rates currently available for instruments with similar
terms, credit risk and remaining maturities. The difference
between carrying amount and fair value of the non-current
portion of borrowings as at 31 December 2021 were
assessed to be insignificant because most of them bear
interest at floating interest rates. The carrying amounts of
the other long-term receivables, long-term loan receivables
from third parties and other long-term payables are not
materially different from their fair values due to the
immaterial amount.

Assets measured at fair value:

Level 1
E—&
RMB’000
AR® T

43. TR T EN A AEBEE @

TETENQAEEG@E

HRPEWEIE  REFEF=HKH
EWER - (ERMERE D R EM
EHEMRBENAREBEULNAERAL
B EERBREFGERANTAEN
A ES A FI R AR TR RIR S
MEMEtE o 20214912 A 31 BEX
FERBHOMEREEARNEEE
BRIATAMTIRE  BAEMAI
DHZEF R B o E bR HIE UK
B KREEZHRBERERREM
EHEMREMEAERR AL
BA WEEQAABEITESAEZR -

BARBESBHEE !

2021
Fair value hierarchy
DABEERE
Level 2 Level 3
E-® E=R
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR

Total

st
RMB’000
AR® T

Other financial assets HithemEE
Debt instruments BRAREEF AHAM
at FVTOCI FHRENEETA - 173,573 - 173,573
Debt instruments AR BEGAER
at FVTPL HEKTE - 30,000 104,530 134,530
Equity instruments BRASRBEAEM
at FVTOCI PEINEHRART A 578,749 275,391 614,250 1,468,390
Equity instruments BAREBEFABR
at FVTPL B AR T A 909,790 - 150,775 1,060,565
Funds at FVTPL BRARBEFABRZNESD - 16,480 S 16,480
Derivative financial $THE S Rl
instruments TE - - 669 669
1,488,539 495,444 870,224 2,854,207
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43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 43. €T AN A REBEETE @

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B)

(Continued)

Level 1
E—
RMB’000
ARKET T

TR T AENAQAEE @

2020
Fair value hierarchy
DREERE
Level 2 Level 3
E E=& st
RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB'000
BT AREFTE ARSFT

Total

Other financial assets HihemEE

Debt instruments BASEE A
at FVTOCI THKENEBIA - 54,639 - 54,639

Equity instruments BRASEE AR
at FVTOC| 2HEWEEHIIRA T A 1,405,096 179,686 305,633 1,890,415

Equity instruments BRAREBEFAER
at FVTPL HpE AN T B 688,179 - 53,958 742,137
Funds at FVTPL BRARBEFAERZNESD - 18,730 - 18,730
2,093,275 253,055 359,591 2,705,921

The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3
during the year are as follows:

EREZHANDAL BEFEEHE
™

2021 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARETT
At 1 January ®1A1H 359,591 69,903
Additions NE 422,346 297,231
Unrealised gain recognised in RIBZ NEREY
profit or loss REBFE 3,144 1,076
Unrealised gain recognised in A ELA, 2 T W s O RE SR Y
other comprehensive income AEIRAZ 126,925 -
Disposal loss included in profit or loss BmAZ HEEE (206) -
Disposal (loss)/gain included in other Hih2mkzs A
comprehensive income 2 & (&), Flax (31,965) 12,873
Disposal HeE (6,979) (18,000)
Exchange realignment PE 5, 58 %8 (2,632) (3,492)
At 31 December M12A31RH 870,224 359,591
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43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 43. €T AN A REETE @

218

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(Continued)

Liabilities measured at fair value:

Hbe@maE

Other financial liabilities

(B) s TEMNAAEEE)

BEARBESENRE:

e

2021
Fair value hierarchy
ARBEERESE
Level 3

Level 2 Total
E— ER FE= et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTRT AR®TRT AR®TR
71,359 71,359

Level 1

Other financial liabilities

2020
Fair value hierarchy
NREBERE

Level 2 Level 3
=t} E=/&
RMB'000  RMB’'000
AREFT ARETT
81,226

Total

st
RMB’000
ARBFIT

Level 1
E—&
RMB’000
ARKETT
81,226

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 (2020: certain
equity instruments measured at FVTOCI were transferred
from Level 2 to Level 1 due to the success of IPO) and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2020: Nil).
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43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 43. €T AN A REBEETE @

INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) €M AN AEEHE)
(Continued)
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to LT ARBREHReIAGKENSE
the valuation of financial instruments together with a ATNAEEE ABBERTEHRE
quantitative sensitivity analysis as at the end of the AITHIRE -

reporting period:

Sensitivity of fair value to
the input

ARBEEBEARE

Significant
Valuation technique unobservable input
ERTABE
fRERS % BWABE
Equity instruments at FVTOCI et asset value approach Net asset values
BRAABEFAEMEENE BEFEE EESE
HMRATA
Funds at FVTPL Net fund value approach Net asset values of the funds,
BRARBEFABRNES BEeFEE determined with reference

to observable (quoted)
prices of underlying
investment portfolio
EeWEERE(E2E10H
REEAMABRME)

Debt instruments at FVTPL P/E Ratio method Conversion probability of 90%
BAREEABRNEBTA mAXE 90% BB A K
Equity instruments at FVTPL Black-Scholes model and Discount rate of 18.5%
WARBERABER discounted cash flow model ~ 18.5% 8538 %
RATA mHe — &S RATEL N
BB @ n e

N/A
TEA

N/A
TNEm

10% increase in probability would
result in increase in fair value by
RMB68,000

FAE LA 10% BEB AR ER
AR 68,0007T

10% decrease in probability would
result in decrease in fair value by
RMB68,000

HARETH10% G ARBEE
B AR 68,0007T

1% increase in discount rate would
result in decrease in fair value by
RMB3,190,000

BURE 1% BEB AR EE
B AR 3,190,000 7T

1% decrease in discount rate would
result in increase in fair value by
RMB4,016,000

BRETHI%BERAAERE
2 AR 4,016,000 7T
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43. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 43. € TEMNAAEBETE @)
INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(B) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (B) ®®MIEMNAAEEE)
(Continued)

Significant Sensitivity of fair value to
Valuation technique unobservable input the input
BEARABRER AAEEHEABIE
fHER % BAHE WERE
Other financial liabilities Monte Carlo method and Discount rate of 12.5% 1% increase in discount rate would
HinemaE discounted cash flow model ~ 12.5% i35 & result in increase in fair value by
SHRBAERMRERNE RMB11,480,000
LRl BERE A 1% BER AR EBE

AR 11,480,000 7T

1% decrease in discount rate would
result in decrease in fair value by

RMB10,940,000
BRETK 1% B EH AR EE
A AR 10,940,000 7T
Monte Carlo method Equity price fluctuation rate of 1% increase in equity price fluctuation
SRRERE 50% rate would result in increase in fair
50% BRABAR K EN K value by RMB172,000

A BRIRE R BT 1% S8
DA EEENARK172,0007T

1% decrease in equity price fluctuation
rate would result in decrease in fair
value by RMB172,000

PRABIRIR B R T 2k 1% 155
DABERD AR 172,0007T

The discount for lack of marketability represents the R miEREE TR e AN S ER
amounts of premiums and discounts determined by the EEMSZ20REERRETEREZSE
Group that market participants would take into account BRERITESEE -

when pricing the investments.
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise borrowings
and cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk
and equity price risk. As the Group's exposure to these risks is
kept to a minimum, the Group has not used any derivatives and
other instruments for hedging purposes. The Group does not
hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.
The Board reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.

INTEREST RATE RISK

In respect of the floating interest rate instruments, the Group is
subject to the cash flow interest rate risk, while for the fixed
interest rate instruments, the Group is subject to fair value
interest rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rate, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group's profit before tax by assuming the
floating rate borrowings outstanding at the end of the reporting
period were outstanding for the whole year.

ire MR MR

44, SRR EEEERBK

AEENETESRTABRERUNERER
HEER - ZEeRIANTIZRETIAAR
SENEEREET - ARBTAHMER
BHEEELENTRSREENARE  fINE
5 MWK IR N B b & WK IR AN 55 & A5 5RIA
Ko Bt FEAS SRR

AEEEMTRAELANTERRAMEE
o SNERR  EERKR  RBESARK
BB R o AR BPTAERZER
AR ERAKIKFT - AR E W EE B ERT
ETAREMTANUES R ZA - AEEL
BRARBTILEERITAUEEERE 2R -
ExgEHNIREZFRAREENEE -
LR e

FEEB
FEMETAKERAEEERREREN
R - MEEFNETAKSHASEEER
DRBENERER -

TRETRENEE HIREREEHZEF
REFREFNAREE - BREEMEHR

FRE  AEERBAEFLA BT HF
FEBHEEE -

Increase/
(decrease)

Increase/
(decrease)

in basis in profit

points before tax
EER  BRBANER
8, 0Rd) B CED)

RMB'000

AR®E TR

Year ended 31 December 2021 HE2021F12A31BILEE 50 (63,823)
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE2021F12A31BILEE (50) 63,823
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12 A3 BIEEE 50 (64,480)
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12 A3 HIEFE (50) 64,480
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44.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group’s main businesses are located in mainland China and
most of the transactions are conducted in Renminbi. Most of the
Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in Renminbi,
except for certain cash and bank deposits and trade and bills
receivables denominated in HK dollar and US dollar. The Group
has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the
reporting period to a reasonably possible change in the Renminbi
against the relevant currencies, with all other variables held

constant, of the Group's profit before tax (due to changes in the

44, TRIEMEEBERBEE @)

SMNEE B
AREBMNEBEXRBEHMNFBE AN - AEE
DR DPUNREHET - KEBAHDEE
RAEAARBHE - EETHRERRITE
B KB 5 & WK IR K RIBANE FUAE T &%
EILAHE - AREWE S E XA RETY
e

TRETNHERR - EABEMERRRET
TENBRT  AREBRHAENHARE
HREMABEENEGETEEZE (HREE
HEERERNAABEZSHB NG

fair value of monetary assets and loans). )
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in HK$/US$ in profit
rate before tax
BT ER
EREH MRBE AR R
(T&) & (@)
RMB’000
% ARB T

2021
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBHETEE 5 270
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ i AR HETHE (5) (270)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MARESBTIE 5 (21,713)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ M AREHEBTHHE (5) 21,713
2020
If the RMB weakens against the US$ MARBHETEE 5 3,380
If the RMB strengthens against the US$ MAREHETHE (5) (3,380)
If the RMB weakens against the HK$ MARESBTIE 5 (56,202)
If the RMB strengthens against the HK$ M AR HE B THE (5 56,202
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk in
relation to its trade and bills receivables, contract assets, loan
receivables, other receivables, debt instruments at FVTOCI and
cash and bank deposits.

The concession operating right of the Group represents sewage
treatment service concession financial receivables in respect of
Build-operate-transfer (“BOT") arrangements. Since the parties
to BOT arrangements are local government authorities in the
PRC, the Group considers the credit risk is low at the end of the
reporting period. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

In relation to the Group's financial service business, the Group
has a credit team which is responsible for the evaluation of
customers’ credit ratings, financial background and repayment
abilities. The Group only provides credit to customers with
creditworthiness and collateral is normally required. Except for
the individual customers with specific credit risk and whose
balances have been impaired, the risk of default in payment by
these customers is considered not significant.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk as the Group's
major customers are from or are related to the real estate
industry, but the Group has policies in place to ensure that sales
are made to purchasers with an appropriate financial strength
and appropriate percentage of down payments. It also has other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews regularly
the recoverable amount of each individual trade and bills
receivables and contract assets to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. The
Group has no significant concentrations of credit risk, with
exposure spread over a large number of counterparties and

customers.

For other receivables, an impairment analysis is performed by
management at the end of each reporting period by considering
historical settlement records, past experience and future
economic conditions. The directors of the Company believe that
there is no material credit risk inherent in the Group's
outstanding balance of other receivables.

fre SRR MR

44. SREBREEREREBEE @

EERR
FEERRERARZHFEEBITENERMT
AREFPEMNBETECMRZMHERNE
o AEEFEENERERRERLEZEK
FRERER AWEE - BWRER - EME
WikiR - RARBAEFAEMEEKEHE
BTRENANRE RIRTTIFRAER -

AEBENBFEEREEHRE 2EME
R ([ 2ERBR]) RN KE
ERBH S B EWGE - RI|BEMR - ER
BiE - 2B RBRRZNRI NN AT E
TBUTHE  SAKERREERRRE -
REBEY EpL B RGBSR A TAEASD -

BRASENSRRGEY  AEEERE
EEBFRAENGEPNEENR  MBEES
MEERS - AEBEREERIFNEFR
HEER-—RARKERR - RAKEEE
Rk BEGEHRERENERNETFIN  ZFER
Foyf s RARALTERX -

HRARENEREFPREFMENEEE
MONTTE AEEAETEERRETS
o MEARSRBR] B BUR AR R A IS
BEARASMNEEBD L2 BN FNE
TTEHHE - TNaRA B B iR AR i DAREARER
BURETTEW DB ERS © o) - AREE
HIE RS IRER B 5 R TR R RBEMA L
BEMAKESE - AEERL AL SRR
fEh R HRRERE - AEENEERRIR
BZERXZHEFREP WAL BESEANEER
€ S P

PEMEUGIAMS - BEEEBERESL
RBELE  BELR M REEIRNE R
SHMRETREDIN - ARAEZERR/ A
£5 (B LA B M SRR RO R (88 AE R SR B K[
BiEERR

Annual Report 2021 4§ 223



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4§

Are SRR T

44,

224

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

The Group's debt instruments at FVTOCI comprised solely of
quoted bonds that are graded in the top investment category
and therefore, are considered to be low credit risk investments.

Bank deposits are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks which are all high-credit-quality
financial institutions.

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of financial assets and whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout
each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant
increase in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forward-looking information.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, which
is mainly based on the invoice date unless other information is
available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at the end of each reporting period. The amounts
presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets and the
exposure to credit risk for the financial guarantee contracts.
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EERE @)
AEBRZATBESALMEZERDNE
BT EERENAZRSRERF EHES
AR AR AEEERRIRE

RIOTFREIEFHRREESHBBEREER
HERT(ORRARERERNSRIEE) -

AEERTREATHEERZRZOHA
T WEREHRERANEERREERHE
g - AHAEERBREGEEEM
AEEFHRHE R REEE RO ERSE
RAATER B 2 DR R ETHER - K&
BERAESHEEFEREER -

RERRRFREERDSE
TREJIENAEBEEERRNEEE XA
ReEERBAE(BRIFBANE T L ERK
AL N EEEMER - TR R
ZAMAEE) RERERRNFRERD
BoME2INEESEMEENARTER
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AND POLICIES (Continued)

CREDIT RISK (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

12-month
ECLs

12188
RAEERE

Stage 1
F-KR
RMB'000

AR®TR

ire MR MR

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 44. €riEMREE BERBER @)

EERE @)
RERERRFRERD R (E)

Lifetime ECLs
EEFENRAEERER
Simplified
approach Total
K@D st
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AR%TR

Stage 2
ERER
RMB'000

AR®TR

Stage 3
FRR
RMB'000

AR¥TR

Loan receivables TEUE X 1,185,066 53,626 = - 1,238,692
Contract assets* AHBE? - - - 616,881 616,881
Trade and bills receivables? BoRIGEREE - - - 4212442 4,212,442

1,185,066 53,626 - 4,829,323 6,068,015

12-month
ECLs
1218 A Lifetime ECLs
B EBHEEEHRE
Simplified
Stage 2 Stage 3 approach
F—IEE FREE H=FEER L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETRT ARE®ETT ARETT ARETR
Loan receivables TEUTE X 1,014,650 - - - 1,014,650
Contract assets* AWNEE! - - - 547,952 547,952
Trade and bills receivables® B RIGIEREE - - - 3,850,194 3,850,194
1,014,650 - - 4,398,146 5,412,796

For contract assets and trade and bills receivables to which the Group
applies the simplified approach for impairment, information based on the
provision matrix is disclosed in notes 23 and 24 to the consolidated financial
statements, respectively.

* RAKERBBEDEMERENANEEME
SREFARZEMS - ERBEEENEND
PR BN AR A M SRR MIFE 23 ] 24
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and available funding through various sources of finances to
meet its commitments.

The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities at the end
of each of the reporting periods, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, is as follows:

44, cREREEBERBE @

REE S E

AEBHNEFTUENRES MRSFED
WEBTFREREAERESES

UNEHNRITENRREE  AKRERERE
HARNERAGEIHPBERNOT

Within 1to 2 Over
1 year years 2 years Total
1R 182%F 2F M E Mt
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARBTT AR%TRT AR®TR AR®TR
Trade and bills payables H O RN FIAREE 7,545,637 - - 7,545,637

Financial liabilities included in 5T A E b g~ 5038 &%

other payables and accruals [EETERMemasE 1,435,195 - - 1,435,195
Borrowings AR 7,491,968 186,244 9,874,972 17,553,184
Convertible loans AR E = 668,272 = = 668,272
Lease liabilities HEAR 88,273 74,185 485,505 647,963
Other long-term payables HupRHEEMN KA - - 10,385 10,385
17,229,345 260,429 10,370,862 27,860,636

Within 1to2 Over
1 year years 2 years Total
1R 1824 2F A E FE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000
AREFT ARBTT ARETT ARETT
Trade and bills payables Lo EMNTBEBRLREE 5,678,208 - - 5,678,208
Financial liabilities included in = A E A FE N FRIE &
other payables and accruals ErERNEmEnE 871,037 - - 871,037
Borrowings &R 7,586,976 626315 7,942,817 16,156,108
Convertible loans AR E R 19,646 683,181 - 702,827
Lease liabilities HEBE 53,448 32,480 87,266 173,194
Other long-term payables Hibh REAFER FIE - - 16,953 16,953
14,209,315 1,341,976 8,047,036 23,598,327
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44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

EQUITY PRICE RISK

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity securities
decrease as a result of changes in the levels of equity indices and
the value of individual securities. The Group is exposed to equity
price risk arising from equity instruments at FVTPL and equity
instruments at FVTOCI (note 19) as at 31 December 2021. The
Group's listed investments are listed on the PRC, Hong Kong and
United Kingdom stock exchanges and are valued at quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the equity instruments, with all other
variables held constant and before any impact on tax, based on
their carrying amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the
purpose of this analysis, for the equity instruments at FVTOCI, the

impact is deemed to be on the fair value reserve.

44,

ire MR MR

SREAMEIEEEREBEE @

P& A (B 4% L B

AR A (B A& R 18 AR AN FE BUKF R BRI E 5B
E2FHMERNRABZSF AL EBE TR
B o 722021 12 A31 B » AN E R B %
ARBEFABENRATERIEARER
FFAEMEEREMRARTA(HE19) 5]
BHBRERR - AEEMN EHIRERPH -
EREREH ET - WHRREBRIZAFHTHE
FHE °

TRIVRIERTA B A 2 B RHE T R A AIRR
BMEEMZBERT  REEHRZEEER
H BATAZAREESEE 5% 2 HU
B - BLADHME - HIRASXBEFARMD
PHEHBENBATANTERGSYAAE
BRFENTE -

Carrying
amount Change in
of equity profit Change in
instruments before tax equity*
BATEH BRBL A
AREE T E HEzm # 5
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBT T ARBT T
2021
Equity securities listed in PRC AR R E S 978,643 37,601 11,331
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong RA&E & £ I ANE 55 352,133 - 17,607
Equity securities listed in the R EE £ fAR AR
United Kingdom H A 157,763 7,888 -
Unlisted equity securities JE TR AR S
at fair value (BAREETIE) 1,040,416 7,539 44,482
2020
Equity securities listed in PRC A B _E TR RS 5 1,299,772 22,310 42,679
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong A& F T RARE 5 551,520 - 27,576
Equity securities listed in the B AR AR
United Kingdom EEE 241,983 12,099 -
Unlisted equity securities IE TR AES
at fair value (BAREEIE) 539,277 2,698 24,266
*  Excluding retained profits * TEIERREHET
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objectives of the Group's capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern and
to maintain reasonable capital ratios in order to support its
business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. In order to
optimise the debt and equity balance, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or new debts or the redemption of existing
debts. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the year.

The Group monitors capital using a net debt to equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by capital. Net debt includes
borrowings, convertible loans and lease liabilities less cash and
bank deposits. Capital represents the total equity.

The Group's strategy is to maintain the net debtto equity ratio at
a healthy level in order to support its businesses. The principal
strategies adopted by the Group include, without limitation,
reviewing future cash flow requirements and the ability to meet
debt repayment schedules when they fall due, maintaining a
reasonable level of available banking facilities and adjusting
investment plans and financing plans, if necessary, to ensure that
the Group has a reasonable level of capital to support its
business. The net debt to equity ratio, at the end of the reporting

period is as follows:

44, TRIEMEEBERBEE @)

EXERE

AEBEAEENEIEZRBRARENSEA
BUARSBEEELENGE S - URBEFEEDN
BARLRFEER - ARBRRMEER

FERE -

AEBERBEBEANEGEELERNRER
TEHRE - RBCEBRERGER  AEE
AHEXMNTERROKE  ABRREDE
A BITHBREIFEXBEARBES - F
N BEREANER  BRIBELELE -

AREBABHFREERL REEER - &
R BEFHERIAER - ERFRBEE
o AR ERREERERRE MRTE
Ko BATI ISR -

AREBNREBERERFREESL T
R UFEER - ARBRDNE
ERMBEEENRNEHNRKBRREF K
X MBIREBOES - REFAJARITRE
EAREKFRFABKEELBERS (N
FE) URRAKERBESEKTFHNER
XFFEEY - RIS HROER FRLER
R -

2021 2020

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%ET AREETIT

Borrowings I=E 17,159,105 15,446,485
Convertible loans AR E R 624,430 627,362
Lease liabilities HEaE 492,368 162,316
Less: Cash and bank deposits B RE RIRTTIFER (7,646,249) (7,447 436)
Net debt BT 10,629,654 8,788,727
Total equity b e e 21,806,763 20,354,122
Net debt to equity ratio B FR R R 49% 43%
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45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

45. mEBERERMHE

(A) MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS (A) FEFBRERS

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB86,399,000 and
RMB86,399,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements (2020: RMB41,678,000 and RMB41,678,000).

RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The tables below detail changes in the Group’s liabilities

(B)

arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will
be, classified in the Group's consolidated statement of cash
flows as cash flows from financing activities.

(B)

FN - REELHENE  AEEFER
BEERBEBENIERSEND F
B A R 886,399,000 & A R ¥
86,399,000 7T (20204 : A R 41,678,000
TR AREE41,678,0007T) °

METBHELENEBYHER

TRAMANEERE RS AELNE
EEH(BERRELIFRTED) - &
BEPMELZRABERASREGR
IR AREGERERERADE
RBEEPHRERENEE -

Non-cash changes

*RERH
Amortisation
of borrowing Foreign
Lease arrangement exchange Other
1 January Cash flow liabilities fee movement changes 31 December
Rz
1A1H RERE HEAE EREH HERS Hit#®  12A31R
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTT ARETR AR%TR ARBTR ARMTT ARETR
Borrowings (£ 15,446,485 1,972,778 - 24,063 (425,733) 141,512 17,159,105
Lease liabilities HERE 162,316 (75,339) 86,399 - (3,601) 322,593 492,368
Convertible loans RRER 627,362 (19,650) - - (18,153) 34,871 624,430
Interest payable ERFE 26,033 (444,365) - - - 494,864 76,532
Dividends payable to ERARE
owners of the Company A ARE - (1,278,424) - - - 1,278,424 -
Dividends payable to B FEdER
non-controlling interests ~ {Ez %2 - (22,540) - - - 22,540 =
Total liabilities from BEEEN
financing activities BN 16,262,196 132,460 86,399 24,063 (447,487) 2,294,804 18,352,435
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45. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 45. ZREBRERERME @)

OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(B) RECONCILIATIONS OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Lease
1 January liabilities
1TR1H
RMB'000

HERE
RMB'000

(B) MIEERBHELANEGEYKR @

Non-cash changes

S

Amortisation
of borrowing Foreign
arrangement exchange
fee movement
[ Eho

EREH

Other
changes 31 December
12A31H

MB'000 RMB'000

ARETT RETT ARETR T ARBTT  ARETT  ARETx
Borrowings & 12,678,380 3,242,770 - 21,563 (676,617) 180,389 15,446,485
Lease liabilities HEERE 206,124 (85,649) 41,678 - (7,943) 8,106 162,316
Convertible loans ARRER 652,595 - - - (40,246) 15,013 627,362
Interest payable ERFE 25,602 (421,032 - - - 421,463 26,033
Dividends payable to ERARE
owners of the Company A ARE - (1,095,414) - - - 1,095,414 -
Dividends payable to e 3R
non-controlling interests ~ {E k& - (118) - - - 118 -
Payables for acquisition of ~ 5f Az fEft
non-controlling interests  FXIBAUEE
included in other FE R
payables e - (157,305) - - - 157,305 -
Total liabilities from BMETHN
financing activities afEeE 13,562,701 1,483,252 41,678 21,563 (724,806) 1,877,808 16,262,196

(C) TOTAL CASH OUTFLOW FOR LEASES (C) HERESRHARE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the BREFERERERNMEER SR
consolidated statement of cash flows is as follows: AR -

2021 2020

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR%T R ARETT

Within operating activities KEEEA 28,938 11,986

Within investing activities KEEHA 148,828 453,875

Within financing activities BEEBNA 75,339 85,649

253,105 551,510

230 China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI2EE@ZERER AT



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BB M

46. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 46, X Z /B4 5 (1

ARAEEMBRROFBMT

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
registration and registered
business share capital
ERAL/ BERTEER/
REXRBE A RA

Percentage of
equity attributable
to the Company

Direct

Indirect

AR EEERLE

BE

R

Principal activity

FTREH

Liansu Group Company Limited Hong Kong HK$13,000,000 - 100% Investment holding and sale of
building materials and home
improvement products

BPEEERRA Bk 13,000,0007% 7 REBRREERVREER

Guangdong Liansu Technology Industrial PRC HK$2,800,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., Ltd.*@ pipes and pipe fittings
ERBENBEELERAR HE 2,800,000,000% 7 SERHEEHEEREN
Heshan Lesso Industrial Development PRC HK$269,930,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., Ltd.*®! pipes and pipe fittings
BIBPELXERERARY o 269,930,000 7 HENHEBHEEREN
Lesso Technology Development (Wuhan) PRC HK$111,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., Ltd.*® pipes and pipe fittings
BEMRERGUE) BRARY w 111,000,000 7T HENHEBHEEREN
Lesso Technology Development (Guiyang) PRC HK$115,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., Ltd.*®! pipes and pipe fittings
BERERER (BR) BRARN HE 115,000,000 7T SERHEYHEEREN
Nanjing Lesso Technology Industrial PRC US$26,750,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., Ltd.*®! pipes and pipe fittings

HRBENRERERATE o 26,750,000% 7T HENHEBHEEREN

Lesso Municipal Pipe (Hebei) Co., Ltd.*® PRC S$32,790,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

IR EE (L) BRARE w 32,790,000 %7 HENHEBHEEREN

Henan Lesso Industrial Co., Ltd.*® PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

EHEEEERAR HE AR 200,000,000 70 B RHEEREEREN

Hainan Lesso Technology Industrial PRC RMB 150,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., Ltd.*® pipes and pipe fittings
BEBENRERERAR" o AR 150,000,000 7T HENHEBHEEREN
Yunnan Lesso Technology Development PRC RMB200,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic

Co., Ltd.*d pipes and pipe fittings

EHMERRBERERAR Y I A 200,000,000 72 HENHEBHEEREN

Hunan Lesso Technology Industrial Co., Ltd.*? PRC RMB 100,000,000 - 100% Manufacture and sale of plastic
pipes and pipe fittings

HEBEREEEERARC HE AR 100,000,000 70 B RHEEREEREN
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46.

232

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 46. TEMBE X RNFE @

(Continued)
Place of Issued
incorporation/ ordinary share/
registration and registered
business share capital
AR R BERTEER/
REXRBE EfRA
Guangdong Shunde Lesso Management PRC RMB682,000,000
Co., Ltd*®
BERIBEEHMEERERLAY # AR 682,000,0007
Lesso Mall Development (Long Island), Inc. @ us US$104,000,000
FHERER(RS)BRAR e 104,000,000 7T
Lesso Mall Development (Jurupa Valley) usS US$1,000
Limited @
BHENER (RENR)BRAF 0 *E 1,000 7T
@ Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under the laws of PRC
® Registered as an equity joint venture under the laws of PRC
@ Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of PRC
@ Registered as a limited liability company under the laws of US

The above table lists the Company’s subsidiaries which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the
year or formed a substantial portion of the Group's net assets. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI2EE@ZERER AT

Percentage of

equity attributable
to the Company
Direct Indirect Principal activity
AR EEERLE
B B  EEXH
- 100% Property investment
NERE

- 100% Property investment
NERE

- 100% Property investment
NERE
@ REFEEEEIMA I BELE
© REPEZEZMA—HAaERE
© BREFBEEEIMA—HERAR

@ REXEEEEIMA—HERAT

BEERR - LRAEIINA QBB R RY
AEENEEABATZENABRAERE
EFENEAFD - EERA M EAH
BARIMER  SEEAREERTTE



NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRB BB M

47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

R R IIR I R

R|BEMR - BEARAM BN RKRNE
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: N

Information about the statement of financial position of the

2021
RMB’'000

AR®TR

2020
RMB'000
ARET T

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE

Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRIMIEE 5,002,996 5,005,446
Other financial assets HEmepEE 393,284 613,624
Total non-current assets EREEELRE 5,396,280 5,619,070
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE

Other receivables E{‘@FEH&ZM 1,458,303 1,677,279
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUSBT B A 4,497,205 -
Other financial assets ﬁﬁﬂ@%ﬂﬁé - 24,915
Cash and bank deposits e RIRITIF 22,428 435,719
Total current assets TENEEMERE 5,977,936 2,137,913
CURRENT LIABILITIES =R

Other payables and accruals HAb R FIE R ESTE A 564,939 725,474
Amounts due to subsidiaries AR ENGIE/ S - 2,988,365
Borrowings e 7,718,273 119,996
Total current liabilities mEAREA 8,283,212 3,833,835
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES ;;.»EJEE%%E (2,305,276) (1,695,922)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEAERABER 3,091,004 3,923,148
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES e =R

Borrowings e = 471,495
Other financial liabilities HEemeE 42,188 64,855
Total non-current liabilities EREEELRR 42,188 536,350
Net assets BEFR 3,048,816 3,386,798
EQUITY =

Share capital R AR 135,344 135,344
Reserves (note) b (P E) 2,913,472 3,251,454
Total equity VEkimsE 3,048,816 3,386,798
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

48.

234

Note:

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

47. AR T B AR & @)

Bt

ARBHHEEHERLOT

Shares
held for Exchange
Share share award Fair value fluctuation Retained
premium scheme reserve reserve profits
g )]
=Bl EXRE
RAD R IE 37y fitfh fREBEF st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTFT ARBTFT ARETT ARBTT
At 1 January 2020 R2020F1 A1H 1,905,618 (85,440) (24,979) 23,270 1,054,352 2,872,821
Total comprehensive income R 2 HEU2E
for the year k] - - (19,662) 80,184 1,413,525 1,474,047
Dividends recognised as BRRBAEEA
distributions to owners DIRERE - - - - (1,095,414) (1,095,414)
Transfer of fair value reserve HERDABEFALL
upon the disposal of equity 2EBEMNRATAK
instruments at FVTOCI BREAABERE - - (144) - 144 -
At 31 December 2020 and R 2020512 A31 B &
1 January 2021 2021F1A1H 1,905,618 (85,440) (44,785) 103,454 1,372,607 3,251,454
Total comprehensive income R 2 EU2E
for the year k] - - (130,249 49,715 1,020,976 940,442
Dividends recognised as L REEAA
distributions to owners DIRERE - - - - (1,278,424) (1,278,424)
Transfer of fair value reserve HERDABETALM
upon the disposal of equity 2EBEMNRATAK
instruments at FVTOCI BREAAEERE - - (170) - 170 -
At 31 December 2021 #2021 612 A31 B 1,905,618 (85,440) (175,20) 153,169 1,115,329 2913472

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board on 28 March 2022.

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited " EI2EE@ZERER AT

48. #LELR SRR

RABHMERN202FIA2ALES

ot R RT3

=

=]



SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
T2REMEHUZ

Details of the Group’s investment properties at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

Site area/
Type gross floor area

MRS

Location

ith B BEEEE
sq. ft.
FEHER

79-99 St Hilliers Road, 271,660*

Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,

New South Wales

79-99 St Hilliers Road, SN IB

Auburn, Cumberland, Sydney,

New South Wales

Australia B

271,660¢

5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951
Steeles Avenue East,
Toronto, Ontario

5789, 5933, 5945, 5811, 5951
Steeles Avenue East,
Toronto, Ontario

Canada CL 1,793,949

mnex CL 1,793,949

5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East,
Toronto, Ontario

5631-5671 Steeles Avenue East, mex CB
Toronto, Ontario

Canada CB 138,982*

138,982*

South of Longzhou West Road, PRC CL
East of Dengdong Road,

265,301

Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan City, Guangdong

EEREH LmIEERETE th CL
BEMN PR A BB R R AR X A

265,301

West of Foshan-Kaiping highway, PRC CL
North of Longgao Road,

1,665,991

Longjiang town, Shunde District,

Foshan City, Guangdong

BEREHILTIEEREETE H CL
BFIRERAT - BRI

1,665,991

633 Heshun Road, PRC IL
Heshan Industrial Center,

1,550,738

Heshan City, Guangdong
BEREBILTELTER & IL
AIIERE 63355

1,550,738

Lease term

AAH

Freehold

KA

Freehold

KA

Freehold

KA

Leasehold

e

Leasehold

HEXE

Leasehold

HEFE
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As at 31 December 2021

202112 A318

RmERR - AEREREYENFBOT -

Stage of
completion

52 R Pl Bx

Existing

BE

Planning stage

BIER

Existing

BnE

Under
development

ERT

Under
development

ERT

Existing

BE
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
TRREMEBEZ

As at 31 December 2021
20214128318

Site area/ Stage of
Location Type gross floor area Lease term completion
WEEE
it 2 3l HEEEE HAH
sq. ft.
FHR
Plot-7, South of Zone A, PRC IL 2,401,867 Leasehold Under
Shunde Technology Industrial Park, development

Daliang Street Office, Shunde District,

Foshan City, Guangdong

BREBLUTIEEEARGENER i IL 2,401,867 RE%R RSP
BRI TR AR -7 MR

Tangerang New City Estate, Indonesia CX 1,060,073 Leasehold Under
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Pasir Gadung, development
Kecamatan Cikupa, Kabupaten Tangerang,

Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, EfZfefaas CX 1,060,073 THE R R
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Pasir Gadung,

Kecamatan Cikupa, Kabupaten Tangerang,

Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, Indonesia IL 1,071,181 Leasehold  Planning stage
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Sindang Jaya,

Kecamatan Sindang Jaya,

Kabupaten Tangerang, Banten, Indonesia

Tangerang New City Estate, ENEfer s IL 1,071,181 HEFE EERER
Jalan Suvarna Sutera, Kelurahan Sindang Jaya,

Kecamatan Sindang Jaya,

Kabupaten Tangerang, Banten, Indonesia

Prey Rokar Village, Cambodia CX 5,519,034 Freehold Under
ChhakChheuNeang Commune, development

Ang Snuol District,

Kandal Province, Cambodia

Prey Rokar Village, RIFE CX 5,519,034 KA ERE R
ChhakChheuNeang Commune,

Ang Snuol District,

Kandal Province, Cambodia

Plot No 2, 4, 8, 9 Block 59 Myanmar CX 3,232,762 Leasehold Under
Zawtika Yeik Mon Housing, development
Dagon Seikkan Township, Yangon

Plot No 2, 4, 8, 9 Block 59 k) CX 3,232,762 MEXRE FRET
Zawtika Yeik Mon Housing,

Dagon Seikkan Township, Yangon
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SUMMARY OF MAJOR INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
FTRREMEBE

As at 31 December 2021
20219128310

Site area/ Stage of

Location Type gross floor area Lease term completion
HWRERE,

1t B bl HEEER A TR P BR
sq. ft.
FHR

120-122, 202, 204, 847, 848,1413,1425-1430, Thailand CX 3,557,955 Freehold Under

Tambol Bang Sao Thong, development

Amphoe Bang Sao Thong, and 375,

Tambol Bang Bo,

Amphoe Bang Bo,

Samut Prakarn Province

120-122, 202, 204, 847, 848,1413,1425-1430, RE CX 3,557,955 KA BRP
Tambol Bang Sao Thong,

Amphoe Bang Sao Thong, & 375,

Tambol Bang Bo,

Amphoe Bang Bo,

Samut Prakarn Province

Plot 62189674, Warsan First, Dubai United Arab CL 570,487 Freehold Under

Emirates development

Plot 62189674, Warsan First, Dubai PR EE S CL 570,487 KA ZERE R
BERE

SWC of Highway 380 & FM 26, us CX 3,347,896 Freehold  Planning stage

South side of Highway 380

West of FM 26,

Frisco, Texas

SWC of Highway 380 & FM 26, ESE CX 3,347,896 KA KR £
South side of Highway 380

West of FM 26,

Frisco, Texas

12071 Bellegrave Avenue, us CX 4,755,918 Freehold  Planning stage
Jurupa Valley, California
12071 Bellegrave Avenue, £ CX 4,755,918 KA ZERE FEER

Jurupa Valley, California

1300 and 1504 Old Country Road, us CB 723,302¢ Freehold Existing
Westbury, Nassau County,

Long Island, New York

1300 and 1504 Old Country Road, ESE CB 723,302¢ KA ERE iz =)
Westbury, Nassau County,

Long Island, New York

Note: CL Commercial land HES:E
MHEE - CX  Complex land 4RA A
IL Industrial land TR
CB  Commercial building HEETF
1B Industrial building TIHEF

#

Represents gross floor area e EEmEE
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GLOSSARY
R

“"Board”
=

“BVI"
[RBERREHS]

"China” or "PRC"
[
“Code”
[=rAl

"Company” or “China Lesso”

[AYNCTRIE A Sk el

"Current Ratio”

[RE = |

"EBITDA"
[BR BB ITEE R & ]

"FVTOCI”

[E AR BEFALMEEKE]

"FVTPL"
[E R EE ABx]

"Gearing Ratio”

[EEAEX]

"Group”
[A&EE]

“Guangdong Liansu Machinery’

[ BSR4 25
“HKS$"
eud

“Hong Kong” or “"HK"
[H5]

the board of directors of the Company
KAREFE

the British Virgin Islands
REBERARES

the People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluding Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan

FEARKNE  RAREHE - LTREES RFIRATE

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

ETRRIM 14 FrE MR E AT R

China Lesso Group Holdings Limited
PRI R EERER AR

the ratio of current assets to current liabilities

MBEERARBREL R

earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation

RRFE ~ BEIR - I8 R HAT & T

fair value through other comprehensive income

B BEFARMEE RS

fair value through profit or loss
BT BER ABm

the total debts divided by the sum of total debts and total equity
REBLERAEBE LTI SR RERN LR

the Company and its subsidiaries

ARRREKERF]

Guangdong Liansu Machinery Manufacturing Co., Ltd.*, a company indirectly
wholly-owned by Mr. Wong Luen Hei and a connected person of the
Company as defined under the Listing Rules

BRZEHBEERRAT  ERELEMERZERANLRRF  XREARFH
BEALT(EER LM

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BEOEEE® — BT

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
PEEFBRFRITTERER
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“loT"”
EZEEEN

“Listing Rules”
[ AR A

“Model Code”
ESE

“"New Fortune”
E=y

"pE"

[PE ]

“PP_R"
[PP-R]

“PVC"
[PVC]

“Quick Ratio”
[ERB) L |

“RMB”
[AR®]

"SFO"
[FE 7 KRS

“Share(s)"”
[ 15 |

“Shareholder(s)"”
[ ]

“Shunde Liansu Industrial”

[NErERE B E % |

“sq.ft.”
[FHER]

"Stock Exchange”
[ <2 P

GLOSSARY
il

Internet of things

LS

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
B P Em R Al

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

ETRAIMEI0FAEN ELMBEITAZBRETERR ZNRETRI

New Fortune Star Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI

New Fortune Star Limited * —AREB#R R EEEMAZ 225

polyethylene
B2E

polypropylene random
ﬁ%ﬁ/\ﬂiAXﬁﬁﬁ

polyvinyl chloride
BREL®

the ratio of current assets less inventories to current liabilities

MBEERFEBRARBBENL X

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
TREZEEER — AR

Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong
FBEDIE 571 EFE L AE G

share(s) of a nominal value of HK$0.05 each in the capital of the Company
AR BRI T G ARE B 0.05 8 TR AR 15

holder(s) of the Share(s) of the Company
ARaROHFAEA

Foshan Shunde Liansu Industrial Co., Ltd.*
FBILmIEEEE B EEER AT

square feet

FHER

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBMERIMARANR
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GLOSSARY

=N

AR

“tonne(s)” a unit measuring weight, equal to 1,000 kilograms

[ 168 | ¥ SEZEMNEA - BER1,000R8T

"us” the United States of America

[SEE ] B ENREZRE

"US$” US dollar, the lawful currency of US

= ¥ EEZEFE¥ —ET

“Xi Xi Development” Xi Xi Development Limited, a company incorporated in the BVI
[PORE f WEZERARALAR —HAREBAERREFSTMKLZAR]
%" per cent

[%] B Bk

*

240

The English or Chinese translations in this report, where indicated, denote for identification purposes only.

AR E MBI R B (AR ) o
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEVE R

BOARD OF DIRECTORS Exg
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BITES

Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman) wmEE S AE (FE)
Mr. Zuo Manlun (Chief executive) fmim o A (7T AEEL)
Ms. Zuo Xiaoping RSt

Mr. Lai Zhigiang FEEETE

Mr. Kong Zhaocong FLIKFRE 4

Mr. Chen Guonan PeR A /e 4% A

Dr. Lin Shaoquan N

Mr. Huang Guirong mEEEE

Mr. Luo Jianfeng BRIE A

Mr. Lin Dewei MRS E
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BYFHITES
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan TEZEE

Ms. Lan Fang b

Dr. Tao Zhigang PEEMIE L

Mr. Cheng Dickson Pz i 4

Ms. Lu Jiandong PERZ T
AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES
Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman) PEMIE L (FE)
Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan FHREE

Mr. Cheng Dickson Pz i 4

Ms. Lu Jiandong PERZ T
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE YMEES
Dr. Tao Zhigang (Chairman) PEMIE L (FE)
Mr. Wong Luen Hei e

Mr. Zuo Manlun Pasbr ) o bivta

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan FERES

Ms. Lu Jiandong BERZT
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEES
Mr. Wong Luen Hei (Chairman) BMERE (F/E)
Mr. Zuo Manlun Rt

Mr. Wong Kwok Ho Jonathan FERES

Ms. Lan Fang e

Dr. Tao Zhigang P M8 £+
COMPANY SECRETARY REAME

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel BERESEE
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES EERE

Mr. Zuo Manlun Tomfm S

Mr. Kwan Chi Wai Samuel BAERELE
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REIER

REGISTERED OFFICE
Second Floor, Century Yard
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN CHINA

Liansu Industrial Estate
Longjiang Town

Shunde District

Foshan City

Guangdong Province 528318
China

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG
Unit 1A, 10th Floor, Tower 2

South Seas Centre

75 Mody Road

Tsim Sha Tsui East

Kowloon, Hong Kong

LISTING INFORMATION
Listing:
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

PSR

Second Floor, Century Yard
Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902
Grand Cayman, KY1-1103
Cayman Islands

B e i B
e

BERE (T4 : 528318)
Bl

==

BEITiE

98 T ¥4

EBTEEEME
BEENEE

RYDIBEEP

JE D38 75 5%

EIEA D
FREI0EIAS

EiER
TS
EEBARSHARAT

Stock code: AR5

2128 2128
SHARE INFORMATION &0 & B
As at 31 December 2021: 2021124318 :
Share issued 3,102,418,400 shares BEITRNOEE 3,102,418,400 f%
Market capitalisation HK$34,747 million A 347 47 BT
Board lot size 1,000 shares BFFEZTEN 1,000 A%
2021 DIVIDENDS 2021 £ R E
Interim dividend HK12 cents per share A HAPS B FRZ 12781
Proposed final dividend HK26 cents per share R R BAAR S Fhg 26 &1
Dividend payout ratio 31.7% g 31.7%
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Annual results announcement:
28 March 2022

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS:

—  for determining the entitlement to attend and vote at annual
general meeting from 15 to 17 June 2022 (both dates inclusive)

—  for determining the entitlement to proposed final dividend from

6 to 8 July 2022 (both dates inclusive)

2022 annual general meeting:
17 June 2022

Payment of 2021 proposed final dividend*:
on or around 22 July 2022

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Second Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS

iPR Ogilvy & Mather

40th Floor, China Online Centre

333 Lockhart Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2136 6185

Fax: (852) 3170 6606

Email: ir@lesso.com

+ Subject to approval by the Shareholders at the 2022 annual general meeting to be

held on 17 June 2022.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
AR

Zl-i%E 70N
FELERE :
20223 H28H

TERERMBFERTFE
— WMTHEBRREFAETRE FRENERE
20226 415217 B (BREERMRX)

— HWTWEEIRRBKRERNERE 20227 A
6E8H(BHEEEMKX)

2022 FREBFRS :
2022564178

IR 2021 FHURAREARLE
20227 A22 BB A F

Hﬁﬁﬂ)ﬁ = naﬁjﬁ

Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited
Second Floor, Century Yard

Cricket Square, P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman, KY1-1103

Cayman Islands

RABFELDE
BEEFRELFELERAA
&5

BT 2REARER 1835
AR L
171712-1716 E

REEREZE
iPREZE N

BB BT 718 33357
R AR 4018
BTEE 1 (852) 2136 6185
f8H : (852) 3170 6606
T : ir@lesso.com

+ MEBERR R 202245 6 A 17 B 21T 89 2022 ERREB S K
g kR - HAEE -
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
Hong Kong

SOLICITOR
Ropes & Gray

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
Agricultural Bank of China Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

CTBC Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
DBS Bank Ltd., Hong Kong Branch

Foshan Shunde Rural Commercial Bank Company Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

Sumitomo Mitsui Banking Corporation

Taipei Fubon Commercial Bank Co., Ltd., Hong Kong Branch
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
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Forward-looking statements

This report contains forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements include,
without limitation, statements related to revenue and earnings. The words "believe”,

T won won

“intend”, “expect”, "anticipate”, “forecast”, "estimate”,

won

predict”, “is confident”, "has
confidence” and similar expressions are also intended to represent forward-looking
statements. These forward-looking statements are not historical facts. Rather, the forward-
looking statements are based on the current beliefs, assumptions, expectations, estimates
and projections of the directors and management of China Lesso about the businesses,

industries and markets in which China Lesso operates.

These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and are
subject to risks, uncertainties and other factors, some of which are beyond the Company'’s
control and are difficult to predict. Consequently, actual results could differ materially from

those expressed, implied or forecasted in the forward-looking statements.

Reliance should not be placed on these forward-looking statements, which reflect only the
views of the directors and management of China Lesso as at the date of this report only.
The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly revise these forward-looking statements

to reflect events or circumstances that arise after publication of this report.
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